
 

Page 1 of 3 

    City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2024 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 

7:30 P.M. 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 
- 

• July 23, 2024, Informal Meeting 
• July 23, 2024, Public Hearing 
• July 31, 2024, Special Meeting 

  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 
 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

11395 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of Valuations 
Changes and Qualified Comparable Sales – LA3. Page 151 of packet 

 
11396 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of City 

Valuations- LA4. Page 158 of packet 
 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

11397 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of New 
Growth – LA13. Page 171 of packet 

 
11398 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding City Employee Health 

Insurance Rates. Page 175 of packet 
 

11399 – A Measure Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Grant Agreement Lease 
with the Gardner Community Action Committee for a use of a portion of the 
space at the Waterford Community Center located at 62 Waterford Street. 
Page 209 of packet 

 
11400 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Sale of 94 Pleasant Street. 

Page 226 of packet 
 

11401 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding Fire Chief Lagoy Receiving 
State Fire Certification. Page 227 of packet 

 
11402 – An Order Authorizing the City to Enter into a 5-year Contract for Grant 

Writing and Government Outreach Services. (Finance Committee) Page 230 
of packet 

   
 
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

11403 – A Measure Relative to the November 5, 2024, State Election. (Finance 
Committee) Page 233 of packet 

 
X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES  
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 

11289 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Part 1, thereof 
entitled “Administrative Legislation.” (In the City Council Referred to Finance 
Committee, 5/20/2024, More Time 6/3/2024, 6/17/2024, 7/1/2024, 8/5/2024, 
9/4/2024, 9/16/2024) Page 238 of packet 

 
11370 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 590, 

thereof entitled "Solid Waste" to change the fee for solid waste collections (In 
the City Council and Ordered to First Printing 8/5/2024; More Time 
9/4/2024, 9/16/2024; First Printing 9/12/2024) Page 357 of packet 

 
11371 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 553, 

thereof entitled "Sewer Rates" (In the City Council and Ordered to First 
Printing 8/5/2024; More Time 9/4/2024, 9/16/2024; First Printing 9/12/2024) 
Page 360 of packet 

 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 3 

11372 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, 
thereof entitled "Personnel" to amend Schedule E- Non-union Compensation 
Schedule (In the City Council and Ordered to First Printing 8/5/2024; More 
Time 9/4/2024, 9/16/2024; First Printing 9/12/2024) Page 363of packet 

 
 

SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 

11204 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600, 
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on 
Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm Street to Lawrence Street. (More 
Time 3/18/2024, 4/1/2024,4/16/2024, 5/6/2024, 5/20/2024, 06/3/2024, 
6/17/2024, 7/1/2024, 8/5/2024, 9/4/2024, 9/16/2024) Page 368 of packet 

 
SERVICE COMMITTEE 
 
11326 – A Petition by National Grid, Elm Street and Cross Street -relocate pole 1SO 

pole approximately 15 feet. (In the City Council and Referred to the Service 
Committee 8/5/2024; More Time 9/4/2024, 9/16/2024; Public Hearing 
Required) Page 370 of packet 

 
11385 – A Measure to Grant National Grid an Easement to Install a Transformer at 95 

Pleasant Street. (In the City Council and Referred to Service Committee 
9/4/2024; More Time 9/16/2024) Page 375 of packet 

 
XI.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 
 
 



 
INFORMAL MEETING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Informal Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Tuesday evening, July 23, 2024. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 6:00 o’clock p.m.  
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Assistant City Clerk Elizabeth Doiron called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors present 
were present including President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, 
David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros. Councillor Craig Cormier was absent. 
 
OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

• WBZ Boston, 1170 Soldiers Field Road, Boston, MA, announced they were recording. 
• Steve Wendell of WGAW Radio, Gardner, MA, announced he was recording from 

Perry Auditorium. 
• Brandon Hughey of 8 Grace Court, Gardner, MA, announced he was recording from 

Perry Auditorium. 
 
11317 – A Vote to determine if a track of land located at 827 Green Street, be approved 
as the location of a running horse racing track where race meetings laid out and conducted by 
licensees under M.G.L c. 128A will be held or conducted. 
 
John Stefanni of Bay State Racing presented a presentation attached. 
 
A straw vote was taken. It is an unofficial vote conducted as a test of an opinion to get a sense 
of where the Council stands on an item. A “yes” on the straw vote is that you would allow for 
there to be horse racing. A “no” on the straw vote is to not allow horse racing. 
 
On an unofficial straw vote of zero  (0) “yes” and ten (10) “no”. 
 
 

The Informal Meeting concluded at 8:21 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:  
 



PRESENTATION TO CITY COUNCIL

JULY 23, 2024

A place for breeding, training, and 
racing of horses since 1875



Baystate Racing Team

2

Our team includes recognized experts in the fields of 
engineering, traffic, environment and water, legal, horse 
racing, and horse welfare. 

• VHB
• David M. Schwarz Architects
• Louis Raffetto
• Goddard Consulting
• Mirick O’Connell
• Haley & Aldrich

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024



3



Community Process
• Community meetings and public input
• City approval of site for thoroughbred racing
• Mayor execution of Host Community Agreement 
• Application to Massachusetts Gaming Commission (MGC)
• Hearing by MGC in Gardner on application 
• Adjudicatory Hearing & Suitability by MGC
• MGC vote on application 
• Gardner permitting process, including the Conservation 

Commission and Planning Board
• Review by DEP compliance and for Section 401 Water 

Quality Certificate (WQC)
• Application for a building permit
• Annual report to Mayor and Council on facility operations
• Annual hearing in Gardner for license renewal by MGC

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 4



Our Vision
Continuing the tradition of using this site as a horse 
farm and racing facility for thoroughbred and 
standard horses. A year-round equestrian facility for 
all to learn about and enjoy farming and horses:

• Breeding program
• Training facilities
• Thoroughbred festival racing
• Off-track retirement program
• Agricultural and equestrian festivals 
• Agricultural programs for local students 
• Therapy programs for individuals in recovery
• Vegetable gardens, and chickens and goats

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 5



Gardner: A Destination for 
Horse Racing in the Region
Gardner’s legacy of horses and racing dates back to the 1870s. Local 
physician Dr. Robert Foster Andrews created what was then called Andrews 
Park on the current site of GAAHMA on Route 140. The first horse race was 
held on Saturday, September 26, 1875 with more than 600 attendees. 
Andrews Park was the site of the Mid-State Fair held every year through the 
1920s.

After the Mid-State Fair, the Gardner Agricultural Society and the Gardner 
Chamber of Commerce started the Agricultural Fair over Columbus Day 
Weekend, featuring livestock shows featuring cattle, horses and poultry, 
agricultural and horticultural exhibits, horse pulls, track and field events, and 
horse racings.

Gardner Raceways held an eight race matinee with 1,000 attendees in 1953. 
One hundred years after the creation of Andrews Park, Leonard LeBlanc began 
housing horses that he trained and raced at the track. He was one of the top 
trainers in New England at the time. 

Gardner Equestrian Center brings the legacy of this location full circle by 
providing thoroughbred horses a place to breed, train, race and retire. 

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 6



Initial Site 
Concept Plan 
(subject to local 
& state review)

7



Structures on site

• Renovate the existing house and 
barns.

• Build a gazebo and pads for food 
trucks. 

• Temporary facilities and porta 
potties brought in on festival race 
days. 

• Grandstand built into the hillside, 
taking advantage of the 
topography.  

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
8



Equine Facility

• Our facility will be the premier facility 
for thoroughbreds to breed, train, 
race, and retire.
• Thoroughbred breeding program
• Retraining for off-track 

thoroughbreds.
• Training facilities for 

thoroughbred owners and 
trainers.

• On non-race days the average 
number of horses on site would 
be 5-25.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
9



Breeding Program

• We will have a breeding program 
to increase the thoroughbred 
horse population. 

• The cost associated raising a 
foal is at a minimum between 
$35-50,000. 

• Not every thoroughbred horse 
will participate in racing. Other 
career options include eventing, 
dressage, jumping, polo, or on 
local farms for riding and 
therapeutic riding.  

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
10



Retirement

• Incorporate a retirement facility 
for retired Massachusetts bred 
thoroughbred horses to start 
their second careers.

• Working with the New England 
HPBA, a percentage of all race 
purses will be dedicated 
towards thoroughbred aftercare 
and rescue.  

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
11



Thoroughbred Festival Racing
• Festival racing takes place one – two 

weekends a year, and never more than 20 
days.

• Competitive horse racing events supported 
by thoroughbred owners, breeders and 
trainers from Massachusetts and the 
surrounding regions.

• Racing allows horse owners to win pursue 
money from the Commonwealth Race 
Horse Development Fund. This money is 
used to maintain farms and the welfare of 
horses.

• Onsite wagering only at festival race days at 
temporary kiosk. 

• More than 95% of wagering occurs online 
on cellphones off-site. 

• No sports wagering on site. 
Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024

12



Community Partnerships

• Collaborating with GAAMHA, Inc. 
on equestrian training for clients 
and providing retired racehorses 
for therapeutic programs.

• Partnering with local education 
institutions around agricultural 
and veterinarian tech training 
modules, internships and jobs.

• Promote and partner with local 
businesses. 

• Contribute $20,000 to local not 
for profit organizations.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
13



Benefits for Gardner

Baystate Racing will be Gardner’s highest taxpayer at 
approximately $500,000.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 14

Top 10 Taxpayers in Gardner



Benefits for Gardner
• Helps drive ongoing economic 

revitalization in the city bringing in 
new patrons for local restaurants 
and small businesses. 

• Creates a venue for functions and 
events.

• $25 million in new capital 
investment. 

• Creates 15-25 permanent and more 
than 100 temporary jobs in the 
community. 

• Plant 500 trees around the city.
• Preserves open space and connects 

with the North Central Pathway.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 15



Supporting Local Agriculture
• Preserve and protect 1,200 horse and hay farms around 

Massachusetts.
• Collaborate with surrounding farms while supporting 

local breeders, horse owners, farriers and veterinarians 
to encourage economic activity and strengthen local 
agricultural economy.

• Every horse that races preserves a farm and requires a 
minimum of seven jobs. 

• Revenues from racing assist in preserving the land, 
breeding thoroughbreds, and operating the race meet.

• Brings new local and statewide revenue to Gardner, 
providing new benefits for the city and agricultural 
community.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 16



Massachusetts’ Challenge
• 8 acres of farmland is lost every day.
• According to the United State Department of 

Agriculture, Massachusetts ranks 6th for 
disappearing open space.

• Due to the lack of breeding programs in 
Massachusetts, only one stallion and 20 foals 
were born over the last five years.

• Bay State Park will help sustain the activities 
that will occur during the rest of the year, such 
as breeding, haying and other farm activities. 
These activities go hand-in-hand. 

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 17



The Massachusetts Model

“…the development of a Massachusetts 
Model horse park represents a significant 
economic opportunity for the 
Commonwealth…The annual economic 
impact is expected to approach $99 
million and lead to the creation of more 
than 950 jobs throughout 
Massachusetts. 

Economic activity resulting from the 
facility’s development would also 
generate an additional $5 million in state 
and local tax revenues per year."

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
18

Dr. John Mullin, Emeritus Professor 
Regional Planning at the 

University of Massachusetts Amherst



The Massachusetts Equine Economy

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
19

The equine industry and 
family farming 
contributes thousands 
of jobs in Massachusetts 
for breeding, racing, and 
sporting events, 
particularly in our most 
economically challenged 
rural communities. 



FAQ: Wetlands & Water Protection
• Manure: Collected, stored and removed off-site

• Water: Introduce new buffers around wetlands and 
construct rain gardens to purify runoff

• Track: Use organic fertilizers

• Rules: MassDEP will review project process to 
ensure it complies with state regulations. We will 
maintain top standards to obtain a Section 401 
Water Quality Certificate (WQC)

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 20

The Central Office DEP Director specifically stated this site will benefit from “top of the line stormwater 
management.” We are working with three of the top engineering and environmental consultants in 
Massachusetts.
 
The buffer near Perley Brook, which flows off the east side of the site, will exceed Commonwealth requirements. 
The proposed track is planned for the west side in the uplands, on the other side of the property from the Perley 
Brook. The above enhancements will safeguard Gardner's water quality for the future.



Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
21

Massachusetts leads the nation for the 
health and safety of horses:

• Any owner/trainer who violated anti-doping 
rules is permanently banned from racing in 
Massachusetts. 

• Any owner or trainer who sells their horse for 
slaughter is banned for life. 

• Working with the NEHBPA, it is our goal that 
every retired horse finds a second career or 
an after-care home for after its racing 
career. 

FAQ: Horse Welfare & Safety



Protecting the health and safety of our horses

Here are the measures that will further protect the health and safety of these 
racehorses:
• Before every race, horses will be medically examined by a qualified and 

independent vet who is under the control of the state. If the vet has any concern 
about the ability of the horse to run safely or has reason to believe they have 
received any banned substance, they alone can disqualify that horse;

• If that horse has been disqualified for receiving a banned substance, under our 
rules that the trainer will be permanently banned from racing at our track (and 
in Massachusetts);

• We will build a surface to ensure greater safety for the horses as it is well known 
that turf is safer and gentler for the horse and results in fewer racing injuries.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
22



Protecting the health and safety of our horses

• Thoroughbred racing in Massachusetts is highly regulated under the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission and its Horse Racing 
Committee;

• We will build into our engineering design a 24/7 video monitoring 
system that will capture all our barns and stalls to detect any 
violation of anti-doping rules. This monitoring will also include 
additional undisclosed security measures;

• We will work with HISA (Horseracing Integrity and Safety Authority) 
which was just established in July of 2022 that is working to set a 
standard for all tracks to follow.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024
23



FAQ: Traffic
• According to an overview by VHB, a top engineering consultant in the country, 

Route 140 has more than sufficient capacity to handle traffic to and from Bay 
State Park.

• Our operations will be a fraction of the daily traffic on 140 and mostly will 
occur in off-peak commuting times. 

• We will not add to the morning or evening rush hour. 
• Festival days will only be held a few days out of the year.
• A full traffic analysis will occur as part of our permitting process with the city. 
• The proposed Host Community Agreement (HCA) requires us to have an 

approved parking plan each year prior to the festival. 
• Our parking plans include on and off-site locations. 
• There will be an annual review of parking and traffic with the city and 

state. 
• We will pay for peer review by the city.

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 24



FAQ: Business Model 

Baystate Racing, LLC | July 23, 2024 25

Revenue Expenditures
Breeding Program

$350,000/year
Cost: $350,000

Racing & Operations
$300,000

Cost: $1.8 million

Wagering Off Site
$5-8 million

Cost: $1.4 million

Cost of Capital
$28 million

City of Gardner
$500,000

Operations
$3.2 million

Profit

* Numbers are based on public data - they are for illustration purposes only. 

Retirement Program
$150,000/year
Cost: $150,000

Retirement Program
$150,000/year
Cost: $150,000



Thank you

Baystate Racing, LLC

Email: marykate@baystateracingllc.com
Phone: (978) 277-3382
Web: www.baystateracingllc.com

Baystate Racing, LLC | June 17, 2024 26



 
PUBLIC HEARING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

A Public Hearing of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Tuesday evening, July 23, 2024. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 
OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

• WBZ Boston, 1170 Soldiers Field Road, Boston, MA, announced they were recording. 
• Steve Wendell of WGAW Radio, Gardner, MA, announced he was recording from 

Perry Auditorium. 
• Brandon Hughey of 8 Grace Court, Gardner, MA, announced he was recording from 

Perry Auditorium. 
• Ayesha Coaxum, 243 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA, announced she was recording 

form Perry Auditorium. 
 
President Kazinskas read the Public Hearing Notice: 
 
The advertisement for public hearing as described above, would provide as follows: 
Pursuant to G.L. c. 128A, § 13A, the City of Gardner City Council will hold a PUBLIC 
HEARING at 7:30 PM on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, at Gardner City Hall, in the City Council 
Chambers, Room 219, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, MA 01440, with Perry Auditorium at 
Gardner City Hall available as an overflow room should the City Council Chamber reach 
capacity, to hear the matter of Bay State Racing LLC's application for horse racing operation 
at 827 Green Street and specifically the following Vote: “Shall a track of land located 
within the limits of the City of Gardner, now owned by the GAAMHA, Inc., located at 
827 Green Street, comprising approximately 114 acres also identified as assessors lot number 
R42- 21-1 and more particularly described in Worcester Registry of Deeds Book 63792 and 
Page 211 and situated on the easterly side of Route 140, otherwise called Green Street, be 



 
PUBLIC HEARING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

approved as the location of a running horse racing track where race meetings laid out and 
conducted by licensees under M.G.L c. 128A will be held or conducted.” 
 
Anyone wishing to be heard may sign up beginning at 5:30 PM on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, 
through the conclusion of the Public Hearing at the place designated above, and also refer to 
the Gardner City Council Public Hearing Rules & Procedures listed below (Adopted 
3/18/2013). 
 
Interested persons may attend the hearing and give oral comments, or they may submit written 
comments until 4:30 PM on Wednesday, July 24, 2024, by mailing or e-mailing Elizabeth 
Doiron, Assistant City Clerk, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, MA 01440, edoiron@gardner-
ma.gov. 
 
A copy of the submitted application is available for public review at the City Clerk’s Office, 
Room 121, during the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 4:30 P.M. Monday through Thursday, and 8:00 
A.M. and 1:00 P.M. on Fridays, or electronically at: www.gardner-ma.gov. 
 
An Informal Meeting of the Gardner City Council will be held on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, at 
6:00 PM at Gardner City Hall, in the City Council Chambers Room 219, 95 Pleasant St, 
Gardner, MA 01440 for a presentation from Bay State Racing LLC on their application as 
described above, with Perry Auditorium at Gardner City Hall available as an overflow room 
should the City Council Chamber reach capacity. The Informal Meeting notice and packet is 
posted outside of the City Clerk’s Office and electronically at: www.gardner-ma.gov. 
 
GARDNER CITY COUNCIL 
PUBLIC HEARING RULES & PROCEDURES 
Adopted 3/18/2013 
 
1) The City Council President will call the Public Hearing to order and read aloud the Public 
Hearing Notice. 
2) The City Council President will call upon the Petitioner to summarize the proposal. 
3) The City Council President will then ask for anyone wishing to testify to please raise their 
hand, be recognized, then state their name and address for the record. 
4) Comments from any one speaker are limited to 3 minutes. 
5) Testimony must be on the merits of the pending question; otherwise, the testimony will be 
ruled out of order. 
6) The Petitioner shall be granted the opportunity to reply to questions and comments, if 
desired. 
7) Modifications to the proposal must be submitted in writing. 
8) Attendees desiring a second opportunity to present “new” testimony will be given an 

mailto:edoiron@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:edoiron@gardner-ma.gov
http://www.gardner-ma.gov/


 
PUBLIC HEARING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

opportunity if, in the opinion of the Presiding Officer, time allows. Repetitive testimony 
will not be permitted. 
9) The Petitioner(s) and persons offering testimony may submit written comments to the City 
Council President. 
10) Upon completion of testimony, the City Council President shall close or continue the 
Public 
Hearing to a time/place certain by voice vote. 
 
CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 
Elizabeth Doiron, Assistant City Clerk 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Assistant City Clerk Elizabeth Doiron called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors present 
were present including President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, 
David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros. Councillor Craig Cormier was absent. 
 
A quorum was present. 
 
President Kazinskas announced the procedural matters to ensure that each person has a fair 
opportunity to testify. Each person was given a card with a number on it when they signed up 
to offer testimony. This card is considered your ticket and keep it with you. You will be asked 
to provide it at the City Council Chamber when it is your turn to offer testimony. The 
President will call each person by name and card number when their turn to offer testimony 
approaches. If you are seated in Perry Auditorium at that time when it’s your turn to offer 
testimony, your name and card number will be announced, and you will exit Perry Auditorium 
through the door to the right of the stage and go to the Council Chamber. When you arrive at 
the Council Chamber, you will be seated to wait for your turn to offer testimony. If you are 
seated in the Council Chamber at that time, the President wall call your card number at which 
that time you will go to the podium. When you arrive at the podium, you can begin your 
testimony by stating your name, and address for the record and then offer your testimony. 
Each person has 3 minutes maximum to offer their testimony. 
 
The following spoke at the public hearing: 
 

• Michael Nicholson, 131 Crestwood Drive, Gardner, MA 
• Phil Brodeur, 182 Willis Road, Gardner, MA 
• Bruce Spuria, 64 Wheeler Street, Gardner, MA 
• Gerald St. Hilaire, 39 High Street, Gardner, MA 



 
PUBLIC HEARING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

• Dorothy LeBlanc, 208 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Debra Alie, 23 Oriole Street, #2, Gardner, MA 
• Carla Wojtukiewicz, 208 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Timothy St. Jean, 418 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Sheila Heglin, 340 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Paul DeMeo, 9 Willis Road, Gardner, MA 
• Robert Swartz, 268 Coleman Street, Gardner, MA 
• Mia Young, 42 Wasa Street, Gardner, MA 
• Colleen O’Donnell, 21 Washington Street, Apt. 4 
• Brenda Dill, 32 Pelley Street, Gardner, MA  
• Carol Thibodeau, 1353 Green Street, Gardner, MA 
• Elenore Gamarsh, 21 Norman Street, Gardner, MA 
• John Hochard, 332 Matthews Street, Gardner, MA 
• Scott Graves, 69 Lakeview Drive, Gardner, MA 
• Stephen Rockwood, 310 Pearl Street, Gardner, MA 
• Lauren Peabody, 3 Jackson Park, Gardner, MA 
• Carolyn Kamuda, 400 Pleasant Street, Gardner, MA 
• Janna McPherson, 77 Riverside Road, Gardner, MA 
• Corinne Smith, 11 Greenwood Street, Gardner, MA 
• Gardner McPherson, 77 Riverside Road, Gardner, MA 
• Joyce Vincent, 63 Sunrise Lane, Gardner, MA 
• Mary Marsh, 150 Acadia Road, Gardner, MA 
• David Antaya, 444 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Kevin Bailey, 157 Ash Street, Gardner, MA 
• Edmund Pilodeau, 27 Ridgewood Lane, Apt. 24, Gardner, MA 
• Anthony Ruggiero, 429 Parker Street, Gardner, MA 
• Kimberly Blake, 25 Baker Street, Gardner MA 
• Pam LeBlanc, 91 Champaign Street, Gardner, MA 
• Harrison Williams, Jr., 494 Pearl Street, Gardner, MA 
• Amy Hope, 260 Baker Street, Gardner, MA 
• Peter Sargent, 19 Cherry Street, Gardner, MA 
• David Hilman, 114 Rich Street, Gardner, MA 
• Timothy St. Jean, 418 Stone Street, Gardner, MA 
• Barbara Kellogg, 9 Stetson Road, Hawley, MA 
• Robin Prouty, 1096 Barre Road, Gilbertville, MA 
• Paul Umbrello, 102 Stow Street, Waltham, MA 
• Anthony Spadea, 42 Franklin Street, Braintree, MA 
• Stephen Baer, 272 Franklin Street, Belchertown, MA 
• Arlene Brown, 121 Pine Street, Rehoboth, MA 
• David Cramer, 30 Perry Lane, Westin, MA 



 
PUBLIC HEARING OF JULY 23, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

• Hannah Kacian, (address unknown, did not state during hearing) 
• Erin Kiewel, 322 Pearl Street, Gardner, MA 
• John Stefanini of Bay State Racing 

 
The following constituents submitted written testimony and are attached: 
 

• Paul Miller, 39 Sunset Road 
• Angel L. Miller 
• Genevieve Lopez 
• Felicia Howard 
• Galen Lipin 
• Carlee Mills 
• Steve Baer 
• Jodie Wiederkehr 
• Jana M. & Frank Mabee  
• Jean DeMeo 
• Libby Lipin 
• Carla Wojtukiewicz 
• Jason Brown 
• Brenda Dill 
• Pam Youngquist 
• Carolyn Sellar 
• Sheila St. Hilaire 
• Debra Banks 
• Sinead Carter 
• Carolyn Sellars 
• Linda Robertson 
• Jillian Koranda 
• Janna McPherson 

• Russell & Dorothy LeBlanc 
• Anne Lawrence Guyon 
• Karen Elger 
• Leslie Randall 
• Erin Mitchell 
• Ruth Arnone 
• Peg Locke 
• Susie Gray 
• Michael J. Nicholson 
• Jim Kilby 
• Paul DeMeo 
• Carolyn Thibodeau 
• Susan Rousseau 
• Alan Rousseau 
• Robin Prouty 
• Norman Wironen 
• Stephanie Orlow 
• John Stefanini 
• Carolyn Kamuda 
• Mary E. Marsh 
• Tamson Kelley 
• Linda Kachinsky 
• Barbara Kellogg 

 
The Public Hearing concluded at 11:29 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:  



























































































































































































































 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 1 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Special Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Wednesday evening, July 31, 2024. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 6:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Assistant City Clerk Elizabeth Doiron called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors present 
were present including President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig 
Cormier, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros; Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz was absent. 

 
OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 

 
President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 
Paul DeMeo, 9 Willis Road, Gardner, MA, announced he was recording the meeting. 
 
11335 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo Regarding the July 1, 2024 
City Council Meeting. 
 
Councillor George Tyros read out loud for the record the complaint on file. He also stated that 
this is not a valid complaint. The business held in the chamber was clear, concise, and efficient, 
and the overflow room was adequate. Residents were able to watch the meeting live. This 
seems like a matter of difference of opinion and not a violation of open meeting law. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor Dana Heath to allow the Law 
Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 2 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11336 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of David Hilman by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11337 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Laureen Peabody by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor George Tyros to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11338 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Kimberly Blake by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor Calvin Brooks to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11339 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Debra Moore Alie by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone to allow the Law 
Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 3 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

11340 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Judy Tysinger by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11341 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Stephanie Orlow by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Judy Mack, seconded by Councillor George Tyros to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11342 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Ernestina Duda by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Dana Heath to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11343– An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Laurie Meagher by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 4 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

11344 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Darlene Halfrey by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Dana Heath to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11345 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Mary Marsh by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11346 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Eleanor Gamarsh by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor George Tyros to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
11347 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Kayla Halfrey by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Judy Mack to allow the Law 
Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 5 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

11348 – An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed on behalf of Janna McPherson by Paul DeMeo 
Regarding the July 1, 2024 City Council Meeting. 
 
Motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone, seconded by Councillor Dana Heath to allow the 
Law Department to respond to the complaint on behalf of the City Council with the proposed 
response provided in the City Council packet. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
Motion made by Councillor George Tyros, seconded by Councillor Calvin Brooks to adjourn. 
 

The Special Meeting concluded at 6:47 p.m. 
 
10 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 6 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Proposed response from the Law Department for items #11335, 11336, 11337, 11338, 11339, 
11340, 11341, 11342, 11343, 11344, 11345, 11346, 11347, and 11347: 
 
DATE 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
RE: Open Meeting Law Complaints dated 7/15/2024 regarding the July 1, 2024, City Council 
Meeting Reply 
 
Dear         , 
 
The city has received fourteen (14) Open Meeting Law complaints including your Open 
Meeting Law Complaint served on July 15, 2024. Whereas the deadline to respond to your 
Complaint is August 2, 2024, this response to your Complaint is timely. The Complaints all 
present two (2) issues. 
 
The first issue is whether the Open Meeting law was violated by the city’s use of an overflow 
room. The city determined it needed to prepare for a larger crowd. Once this determination 
was made, Attorney General Determination Letters were reviewed as guidance. Two options 
were presented. First, was to locate the public meeting in Perry Auditorium. Alternatively, 
the second option was to use Perry Auditorium as a location to accommodate an overflow 
crowd. City personnel conferred about these options, and it was decided Perry Auditorium 
would be used as an overflow room. We respect the fact that reasonable minds may differ on 
this decision, however, the use of the overflow room has been approved by the Attorney 
General. For these reasons, it is respectfully suggested that the use of a second room to 
accommodate a large crowd does not violate the Open Meeting Law. 
 
Secondly, the Complaints raise an issue with the quality of the audio in the Perry Auditorium. 
The city respectfully disagrees with the assertion that the audio was poor. Staff were assigned 
to assess and set up audio and visual equipment prior to the meeting. The equipment was tested 
to ensure it would perform as expected, permitting those attending to hear and see the meeting. 
The equipment did perform when tested before the meeting by producing a clear audio signal. 
In addition, additional city staff were present during the meeting to assist members of the 
public to ensure they would be able to participate in the Public Meeting. After the meeting 
ended, city personnel who attended the meeting in Perry Auditorium reported that its content 
was clear and that the speakers were able to be understood. The first time a complaint was 
received by the city was when the public hearing was posted for the vote on the underlying 
matter. 
 



 
SPECIAL MEETING OF JULY 31, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Page 7 of 7 
 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

The number of complaints received by the city in connection with this matter was concerning 
as we have had a public hearing scheduled on July 23, 2024, and the overflow room was set up 
in a similar manner. However, the city has taken additional steps to confirm compliance with 
the requirements of the Open Meeting Law by ensuring the audio-visual equipment in Perry 
Auditorium will allow those in attendance to both see and hear the meeting. This included 
retesting the equipment, adding a test at the beginning of the meeting, having city employees 
monitor the quality of the audio, have the same people reporting to the Council and suspending 
the meeting when technical difficulties occurred. Finally, the July 23, 2024, meeting in Perry 
Auditorium was recorded. To listen to the recording of the July 23, 2024 meeting please use 
this link https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1SIzP1boCAWabTA4tz2E6rkedN2caiAZ-
?usp=sharing. It is respectfully suggested that this recording exemplifies the experience that 
attendees had in Perry Auditorium on July 1, 2024. 
 
It is for these reasons that the meeting of July 1, 2024, did not violate the Open Meeting 
Law. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Cc: Michael Nicholson, Mayor 
Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 
Elizabeth Doiron, Assistant City Clerk 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office 
Elizabeth Kazinskas, City Council President 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1SIzP1boCAWabTA4tz2E6rkedN2caiAZ-?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1SIzP1boCAWabTA4tz2E6rkedN2caiAZ-?usp=sharing


     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

September 26, 2024 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of Valuations Changes and 

Qualified Comparable Sales – LA3 

Dear Madam President and Councilors,  

Following the close of the Fiscal Year, the City Assessor’s Office conducts a statutorily required 

review of the change in valuations of different classifications of properties based on certain 

qualifying arms-length transactions that took place in the real estate market two (2) years prior.  

The certified valuation changes based on these sales provided the following changes: 

Single Family Residential (101): +5.02% 

Condominium (102): +11.99% 

Mobile Home (103) and Multiple Houses on one property (109): +11.90% 

Two Family (104): +8.47% 

Three Family (105): +28.51% 

4 to 8 Units (111), More than 8 Units (112): +19.77% 

Developable Land (130), Potentially Developable Land (131), and Undeveloped Land (132): 

+4.65%

The certified report and the certified qualifying sales are attached to this correspondence for your 

information.  

This is the first part of the process of eventually setting the City’s tax rate for the current fiscal 

year. The subsequent steps include the certification of values (LA4) and the certification of new 

growth (LA13), leading up to the submission of the City’s Tax Recapitualtion Sheet and the vote 

of the Council to set the classification of taxation for the fiscal year.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11395



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE Gardner

DIVISION OF LOCAL SERVICES CITY

Certification Valuation Summary Sheet - Fiscal Year 2025

Printed on: 6/21/2024 8:39:47 AM Page 1 of 1

Non Time-Trended Sales

 

Average Proposed Value of Valid Sales

Class Analyzed 101 102 103, 109 104 105 111-112 130-132

Sample Size 138 27 5 16 20 17 2

Average Proposed Assessment 337,554 217,948 272,660 286,306 418,790 485,512 78,450

Average Sale Price 357,757 231,839 280,700 303,181 444,125 535,876 82,500

Agg Ratio 0.94 0.94 0.97 0.94 0.94 0.91 0.95

Note: Low median aggregate ratios (Agg Ratio row) may indicate low assessments on the highest valued properties in that class.

 

Average Proposed Value of All Sales FY 2024 Vs FY 2025

Class Analyzed 101 102 103, 109 104 105 111-112 130-132

Sample Size 180 33 9 30 21 23 21

Average Proposed Assessment 337,272 211,942 333,522 294,893 421,943 457,635 32,152

Average Assessment 321,135 189,258 298,056 271,877 328,324 382,091 30,724

Agg % change 5.02 11.99 11.90 8.47 28.51 19.77 4.65

Aggregate percent change (Agg % Change row) for all sales should be compared to the average percent change for arms-length sales in that class.

* The above statistics excludes any change in the value of more than 50.00% and the following excluded NAL codes { 'D', 'O', 'P', 'G', 'M', 'R' } (non-legacy) and { 'O', 'P', 'R' } (for legacy).

These statistics may be used only to approximate the revaluation effect on the values since any changes due to 
building improvements, class changes, subdivisions, etc. have not been specifically identified.

Approved 
By:

Mary Oliver Approved 
On:

06/21/2024

11395



Jur Code Sale Date Parcel Id Seller Buyer St Num St Alpha St Name

Current Yr Use 

Code

Current Yr NAL 

Code Sale Price Prior Assessed Value Current Assessed Value TT Sales Current Yr ASR Current Yr AV/TSP TA Flag Outlier Appraisal or Sale Comment Location Id

103 3/16/2022 M27_25_15_ WHALEN KENNETH OLIVERIA, JOSELINO and  APARECIDA 42 VERNON ST 109 350,000 401,400 381,900 350,000 1.09 1.09 M_159291_925260

103 3/31/2022 M17_19_1_ LIVING ENTERPRISES INC. WEST MINI STORAGE, LLC 0 MANCA DR 441 37,000 34,400 35,500 37,000 0.96 0.96 M_159019_923321

103 5/13/2022 M22_5_44_ MARCUS DEAN MILLENNIUM HOLDING GROUP, LLC 25 MAIN ST 340 400,000 402,300 390,300 400,000 0.98 0.98

2024 MTG FROM NORTH CENTRAL MA 

DEVELOPMEN CORP $250,000

2023 MTG FROM JEANNE DARC CREDIT UNION 

FOR $1,912,500 M_159354_925072

103 5/31/2022 M27_17_7_ WEST STREET SERVICE CENTER 240 WEST STREET LLC 240 WEST ST 332 375,000 363,100 377,200 375,000 1.01 1.01 M_158863_925589

103 5/31/2022 M27_18_3_ HARP and  PHOENIX LLC ATTAH WILLIAM AMOAKO 131 ASH ST 109 379,500 342,900 362,000 379,500 0.95 0.95 M_158469_925491

103 7/26/2022 W12_11_13_ MILLER RONALD L and  CELESTE M DELACRUZ GISELL 12 MAYNARD ST 013 280,000 221,100 239,500 280,000 0.86 0.86 M_159066_923931

103 8/1/2022 M17_9_5_ MORSE DANA D TRSTE 461 WEST BROADWAY LLC 461 W BROADWAY 400 750,000 754,100 820,600 750,000 1.09 1.09 M_161138_922563

103 8/31/2022 M22_5_17_ DONDERO JONATHAN F TRUSTEE VIBE 5 REAL ESTATE LLC 33 PLEASANT ST 325 195,000 186,400 206,100 195,000 1.06 1.06 M_159320_925077

103 10/5/2022 R17_9_10_ GFA FEDERAL CREDIT UNION M M2 HOLDINGS LLC 67 PEARSON BLVD 340 1,995,000 1,841,100 1,990,400 1,995,000 1.00 1.00

CERT:  18879, BK 95, PG 79

CTRL #243327 13905 DOC #00120947

MTG FROM EASTERN BANK $1,170,000 M_160454_923483

103 10/7/2022 R27_16_8_

MORGAN KAREN A and  TIMOTHY J 

DYMEK TRSTES OMOROGIEVA PATIENCE E 117 CENTRAL ST 031 490,000 498,100 489,800 490,000 1.00 1.00 M_159701_925504

103 10/14/2022 R17_18_17_ ONE TWENTY NINE SOUTH PREMIER INSULATION LLC 129 S MAIN ST 401 250,000 240,100 241,900 250,000 0.97 0.97 M_160500_923774

103 1/4/2023 R17_16_10_ COCCI WILLIAM D TRSTE JEBH LLC 242 W BROADWAY 326 C 970,000 858,100 987,200 970,000 1.02 1.02

KITCHEN EQUIPMENT, COOLERS, FREEZERS AND 

EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE INCLUDED, PER MLS 

73030956 MTG RECD FROM TD BANK $970,000 M_159823_923464

103 1/5/2023 M22_15_40_ HOWLEY, WILLIAM GREASLEY MICHAEL and  JACOB 16 KNOWLTON ST 105 420,000 293,300 376,500 420,000 0.90 0.90 M_159281_924796

103 1/5/2023 M22_3_39_ CAPELLAN YAMILKA C TORRES CANDELARIO THARY J MERCEDES 13 JEAN ST 105 385,000 256,400 332,100 385,000 0.86 0.86 M_158739_925155

103 1/6/2023 X17_2_100_15 05 DOUCKAS CODY J MURPHY JAMES A 65 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 194,000 177,600 199,100 194,000 1.03 1.03 M_163324_924244

103 1/9/2023 M27_10_6_ DIVERSIFIED INVESTMENT INTL LLC CASSIDY KEENAN 68 ABBOTT ST 104 U 360,000 268,000 288,300 360,000 0.80 0.80 M_159287_925677

103 1/9/2023 M27_20_12_ TOMER FRANK I GRIGAS ROBERT J 125 PARK ST 101 270,000 254,700 270,400 270,000 1.00 1.00 M_159222_925908

103 1/10/2023 X17_2_100_01 02 HENDLEY CAMERON WUOTI AMANDA 20 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 204,750 177,600 199,100 204,750 0.97 0.97 M_163187_924100

103 1/11/2023 M22_19_21A_154 MATSON HOMES INC CASEY ANN 154 GREENWOOD ST 102 370,000 369,900 355,300 370,000 0.96 0.96 M_159024_924542

103 1/11/2023 R22_1_12_ REID MICHAEL D JR and  SORDANA ETIENNEDAHOMMEY NIXON 111 MAPLE ST 101 310,000 282,200 298,600 310,000 0.96 0.96 M_159714_925127

103 1/12/2023 M22_3_30_ MADERA JAMES J JR AKINS CHRISTOPHER TRAMELL 15 A ST 101 295,000 259,800 274,800 295,000 0.93 0.93 M_158447_925293

103 1/12/2023 R22_13_12_ BRUSO CARL E III EMERICK CHRISTOPHER DAVID 106 RICH ST 101 288,000 246,200 263,400 288,000 0.91 0.91 M_158039_927319

103 1/12/2023 X17_2_100_06 01 NOVELLI MICHELE DIGIOVANNI EDWARD J III 33 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 215,000 189,800 223,200 215,000 1.04 1.04 M_159068_922885

103 1/13/2023 M32_24_5_ DOOLEY JOHN W JR ROCHA ROQUE JOSE GUEDES 81 STUART ST 101 155,000 220,900 158,600 155,000 1.02 1.02 M_158632_925192

103 1/13/2023 R12_3_30_ RUGGIERI BRIAN SUTTON YOLANDA 41 CLAIRMONT ST 101 340,000 320,900 332,400 340,000 0.98 0.98 M_159103_924232

103 1/17/2023 H37_10_14_ EADY PERCY LAKEVIEW LOAN SERVICING LLC 188 FERNWOOD DR 101 L 274,813 345,200 352,700 274,813 1.28 1.28 M_158985_925223

103 1/17/2023 R12_10_18_ KYLE M MORNEAU MILLER TODD 64 HIGH ST 104 237,000 288,400 237,100 237,000 1.00 1.00 M_159027_926375

103 1/18/2023 M22_24_20_

FREMONT HOME LOAN TRUST 2006 

E TOSO JORGE 43 HARVARD ST 101 S 191,500 270,400 314,500 191,500 1.64 1.64 M_160317_924661

103 1/18/2023 M22_4_64_ MAILLET WINIFRED SMITH ASHER 61 WEST ST 101 H 200,000 247,600 268,100 200,000 1.34 1.34

ESTATE SALE BY REMAINDERMEN PROBATE 

22P4027EA M_159339_925498

103 1/18/2023 M27_20_8_ SHANE F DANDY MELANSON AIMEE 156 VERNON ST 101 272,000 221,600 235,200 272,000 0.86 0.86 M_160803_922793

103 1/19/2023 M32_1_100_15 02 ROCKET MORTGAGE LLC PAQUET KEITH 71 CENTURY WAY 102 S 156,000 199,600 227,100 156,000 1.46 1.46 M_163251_924178

103 1/20/2023 M27_22_31_ U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION DREAM HOME INVESTMENTS LLC 30 BATES RD 101 S 138,000 243,600 251,300 138,000 1.82 1.82 M_160274_922846

103 1/23/2023 M12_4_27_ BEDARD EUGENE H and  CHERYL A IOSUA MICHELE PATRICIA 50 SAWYER ST 101 335,000 335,900 360,300 335,000 1.08 1.08 M_158971_926626

103 1/30/2023 M32_19_10_ HARTFORD JOHN A HARTFORD GUTHRIE R 416 PARK ST 101 A 220,000 269,700 286,000 220,000 1.30 1.30 M_163258_924119

103 1/30/2023 X17_2_100_03 03 MAILLET MONIQUE M SHEA RICHARD 23 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 U 185,000 180,600 202,300 185,000 1.09 1.09 M_158468_925241

103 2/3/2023 M27_20_17_ NEWVUE LIABILITIES TO ASSETS INC THEBEAU DOMINIC CHARLES 58 OSGOOD ST 101 W 307,500 288,900 313,100 307,500 1.02 1.02

AFFORDABLE HOUSING COVENANT FOR 7 YEARS - 

INCOME & OCCUPANCY M_159182_925739

103 2/3/2023 R17_14_9_ CHRISTOPHER R ANDERSON ANDERSON CHRISTOPHER R 172 SUMMER ST 104 A 30,000 272,100 286,000 30,000 9.53 9.53 CHRISTOPHER BOUGHT OUT CHELSEY M_159284_925497

103 2/7/2023 M27_14_4_ ICOBELLI JESSICA A

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE 

ASSOCIATION 156 PARK ST 101 L 248,897 357,600 397,800 248,897 1.60 1.60 DOCKET #00011304 M_160179_925840

103 2/7/2023 R27_13_8_ LAPRISE ALYX E WALKER ANNE C 42 JAMES ST 101 310,000 301,100 318,000 310,000 1.03 1.03 M_160668_923585

103 2/10/2023 M27_22_59_ PRICE BETHANY A WELSH KENYA 9 WASA ST 101 357,500 339,700 348,300 357,500 0.97 0.97 M_163280_924112

103 2/10/2023 X17_2_100_02 04 NUTTER TIMOTHY ASHMAN PATRICIA 21 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 220,000 183,600 205,400 220,000 0.93 0.93 M_158454_924882

103 2/14/2023 R12_14_11_ SERGI SIMONA M CLARK SEAN M 38 SUNSET RD 101 295,000 243,100 257,600 295,000 0.87 0.87 M_160727_922464

103 2/14/2023 W17_25_17B_

BOUDREAU KARLA M, PETERS 

KRISTEN J CHAPPELL SHELBY BROOK 547 PARTRIDGE ST 101 230,000 245,000 253,500 230,000 1.10 1.10 M_159422_924579

103 2/15/2023 M22_20_57_ EJIRO CONSTRUCTION CO LLC CALESCO GROUP LLC 261 MAIN ST 101 N 175,000 246,500 267,400 175,000 1.53 1.53

PURCHASED UNFINISHED MLS 73062491

COMMON RIGHT OF WAY: 10FT WIDE, CENTER 

LINE IS SOUTHERN BOUNDRY (W LINE TO MAIN 

ST) M_162501_923114

103 2/16/2023 M22_7_52_

NASH ROBERT A JR and  GERMAINE 

M

MATOS ATAMIAN JUSTIN GRIFFIN 

and  SARAH LOIS 44 LEAMY ST 101 330,000 257,000 270,500 330,000 0.82 0.82 M_159612_924812

103 2/17/2023 R22_6_25_ THERESA  D GAGNE BURGADO YOLANDA 208 PINE ST 104 H 285,000 284,400 304,600 285,000 1.07 1.07

WORCESTER COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET:  

22P2501EA M_162007_923895

103 2/17/2023 W17_4_11_ CATTEL, JOSEPH A. JR.

HANDY SERVICES PLUS 

CONSTRUCTION, REMODELING and  

RENOVATIONS LLC 171 SAUNDERS ST 130 100,000 89,600 98,200 100,000 0.98 0.98 M_157614_928170

103 2/21/2023 M27_17_49_ POULIOT STEVEN P ROSS KOLBY ELIZABETH 31 EUCLID ST 101 H 255,000 288,600 292,200 255,000 1.15 1.15

FIDUCIARY DEED - WORCESTER PROBATE COURT 

DOCKET: WO22P3903EA M_158513_925641

103 2/24/2023 R22_11_24_ ANDERSON MARCUS O and  IVETTE SMITH ERIK MATTHEW 141 WASHINGTON ST 101 304,900 292,300 307,600 304,900 1.01 1.01 M_157784_925758

103 2/24/2023 W37_25_6_ HERR FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST MEADOWBROOK VILLAGE II LLC 747 PEARL ST 101 450,000 412,500 429,300 450,000 0.95 0.95 M_159690_924685

103 2/27/2023 R22_7_5_ CC HOMES LLC NZEADIBE CHUKWUEMEKA 105 GRANT ST 104 289,900 280,900 299,900 289,900 1.03 1.03 M_159844_924902

103 2/28/2023 H27_15_2_ AG DREAM FLIP LLC FORSYTHE KRISTA 45 PRINCETON ST 101 360,000 346,200 362,800 360,000 1.01 1.01 M_162372_927471

103 2/28/2023 R12_14_40_ SANDERS LAURA A RICARDO TRAVIS 15 SUNSET RD 101 312,000 266,500 297,400 312,000 0.95 0.95 M_160716_922544

103 3/1/2023 M27_20_100_03 03 MENAKER YURY ARCOT RAJ KUMAR 82 LAKE ST 102 199,900 167,700 175,200 199,900 0.88 0.88 M_161458_924997

103 3/3/2023 W22_2_51_ AMNF22 LLC YOUNG DEVIN A 31 ASHLEY DR 101 388,000 319,000 347,200 388,000 0.89 0.89 M_159411_925450

103 3/8/2023 R12_4_15_ GRAND SOLUTIONS LLC VILLEGAS JOHN RODRIGUEZ 36 UNION ST 105 505,000 466,600 551,400 505,000 1.09 1.09 M_160464_923000

103 3/13/2023 W22_1_13_ KIOSSES JAMES T ALBERT JENNIFER MARY 2 CRESTWOOD DR 101 H 375,000 407,900 415,400 375,000 1.11 1.11

WORCESTER COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET: 

WO21P3554EA - ESTATE SALE M_161104_925030

103 3/14/2023 X17_2_100_21 01 NEKEISHA HUBERT MILKOWSKI MAXWELL 124 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 215,000 191,900 221,700 215,000 1.03 1.03 M_163156_924409

103 3/15/2023 H37_10_24_ CAROLYN LACIVITA LUTAAYA COLEB K and  REBEKAH 245 BROOKSIDE DR 101 430,000 432,800 445,800 430,000 1.04 1.04

W/EASEMENT TO MA ELECTRIC - OVERHEAD & 

UNDERGROUND POWER LINES

MLS #73071837 M_157907_928170

103 3/17/2023 M27_4_4_ RUSSELL ZACHARY P MG RESIDENTIAL LLC 310 PARK ST 109 350,000 312,500 334,400 350,000 0.96 0.96 M_161887_924039

103 3/17/2023 R27_3_16_

MCGEE ROBERT G JR and  MARYANN 

J CIVIL JOSEPH ERNST 213 WOODLAND AVE 101 300,000 249,300 268,500 300,000 0.90 0.90 M_159133_926262

103 3/17/2023 W17_3_4_ GILLMAN JOHN H LILLIE BENJAMIN D and  SHELBY B 170 SAUNDERS ST 101 385,000 370,000 382,500 385,000 0.99 0.99 M_160110_926181

103 3/23/2023 M22_4_57_

HUHTALA OIL AND TEMPLETON 

GARAGE ABF REALTY LLC 4 OAK ST 334 C 1,100,000 593,100 613,400 1,100,000 0.56 0.56

SOLD WITH THE BUSINESS.

$301M RECD MTG M_158226_924980

103 3/24/2023 M22_6_9_ STROM LEO R and  LINDA G BERKSHIRE PROPERTY BUYERS LLC 446 PARKER ST 104 L 38,200 272,800 306,700 38,200 8.03 8.03

HSBC NATIONAL BANK USA - PASS THROUGH 

FORECLOSURE M_159002_925166

103 3/27/2023 M22_5_22_ MARCUS DEAN

GARDNER DOWNTOWN CROSSING 

LLC 4 PARKER ST 031 O 500,000 409,000 851,200 500,000 1.70 1.70

2023 121620, REGISTERED LAND CERT 18952, BK 

95 PG 152 

FY 25 BLDG UC M_159330_925145

103 3/28/2023 M22_10_32B_ SARGENT PETER T

DOWNTOWN GARDNER HOLDINGS 

LLC 82 MAIN ST 930 E 115,000 0 92,900 115,000 0.81 0.81 M_160524_923290

103 3/28/2023 M22_15_28_ LUCCHETTI NANCY 8GK LLC 50 KNOWLTON ST 325 198,900 122,300 141,700 198,900 0.71 0.71

IDENTICAL DEED FILED SAME DAY 68960/170

NO RECD FINANCING M_160399_922614

103 3/28/2023 R12_13_9_ ARENAS INVESTMENTS LLC BENCOSME ANGEL 3 ROUVILLE AVE 101 400,000 381,000 395,200 400,000 0.99 0.99 M_159428_925010

103 3/28/2023 R17_19_32_ SANTANDER BANK WOOD JEFFREY 67 S MAIN ST 101 S 105,000 186,600 207,000 105,000 1.97 1.97 M_159170_924797

103 3/29/2023 M22_10_32_ SARGENT PETER T

DOWNTOWN GARDNER HOLDINGS 

LLC 82 MAIN ST 340 T 115,000 204,500 191,300 115,000 1.66 1.66

86-96 MAIN IS ALSO BOMBACI.

GRANTS RIGHT OF WAYS AND SUBJECT TO RIGHT

OF WAYS (PLAN 324/31)

MTG FROM JEANNE DARC CREDIT UNION

$86,250 M_159409_924992

103 3/31/2023 M12_23_12_ SEBUNYA HAMUZA GYAGENDA MAYANJA MED 6 WHITNEY ST 101 440,000 389,700 412,900 440,000 0.94 0.94 M_158533_925554

103 3/31/2023 M27_11_13_ HOLM JANICE L LEIGHTON KENNETH ALLEN 7 SUOMI RD 101 400,000 346,600 360,700 400,000 0.90 0.90 M_159087_926259

103 3/31/2023 M27_4_8_ COLEGROVE INGRID LANNI NICHOLAS J and  JACK A 47 STUART ST 104 425,000 298,700 324,300 425,000 0.76 0.76 M_160012_925240

103 4/3/2023 M22_19_21A_150 MATSON HOMES INC WILKE CREIGHTON and  MEGAN 150 GREENWOOD ST 102 376,000 369,900 355,300 376,000 0.94 0.94 M_163305_924208

103 4/3/2023 R22_19_10_ COBB SHERRY N MALE ROBERT 29 FAIRLAWN AVE 101 437,000 446,800 413,900 437,000 0.95 0.95 M_160455_924605

103 4/5/2023 X17_2_100_11 06 MILLER STEVEN A ZHENG LEI 53 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 220,000 189,400 221,700 220,000 1.01 1.01 M_159020_924549

103 4/6/2023 M27_17_52_ WILLIAM HAY REAL EST INC ANMAR REALTY TRUST 237 WEST ST 325 200,000 173,800 185,900 200,000 0.93 0.93 M_158738_924395

MassDOR - Massachusetts Department of Revenue

Division of Local Services

Sales Report

11395



103 4/6/2023 R22_2_22_ ALVARADO GILBERTO AVERY LAWRENCE J JR 82 SCHOOL ST 101 423,500 340,200 357,000 423,500 0.84 0.84 M_158039_927319

103 4/7/2023 M27_24_25_ APEX ACQUISITIONS LLC GOMEZ EDWIN AMILCAR 30 GRAHAM ST 111 490,000 388,200 460,600 490,000 0.94 0.94 M_160483_924157

103 4/7/2023 M27_25_22_ DEVEAU JOHN A GAVIMENI ANISH 45 GRAHAM ST 104 220,000 260,900 192,300 220,000 0.87 0.87 M_159713_924493

103 4/7/2023 M32_1_100_15 02 PAQUET KEITH MCCONE TIMOTHY JR 71 CENTURY WAY 102 235,000 199,600 227,100 235,000 0.97 0.97 M_159236_925297

103 4/7/2023 R22_24_9_ FORTUNATA LLC JEOB LLC 394 ELM ST 031 C 640,000 469,500 539,600 640,000 0.84 0.84

JOSEPH O'BRIEND PC (DENTIST) PURCHASED THE 

BUILDING HIS OFFICE IS IN...ALL EQUIPMENT 

INCLUDED. M_159187_925257

103 4/11/2023 W12_17_7_

HEWETT MEGHAN A and  MATTHEW 

R MORAN DEONNA 28 LAKEVIEW DR 101 325,000 269,100 280,500 325,000 0.86 0.86 M_160411_925457

103 4/11/2023 X17_2_100_05 04 DIGNAN LAURENCE P and  LYNNE A FERNANDES LIVIA MARTINS DE LIMA 29 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 220,000 177,600 199,100 220,000 0.91 0.91 M_161583_922239

103 4/12/2023 R22_16_29_ LOGAN STREET LLC CENTRAL CITY PROPERTIES LLC 193 LOGAN ST 104 R 230,000 280,700 299,200 230,000 1.30 1.30 M_163294_924144

103 4/12/2023 R27_23_10_ ALBERT H BARBER ALVAREZ MARIO 125 PEARL ST 105 510,000 401,600 518,100 510,000 1.02 1.02 M_162038_926427

103 4/13/2023 W32_24_6_ NONNI JULIE MINEZZI CYNTHIA 514 PEARL ST 101 330,000 344,500 367,800 330,000 1.11 1.11 M_158628_922113

103 4/14/2023 M22_18_26_ COLLINS RICHARD P M3 INNOVATIONS INC 190 WATERFORD ST 104 O 165,000 270,100 367,100 165,000 2.22 2.22 PERMITS AFTER SALE - FLIP M_156155_928287

103 4/20/2023 C37_5_18B_ POIRIER LEO J and  THERESA E BUSHEE JOHN W 133 OTTER RIVER RD 101 450,000 464,200 460,600 450,000 1.02 1.02 M_159647_922889

103 4/20/2023 R22_16_14_ SCRIBNER PROPERTIES, LLC. BAPTISTE MACKENZY 341 PINE ST 101 305,000 277,900 292,000 305,000 0.96 0.96 M_155925_928410

103 4/21/2023 C37_4_13_ VENTOLIERI MARK A M3 INNOVATIONS INC 193 OTTER RIVER RD 101 O 110,000 267,700 332,300 110,000 3.02 3.02 PERMITS AFTER SALE - FLIP M_159648_924457

103 4/21/2023 R22_8_11_

LEGER THERESA R and  C A RAHAIM 

TRSTES STASHYN DONNA LEE 32 RICH ST 101 325,000 265,300 284,500 325,000 0.88 0.88 M_160304_924858

103 4/24/2023 R12_1_3_ 25 THEODORE DRIVE LLC MILL STREET PROPERTY LLC 186 MILL ST 377 90,000 126,100 85,900 90,000 0.95 0.95 M_157862_925646

103 4/26/2023 H27_20_2_ JMRENDA HOLDINGS LLC

EIGHTY EIGHT LAMBERT AVENUE 

NOMINEE TRUST 70 PRINCETON ST 101 305,000 269,900 292,700 305,000 0.96 0.96 M_158219_925146

103 4/26/2023 R27_25_22_ CALISIOTTI ANA LETICIA BAILEY CHRISTOPHER STEPHEN 55 BETTY SPRING RD 101 345,000 350,900 356,300 345,000 1.03 1.03 M_159237_924336

103 4/27/2023 M22_25_3_ MICHAEL PAVLOSKY REED CALVIN 28 FORD ST 101 306,000 268,100 284,200 306,000 0.93 0.93 M_160290_923699

103 4/28/2023 M22_1_29_ ROY JESSICA RAUX TREVOR R 28 POND ST 101 260,000 285,300 296,100 260,000 1.14 1.14 M_160472_924078

103 4/28/2023 R17_13_31_ SANDOVAL STEPHEN P SANDOVAL NATHANIEL P 30 TRACEY ST 101 A 90,000 269,600 281,500 90,000 3.13 3.13 M_160370_924126

103 5/1/2023 H37_5_16_ SILVA, JEFFERSON B. CAMARA ADENIS MIRANDA 291 BROOKSIDE DR 101 438,000 394,600 434,300 438,000 0.99 0.99 M_160977_925282

103 5/2/2023 R17_3_15_ UNION SQUARE LLC LCWW GARDNER LLC 29 UNION SQ 326 376,200 423,200 432,300 376,200 1.15 1.15 M_157863_928434

103 5/2/2023 R17_4_7A_ KYMALAINEN REALTY TRUST LCWW GARDNER LLC 0 PEARSON BLVD 392 38,800 43,500 36,800 38,800 0.95 0.95

ALSO PURCHASED 29 UNION SQ (AND 43 UNION 

SQ--ON SAME PARCEL), R22-23-22 M_157506_928465

103 5/2/2023 X17_2_100_03 01 DUVAL MICHAEL E HOME PLACE LLC 23 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 220,000 177,600 208,700 220,000 0.95 0.95 M_163256_924109

103 5/3/2023 R12_15_37_ JOHNSON JAMES D DRAPEAU ROBERT P 6 METCALF ST 101 290,000 255,900 274,600 290,000 0.95 0.95 M_158993_926339

103 5/4/2023 H37_4_12_ RICHARD ELLEN RICHARD BRAYDEN 359 LEO DR 101 H 320,000 350,100 362,700 320,000 1.13 1.13

FAMILY SALE?  DIVORCE, PER SALES 

QUESTIONNAIRE M_160584_922316

103 5/4/2023 M32_24_4_ ZINKEVICH JAMES GORMAN DAVID 76 STUART ST 103 H 150,000 152,600 196,700 150,000 1.31 1.31 #WO22P3434EA M_160999_922477

103 5/5/2023 R12_19_16_ GAULZETTI BRUCE P MILLER RONALD L 38 DONNA AVE 101 275,000 288,900 306,800 275,000 1.12 1.12 M_160071_924109

103 5/8/2023 R17_2_17_ VIVANCO CLAUDIA THORNELL DAVID 55 CONANT ST 101 335,000 316,500 338,000 335,000 1.01 1.01 M_158226_924980

103 5/12/2023 M22_6_9_ BERKSHIRE PROPERTY BUYERS LLC EMPIRE PLASTERING CORP 446 PARKER ST 104 U 160,000 272,800 306,700 160,000 1.92 1.92 M_158739_925071

103 5/12/2023 R12_15_33_ D ONFRO MICHAEL A ARGOLLO LUIS ANTONIO VALVERDE 146 HIGH ST 101 301,000 280,900 295,100 301,000 0.98 0.98 M_158600_925808

103 5/15/2023 M27_13_36_ BROWER CYNTHIA A and  ROBERT M ANDREWS LAUREN M 111 PELLEY ST 101 332,500 268,800 283,800 332,500 0.85 0.85 M_159130_926096

103 5/16/2023 M17_15_100_04 02 HICKS LESLIE A MARTEL EMILY A 147 PINEWOOD DR 102 342,000 308,800 325,200 342,000 0.95 0.95 M_160999_922560

103 5/17/2023 M22_1_25_ JALUTKEWICZ THOMAS P PARMENTER JAMES S 15 ROCK ST 104 O 153,000 263,500 351,200 153,000 2.30 2.30 DONE WITHOUT PERMITS M_161600_922145

103 5/17/2023 M22_3_4_ WASHBURN JASON JIRI LLC 282 PARKER ST 101 O 110,000 216,900 283,700 110,000 2.58 2.58 M_159368_923481

103 5/17/2023 M27_9_29_ MERCIER PATRICK

KACEE PROPERTIES   LILLY 

THORTNON 7 STUART ST 101 385,000 357,400 367,100 385,000 0.95 0.95 M_158242_925079

103 5/17/2023 W12_22_11_ EVAN BEDELL RIVAS GUSTAVO E LOPEZ 50 LAKEVIEW DR 101 390,000 343,800 347,200 390,000 0.89 0.89 M_159676_924620

103 5/19/2023 R27_19_23_

HOMESTEAD REAL ESTATE 

INVESTORS SOUZA CODY JAMES 152 PEARL ST 111 580,000 499,000 593,800 580,000 1.02 1.02 M_159893_924383

103 5/22/2023 R22_16_40_ TEDSTONE RONALD and  KEANG BUDZINSKI JASON D 10 JAY ST 101 300,000 269,300 288,900 300,000 0.96 0.96 M_160482_925532

103 5/22/2023 R22_22_2_ WALTER CANALES PETRONE CELESTE M 456 MAIN ST 101 335,000 271,200 323,000 335,000 0.96 0.96 M_157778_928502

103 5/23/2023 H37_5_3_ VINH QUOC PHAN

TOUSSAINT ADISSON and  

TOUSSAINT HARLETTE 314 BROOKSIDE DR 101 435,000 427,900 441,200 435,000 1.01 1.01 M_157962_926394

103 5/24/2023 M22_10_1_ CFI PROPCO 2 LLC OBSIDIAN ML 6 LLC 130 MAIN ST 334 C 4,862,764 1,255,600 1,459,300 4,862,764 0.30 0.30

SALE LEASE BACK  2020? 

NO RECD MTG M_159763_923657

103 5/24/2023 M22_9_1_ RAJ TIRUR LLC MHG 6 FUND LLC 41 GREENWOOD ST 111 O 445,000 417,700 497,700 445,000 1.12 1.12 PERMITS AFTER SALE M_159762_923634

103 5/24/2023 M32_21_8_ CORMIER ROGER and  NICOLE MARYYANEK ARLENE 40 ACADIA RD 103 109,000 81,100 96,700 109,000 0.89 0.89 M_160295_923490

103 5/24/2023 R17_11_22_ TIMPANY CROSSROADS LLC CHAIR CITY REALTY TRUST 248 TIMPANY BLVD 103 A 20,000 98,600 117,800 20,000 5.89 5.89

TIMPANY CROSSROADS IS AMY FANTONI 

(SALVADORE - SISTER) M_159456_924887

103 5/24/2023 R17_11_23_ TIMPANY CROSSROADS LLC CHAIR CITY REALTY TRUST 254 TIMPANY BLVD 101 A 155,000 271,100 283,500 155,000 1.83 1.83

TIMPANY CROSSROADS IS AMY FANTONI 

(SALVADORE - SISTER) M_158876_924954

103 5/25/2023 M22_3_16_ MICHAEL J GRACIALE JR ORTIZ JESSICA 313 PARKER ST 104 U 430,000 347,500 377,100 430,000 0.88 0.88 M_158451_924978

103 5/25/2023 M22_7_32_ CITY OF GARDNER BETTEZ DAVID 14 LEAMY ST 130 E 51,100 101,200 98,200 51,100 1.92 1.92 M_158646_925112

103 5/25/2023 M27_23_23_ CITY OF GARDNER BETTEZ DAVID 177 WEST ST 130 E 21,100 55,300 58,000 21,100 2.75 2.75 M_160876_925897

103 5/25/2023 R17_18_9_ BOUCHARD ELAINE R TRSTE GUERARD THOMAS D 13 TRAVERS ST 400 U 250,000 264,000 347,800 250,000 1.39 1.39

PRIVATE SALE & BUNDLED W/SALE OF BUSINESS 

(PER NEW OWNER SALES QUEST)

NO RECD MTG M_158709_925430

103 5/25/2023 W27_16_100_10 01 FLANAGAN KEVIN M JR GIFFORD SAMUEL 104 RIDGEWOOD LN 102 U 125,000 120,200 124,000 125,000 0.99 0.99 M_158921_924992

103 5/26/2023 X17_2_100_14 06 LAHEY DANIEL DARTON BIANCA 63 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 223,000 177,600 208,700 223,000 0.94 0.94 M_163285_924228

103 5/30/2023 M22_4_24_ CITY OF GARDNER CHEUNG KA 0 PARKER ST 132 E 35,000 6,400 7,100 35,000 0.20 0.20 M_163304_924268

103 5/30/2023 M22_9_17_ Mand T INVESTMENTS LLC MHG 6 FUND LLC 32 GREENWOOD ST 111 630,000 493,900 589,300 630,000 0.94 0.94 M_159036_925120

103 5/31/2023 M22_24_35_ PFERSICH JAMES G and  NANCY A WHEELER LYNN REGINA 56 HARVARD ST 101 320,000 255,800 271,000 320,000 0.85 0.85 M_158888_924864

103 5/31/2023 M22_3_7_ WHEELER LYNN R AVILES LYDAMARIS IRIZARRY 292 PARKER ST 101 250,000 180,300 231,200 250,000 0.92 0.92 M_159050_924252

103 5/31/2023 M22_9_63_ LEONARD ELIZABETH MACBEN REALTY TRUST 61 GREENWOOD ST 104 O 125,000 231,500 285,200 125,000 2.28 2.28 PERMITS AFTER THE SALE M_158711_925066

103 5/31/2023 X17_2_100_10 04 REBECCA CHAMBERLIN DASILVA CHRISTA RENEE 51 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 233,000 177,600 199,100 233,000 0.85 0.85 M_158970_925346

103 6/1/2023 M27_24_26_ MSR MONADNOCK STREET LLC MDP PROPERTY GROUP LLC 53 MONADNOCK ST 111 565,000 419,700 496,500 565,000 0.88 0.88 M_157995_927324

103 6/1/2023 W32_4_17_ NICHOLAS M COUTURE SAFRAN BRIAN 18 MYLES CIR 101 395,000 375,000 400,600 395,000 1.01 1.01 M_162019_927393

103 6/2/2023 M22_2_9_ EDYN A LEIVA RODRIGUEZ RAMONA 30 ROBILLARD ST 101 345,000 219,700 291,800 345,000 0.85 0.85 M_158312_925162

103 6/2/2023 M27_24_20_ MAILLET KEVIN J and  ANNA M MOREIRA ZULEICA C 72 MONADNOCK ST 101 380,000 300,400 310,400 380,000 0.82 0.82 FULL INTERIOR RENO M_158933_925419

103 6/2/2023 M32_1_100_18 05 CRESIE M LYONS JANE KATHRYN KLINE FAMILY TRUST 84 CENTURY WAY 102 229,100 193,700 223,100 229,100 0.97 0.97 M_160804_925368

103 6/5/2023 R27_25_11_ ERICKSON DANA A TRSTE ALVES DAYNARA S 52 BICKFORD HILL RD 101 325,000 287,500 299,300 325,000 0.92 0.92 M_160451_924434

103 6/6/2023 R22_19_38_ CORMIER THERESA LEDUC DONNA and  EDWARD 89 FAIRLAWN AVE 101 385,000 379,800 394,900 385,000 1.03 1.03 M_157376_927485

103 6/7/2023 H37_24_39B_

CHABOT JUDE HODGE and  

CHRISTINA L RANO JEFFREY and  CASSANDRA 535 CLARK ST 101 443,000 415,200 455,100 443,000 1.03 1.03 M_158989_925245

103 6/8/2023 R27_7_12_ BERGERON NANCY A DIMANNO KIMBERLY 161 WOODLAND AVE 101 230,000 265,500 252,200 230,000 1.10 1.10 M_159245_925457

103 6/9/2023 M27_24_1_

HOMESTEAD REAL ESTATE 

INVESTORS LLC BRANDT BENJAMIN R 22 WAY ST 105 495,000 329,500 428,100 495,000 0.86 0.86 M_158416_924753

103 6/9/2023 M27_25_29_ BRUCE C LUPIEN EF REALTY LLC 127 GRAHAM ST 111 U 235,000 341,200 404,000 235,000 1.72 1.72 M_160100_926028

103 6/13/2023 M22_12_42_ GIBSON JAMES A BALIKUDDEMBE ARTHUR 69 LEAMY ST 101 O 215,000 243,800 259,500 215,000 1.21 1.21 PARTIALLY UNDER CONSTRUCTION - MLS M_159732_925103

103 6/13/2023 M22_14_43_ APEX ACQUISTIONS LLC MHG 6 FUND LLC 101 BAKER ST 111 485,000 383,300 454,800 485,000 0.94 0.94 M_159164_925398

103 6/13/2023 R12_13_13_ PEARSALL IRREVOCABLE TRUST KLINK ERIC B 10 AMES AVE 101 390,000 334,300 359,800 390,000 0.92 0.92 M_160389_922516

103 6/13/2023 R22_1_10_ MURRAY FRANCIS A JR

115 117 MAPLE STREET REALTY 

TRUST 115 MAPLE ST 111 A 350,000 408,800 485,600 350,000 1.39 1.39 FRANCIS MURRAY JR - FRANCIS MURRAY III M_159005_924672

103 6/14/2023 M22_10_27_ FAVREAU BRIAN N MOLINA REALTY LLC 123 MAIN ST 370 T 95,000 309,700 323,300 95,000 3.40 3.40

MOLINA ALSO OWNS M22-10-28 (109 MAIN) 

AND M22-10-37 ACROSS THE ST (110-114 

MAIN)....ALSO PP THRU SALE

NO RECD MTG M_159066_926003

103 6/14/2023 M22_25_54_ JOHNSON RYAN TOTA ALISON 68 EMERALD ST 101 270,000 269,700 296,200 270,000 1.10 1.10 M_159040_926005

103 6/16/2023 H42_25_5_ ALVARENGA GUSTAVO MEDICI GAETANO VINCENT FRANK 330 BROOKSIDE DR 101 480,000 446,100 455,200 480,000 0.95 0.95 M_160285_924654

103 6/16/2023 M27_24_53_ LEBLANC PAUL O OSAGIE EMMANUEL FRANK 89 RICHMOND ST 105 445,000 289,100 412,400 445,000 0.93 0.93 M_157773_928551

103 6/16/2023 M27_9_15_ LUMANSI CONNORS, MARY C SOTO MARIA 36 ALLEN ST 101 V 380,000 293,900 318,800 380,000 0.84 0.84 ALSO PARCEL M27-9-16 M_159380_924882

103 6/16/2023 M27_9_16_ LUMANSI CONNORS, MARY C SOTO MARIA 0 ALLEN ST 132 V 380,000 6,100 6,700 380,000 0.02 0.02 SOLD WITH 36 ALLEN ST M_159484_924340

103 6/16/2023 R22_11_41_ KLEINFELTER GALEN G STOWERS ARTHUR L 14 JAY ST 101 225,000 244,900 266,900 225,000 1.19 1.19 M_159692_924623

103 6/20/2023 R22_13_33_ FRAZIER DERRICK RIVERS SUSAN 107 RICH ST 101 350,000 344,300 355,500 350,000 1.02 1.02 M_159064_924991

103 6/23/2023 M22_9_45_

BOONE JAMES S and  GISELE P 

TRSTES MARARASIMBA LLC 69 NICHOLS ST 111 600,000 477,000 567,400 600,000 0.95 0.95 M_161279_925168

103 6/23/2023 M47_22_12_ JANKOWSKI GARY LEMA MARIA B CAGUANA 1375 GREEN ST 101 435,000 372,500 402,400 435,000 0.93 0.93 M_159664_924785

103 6/26/2023 R22_11_28_ CERCONE MICHAEL DREAM HOME INVESTMENTS LLC 99 WASHINGTON ST 105 O 205,000 267,800 233,200 205,000 1.14 1.14

PERMITS AFTER THE SALE

SOLD IN NEED OF REHAB M_158424_929837

103 6/26/2023 W22_1_19_ JESSICA L CARROLL AZIZ GULZAR 60 CRESTWOOD DR 101 505,000 472,100 484,800 505,000 0.96 0.96 M_156426_928208

103 6/27/2023 R27_12_15_ GROTH DANIEL M and  JUDITH L SMITH SCOTT 82 GREEN ST 101 360,000 281,900 298,100 360,000 0.83 0.83 M_156478_928149

103 6/28/2023 H37_1_27_ BUSHEY ROY J and  BEVERLY A DUGUAY KALLI R 43 OTTER RIVER RD 101 H 150,000 319,000 337,100 150,000 2.25 2.25

FAMILY/ESTATE SALE, WORCESTER COUNTY 

DOCKET #WO22P2723EA - SOLD WITH VACANT 

PARCEL (H37-6-26) M_159106_925241

103 6/28/2023 H37_6_26_ BUSHEY ROY J and  BEVERLY A DUGUAY KALLI R 0 OTTER RIVER RD 132 H 150,000 6,800 7,500 150,000 0.05 0.05

SOLD WITH 43 OTTER RIVER RD (H37-1-27)

FAMILY/ESTATE SALE, WORCESTER COUNTY 

DOCKET #WO22P2723EA - SOLD WITH PARCEL M_160190_925247

103 6/28/2023 R27_23_1_ MALIK MARILYN R TRSTE PARKINSON ERIC 93 ELM ST 101 580,000 550,700 541,700 580,000 0.93 0.93 M_160077_925823

103 6/29/2023 M22_4_18_ BUDKA THOMAS J LOPEZ ALEX AGUILAR 27 OAK ST 105 430,000 342,500 441,500 430,000 1.03 1.03 M_163061_924307

103 6/29/2023 R12_4_7_ 39 EAST BROADWAY REALTY TRUST SHETTY PRATISH 39 E BROADWAY 105 525,000 348,100 448,600 525,000 0.85 0.85 M_160109_922722

103 6/29/2023 X22_22_4_ AVALLONE SUSAN B ROBERTS DEVIN 61 CARLSON LN 101 470,000 408,100 412,000 470,000 0.88 0.88 M_160544_922989

103 6/30/2023 R12_7_7_ JEFFREY MILLER WILSON JAMES 194 UNION ST 101 253,000 274,300 249,300 253,000 0.99 0.99 M_161022_925767

103 6/30/2023 W12_17_12_ RICHARD DARYL and  ANGEL KELLY CHAD H 349 HIGH ST 101 370,000 289,000 305,400 370,000 0.83 0.83 M_162028_924755

11395



103 6/30/2023 W17_2_1_ CHAPMAN PARK LLC REIS CAMILA F SAUNDERS ST 132 V 840,000 9,400 10,300 840,000 0.01 0.01 SOLD WITH 60 CHAPMAN PK & W17-3-3 M_161524_924058

103 6/30/2023 W17_3_3_ CHAPMAN PARK LLC REIS CAMILA F SAUNDERS ST 132 V 840,000 8,700 9,600 840,000 0.01 0.01 SOLD WITH 60 CHAPMAN PK & W17-2-1 M_161756_924104

103 6/30/2023 W22_14_32A_ RENDA JOY L MADEIROS JOHN 282 BETTY SPRING RD 101 O 181,200 214,100 232,700 181,200 1.28 1.28 M_161236_924591

103 6/30/2023 W22_16_4_ CHAPMAN PARK LLC REIS CAMILA F 60 CHAPMAN PK 109 V 840,000 1,025,900 1,183,000 840,000 1.41 1.41

MULT HOUSES ON PROPERTY, MULTIPLE 

PARCELS.  ALSO W17-2-1 & W17-3-3 M_161679_922261

103 6/30/2023 W27_16_100_05 10 FLANAGAN JENNIFER PATRICIA GIFFORD SAMUEL 53 RIDGEWOOD LN 102 130,000 119,900 123,800 130,000 0.95 0.95 M_158872_924055

103 7/6/2023 M17_4_9_ KYMALAINEN ARTHUR J NGUYEN TIFFANY 290 WATERFORD ST 101 343,000 278,900 296,200 343,000 0.86 0.86 M_158481_925792

103 7/7/2023 H42_24_5_ MOUAYDIA NAJIB MALDONADO JOEL 404 LEO DR 101 442,000 425,700 414,700 442,000 0.94 0.94 M_158930_925812

103 7/7/2023 M27_12_24_ NICOLE MCMILLER TERHO CODY 84 EUCLID ST 101 296,000 281,100 294,900 296,000 1.00 1.00 M_158601_925410

103 7/7/2023 M27_14_28_ MURPHY HUGH G III FERREIRA DEREK SCOTT 8 WINSLOW ST 101 320,000 259,600 278,600 320,000 0.87 0.87 M_159115_925793

103 7/7/2023 M27_14_48_ PARKINSON ERIC S and  CHRISTINA RICHARD DARYL 37 WEST END AVE 101 445,000 361,700 395,700 445,000 0.89 0.89 M_157466_928667

103 7/7/2023 M27_23_1_ GALLANT BRUCE COLE LAUGHLIN PATRICK 8 COLEMAN ST 104 260,000 244,000 253,100 260,000 0.97 0.97 M_158822_925047

103 7/7/2023 R17_20_14_ GRAZIELLA CHRISTINA IZQUIERDO

ANSAH VIDA OWUSU, OPOKU 

MICHAEL 165 CHELSEA ST 101 355,000 323,800 346,500 355,000 0.98 0.98 M_160893_923517

103 7/12/2023 M22_3_49_ BHB GROUP LLC WILLOW HOLDING LLC 14 MARQUETTE ST 013 O 900,000 827,500 987,200 900,000 1.10 1.10 PERMITS AFTER SALE M_158747_925563

103 7/13/2023 M22_25_41_ MICHAEL R THIBEAULT

DAVID J SMITH and  CAROL E SMITH 

LIVING TRUST 441 PLEASANT ST 104 H 326,000 290,300 286,800 326,000 0.88 0.88 WORCESTER PROBATE DOCKET:  WO23P0394EA M_159308_924275

103 7/14/2023 M27_18_20_ LAGOY GREGORY F. DA SILVA NATAN 47 SAND ST 101 O 320,000 233,000 249,900 320,000 0.78 0.78 PERMITS AFTER THE SALE M_160388_925355

103 7/14/2023 R27_18_11_ BOONE JAMES S TRSTE MHG 6 FUND LLC 49 RESERVOIR ST 111 490,000 456,900 541,500 490,000 1.11 1.11 M_157768_923542

103 7/14/2023 R27_23_38_ JMRENDA HOLDINGS LLC DUYON REBECCA 52 WESTFORD ST 101 363,000 344,000 355,100 363,000 0.98 0.98 M_160411_925651

103 7/14/2023 W27_10_14_ GAULZETTI BRUCE P and  ANN E SEGUNDO NERVAL ANTUNES SAUDE 146 CHAPEL ST 101 400,000 339,000 355,200 400,000 0.89 0.89 M_162445_925913

103 7/17/2023 M22_2_28_ GREENAWALT PETER ANDREWS MARC BRANDON JR 45 ROBILLARD ST 101 260,000 233,700 243,200 260,000 0.94 0.94 M_156501_928092

103 7/18/2023 M22_19_12_ SHADDAI HOME INVESTMENTS LLC JOACHIM ROMENCIE 165 GREENWOOD ST 101 280,900 270,200 279,400 280,900 0.99 0.99 M_158447_925293

103 7/18/2023 M22_20_65_ PROFESSIONAL PERFORMANCE LLC

INVESTMENT PARTNERS GROUP 

#115 4 WRIGHT ST 104 L 110,000 239,600 269,300 110,000 2.45 2.45 DEED IN LIEU OF FORECLOSURE M_158300_924929

103 7/18/2023 M22_20_65_

INVESTMENT PARTNERS GROUP 

#115 BUIWIT NATHAN 4 WRIGHT ST 104 O 125,000 239,600 269,300 125,000 2.15 2.15 CHANGES AFTER SALE - 4/19/24 VISIT, UC @ 65% M_158368_925205

103 7/19/2023 H17_20_11_

HASTINGS DWIGHT S and  

CHRISTINE M HASTINGS CHRISTINE M 33 MOHAWK DR 101 H 160,000 444,700 448,400 160,000 2.80 2.80

WORC COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET:  

WO21D2553DR M_158460_925554

103 7/21/2023 M22_7_9_ BARTHEL PROPERTIES, LLC SOK HEANG 20 BARTHEL AVE 105 410,000 423,700 428,600 410,000 1.05 1.05 M_158760_925892

103 7/21/2023 M27_13_47_ DAVID R ROCHELEAU MCNAMARA JAMES B 217 ASH ST 101 300,000 253,800 270,100 300,000 0.90 0.90 M_158767_925974

103 7/21/2023 W27_16_100_10 24 LEBLANC DEAN R MAYOR REALTY LLC 104 RIDGEWOOD LN 102 T 80,500 120,200 124,000 80,500 1.54 1.54

MAYOR REALTY OWNS OTHER CONDOS IN THIS 

COMPLEX - PRIVATE DEAL M_158798_925974

103 7/24/2023 M22_25_11_

Jand T PROPERTY INVESTMENTS 

5079 LLC ACKERMAN ROBERT 89 EMERALD ST 101 O 211,000 196,300 354,100 211,000 1.68 1.68

PERMITS AFTER THE SALE RESOLD 2024 FOR 

345K M_158835_926152

103 7/25/2023 M22_24_20_ TOSO JORGE FERNANDEZ JAVIER ROSA 43 HARVARD ST 101 312,000 270,400 314,500 312,000 1.01 1.01 M_159103_924232

103 7/26/2023 M27_22_31_ DREAM HOME INVESTMENTS LLC KHAJADOURIAN MIKE J 30 BATES RD 101 307,500 243,600 251,300 307,500 0.82 0.82 M_159025_924479

103 7/27/2023 H37_6_25_ HANKS MARK C DE ANDRADE ISAIAS 25 OTTER RIVER RD 101 H 470,000 444,800 459,800 470,000 0.98 0.98

WORC COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET: 

WO23P0988EA M_159433_924253

103 7/27/2023 M22_5_44_ MILLENNIUM HOLDING GROUP, LLC

GARDNER DOWNTOWN CROSSING 

LLC 25 MAIN ST 340 B 750,000 402,300 390,300 750,000 0.52 0.52 JONATHAN BOMBACI IS PART OF MHG & GDC M_159449_924470

103 7/27/2023 M27_3_2_ LEGER HENRI A and  SHARON A DOHERTY TERENCE B 30 NORMAN ST 101 365,000 299,600 316,900 365,000 0.87 0.87 M_159449_924470

103 7/27/2023 X37_7_6_ BOWERS MARTIN and  JENNIFER PIRES JASMIN CORRINE 965 PEARL ST 101 445,000 395,100 428,000 445,000 0.96 0.96 M_159354_925072

103 7/28/2023 M27_17_9_ WALKER BRUCE R CREAN CHRISTOPHER 258 WEST ST 101 410,000 260,900 369,500 410,000 0.90 0.90 M_160905_925896

103 7/28/2023 M27_8_44_

BOUDREAU ROMEO A and  

MARGARET H BARR JOHN 239 ASH ST 101 V 345,000 270,500 339,900 345,000 0.99 0.99 SOLD WITH M27-8-38 M_160424_924497

103 7/28/2023 M27_8_44A_

BOUDREAU ROMEO A and  

MARGARET H BARR JOHN 0 ASH ST 132 V 345,000 6,300 7,000 345,000 0.02 0.02 SOLD W/239 ASH ST M_163199_924202

103 7/28/2023 R22_18_38_ HOUDE DENIS R FERNANDES RA YZA K 308 ELM ST 105 482,500 387,200 501,300 482,500 1.04 1.04 M_163187_924130

103 7/31/2023 X17_2_100_01 08 CHARLES J NASIS KASSNER KEITH 20 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 235,000 177,600 215,400 235,000 0.92 0.92 M_163000_928151

103 7/31/2023 X17_2_100_07 04 MCCANN TIMOTHY CAPEZIO KRISTIN 42 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 251,000 190,500 212,900 251,000 0.85 0.85 M_158191_924431

103 8/1/2023 M22_2_21_ VALEMBRUN BERTHONY DANIEL VARGAS JORGE WILLIAM MEDINA 75 COLEMAN ST 104 N 333,000 309,600 347,300 333,000 1.04 1.04

BUYER TO ASSUME SOLAR LEASE .  SOLD WITH 

KNOB AND TUBE WIRING M_158491_925215

103 8/1/2023 M22_4_42_ SHAH INVESTMENTS, LLC CALDERON JOSE MAURICIO 14 GREENWOOD ST 105 385,000 258,900 341,700 385,000 0.89 0.89 M_159084_926061

103 8/1/2023 M27_9_27_ COLDWELL STEVEN FIRST LANDING INVESTMENTS LLC 4 STUART ST 111 U 70,000 247,300 291,400 70,000 4.16 4.16 M_158600_925053

103 8/1/2023 M27_9_27_ FIRST LANDING INVESTMENTS LLC RIBEIRO ADAO 4 STUART ST 111 U 94,500 247,300 291,400 94,500 3.08 3.08 M_158914_925075

103 8/2/2023 M22_16_3_ FREDETTE ST LLC WOODLAND AVE RENO NV LLC 164 FREDETTE ST 400 N 5,400,000 2,412,700 3,604,500 5,400,000 0.67 0.67 GRANTOR WAS TENANT - SALE LEASE BACK M_159084_926061

103 8/2/2023 M22_3_13_ AMERICAN ESTATE and  TRUST CANELA DARIEL 336 PARKER ST 104 300,000 256,900 268,800 300,000 0.90 0.90 M_158071_927318

103 8/3/2023 M27_18_16_ LEPAGE DENNIS J TRSTE QUILES MARCOS 142 ASH ST 101 370,000 272,900 287,500 370,000 0.78 0.78 M_158382_925446

103 8/4/2023 M32_1_100_16 02 HUGHES MARGERY E MARSHALL PATRICE B 65 CENTURY WAY 102 H 260,000 190,200 216,700 260,000 0.83 0.83

ESTATE SALE WORCESTER COUNTY DOCKET # 

WO23P2030EA M_158780_925596

103 8/4/2023 R12_4_44_ CITY OF GARDNER MOLINA REALTY LLC 75 E BROADWAY 351 E 105,000 1,957,700 448,800 105,000 4.27 4.27 CITY SALE M_158360_925614

103 8/4/2023 W22_9_3_ PREVOST PATRICIA A MASIELLO CHRISTOPHER PAUL 38 FOSTER CT 101 H 446,000 405,700 412,000 446,000 0.92 0.92

WORCESTER COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET # 

WO23P1058EA M_158786_924863

103 8/9/2023 M22_8_2_ STRAZDAS GREGORY S and  LYNNE BUONICONTI BRANDON 73 MARQUETTE ST 105 450,000 307,200 391,000 450,000 0.87 0.87 M_157414_927650

103 8/9/2023 M22_9_30_ CHAMPAGNE KRYSTLE S VENKATRAMAN SANJAY 91 REGAN ST 111 U 320,000 279,000 330,700 320,000 1.03 1.03

PRIVATE SALE BASED ON REALTOR'S 

CONTACT"....PER SALES QUESTIONNAIRE" M_159677_923926

103 8/9/2023 M27_17_24_ ANNASTASIA D ANDERSON MEDINA MELANIE SILVESTRE 17 FOSS RD 101 325,000 267,100 284,300 325,000 0.87 0.87 M_159929_925270

103 8/9/2023 M27_22_57_ MICHAEL C DESJARDINS II ANDERSON ANNASTASIA 62 FOSS RD 101 380,000 294,700 294,500 380,000 0.78 0.78 M_160650_922934

103 8/9/2023 R17_1_32_ LV ETERNITY LLC

PINGREE 2000 REAL ESTATE 

HOLDINGS LLC 183 CONANT ST 325 N 175,000 217,000 223,000 175,000 1.27 1.27

TENANT PURCHASE. LEASE AGREEMENT FOR 

BUYOUT OPTION M_158964_924937

103 8/9/2023 R27_22_2_ MARTIN LORENZO and  ANISLEY

NEW ENGLAND PREMIUM 

PROPERTIES LLC 65 SCHOOL ST 104 300,000 286,400 310,000 300,000 1.03 1.03 M_161932_925022

103 8/11/2023 H37_24_13_ SENEFF ROBIN E and  SUSAN E KADIMISHA NATHAN 129 LEO DR 101 420,000 372,300 401,300 420,000 0.96 0.96 M_157984_927360

103 8/11/2023 M22_7_55_ CAMERON JOSEPH MUGHMAW BENITEZ SUSANA 60 LEAMY ST 105 430,000 279,500 397,500 430,000 0.92 0.92 M_159425_924499

103 8/11/2023 M32_1_100_19 05 CASSANDRA L LAVIGNE MONETTE SUSAN 108 CENTURY WAY 102 257,500 211,900 241,400 257,500 0.94 0.94 M_158492_924844

103 8/15/2023 R22_6_4_ CONNOLLY, CIARA OLIVEIRA SERGIO 197 PINE ST 101 285,000 242,600 263,500 285,000 0.92 0.92 M_159542_924823

103 8/16/2023 M22_20_50_ AMO BUILDERS LLC AISHI REALTY LLC 11 WRIGHT ST 111 560,000 433,600 517,500 560,000 0.92 0.92 M_157298_927536

103 8/16/2023 R27_22_51_ MAILLET WINNIFRED EUFRASIO OSNY 102 CHESTNUT ST 101 H 260,000 325,600 338,100 260,000 1.30 1.30

WINNIFRED MAILLET DEC'D 7/14/22

SALE BY REMAINDERMAN OF L/E M_160112_925257

103 8/18/2023 M27_3_4_ TYLER C DIGERONIMO CAPPUCCI ANTHONY 97 RACETTE AVE 101 390,000 351,900 360,300 390,000 0.92 0.92 M_158660_926201

103 8/22/2023 H37_23_38_ RAYMOND W SIMULA II SPALVINS INGRIDA 555 CLARK ST 101 390,000 363,300 371,800 390,000 0.95 0.95 M_159182_925242

103 8/22/2023 R22_23_23_ GARDNER JADE REALTY INC LIN YAN 19 UNION SQ 326 C 400,000 287,200 319,500 400,000 0.80 0.80 M_159197_925222

103 8/22/2023 W22_4_5_ DIGERONIMO GREGORY J YI BEIFANG 71 FOSTER CT 101 555,000 528,000 533,000 555,000 0.96 0.96 M_160297_924170

103 8/23/2023 M22_4_24A_ QUEST MANAGEMENT GROUP, LLC SURE HOUSE SOLUTIONS LLC 34 FRANKLIN CT 130 V 321,000 59,800 65,800 321,000 0.20 0.20 ALSO M22 5 8 M_158957_924963

103 8/23/2023 M22_5_8_ QUEST MANAGEMENT GROUP, LLC SURE HOUSE SOLUTIONS LLC 20 GRAHAM ST 111 V 321,000 355,600 586,200 321,000 1.83 1.83 ALSO M22 4 24A M_162084_925095

103 8/24/2023 M32_24_23_ BUCKLEY PAUL F and  ARLINE L GRUCA CARTER 325 PARK ST 101 227,000 238,500 254,100 227,000 1.12 1.12 M_159256_925942

103 8/24/2023 W07_4_7_

MACIOROWSKI JOHN C and  

PATRICIA J 21 CENTURY MILL LLC MINOTT ST 130 U 20,000 77,300 84,800 20,000 4.24 4.24

PURCHASED FROM A FRIEND - PER SALES 

QUESTIONNAIRE M_159149_926338

103 8/25/2023 M22_9_31_ REGAN STREET PROPERTIES LLC REYES JOSE GIL 75 REGAN ST 105 305,000 249,400 325,300 305,000 1.07 1.07 M_158297_925799

103 8/25/2023 M27_10_4_ SABRINA LEE M RAYMOND MUNIZ JOSUE MADERA 0 ABBOTT ST 132 V 350,000 6,100 6,700 350,000 0.02 0.02 ALSO 59 ABBOTT ST M_162152_921769

103 8/25/2023 M27_10_5_ SABRINA  LEE M RAYMOND MUNIZ JOSUE MADERA 59 ABBOTT ST 101 V 350,000 261,800 276,900 350,000 0.79 0.79 ALSO M27-10-4 M_159687_925354

103 8/25/2023 R27_21_14_ CACERES HENRY SRC PRO BUILDERS INC 69 LYNDE ST 105 O 320,000 303,700 349,700 320,000 1.09 1.09 PERMITS AFTER THE SALE M_159285_925940

103 8/29/2023 M27_12_45_ DELGADO REBECCA JESSICA THOMPSON SCOTT 335 WEST ST 101 300,000 226,800 247,100 300,000 0.82 0.82 M_159688_924902

103 8/29/2023 R22_7_13_ GRIFFIS PETER G RUMPLE JOSHUA 100 GRANT ST 101 H 340,000 292,500 311,300 340,000 0.92 0.92

WORC COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET:  

WO23P0497EA M_159011_924500

103 8/31/2023 R02_9_6A_

NEWCOMB GEORGE H and  THERESA 

W STEVENS KATIE 701 WHITNEY ST 101 495,000 526,000 550,500 495,000 1.11 1.11 M_160134_925809

103 8/31/2023 R27_13_19_ JAN DZIEWIT RYAN NOAH 81 GREEN ST 101 290,000 225,600 273,600 290,000 0.94 0.94 M_159803_924890

103 9/1/2023 M22_19_24_ MEARN PAUL G and  JOCELYN D RODRIGUEZ YELISA TINEO 159 GREENWOOD ST 104 260,000 254,700 273,500 260,000 1.05 1.05 M_158540_924459

103 9/1/2023 R22_6_40_ LEAVITT RALPH E and  THOMAS P ROXSTAR INDUSTRIES INC 58 WASHINGTON ST 101 H 195,000 227,500 232,500 195,000 1.19 1.19

WORC COUNTY PROBATE DOCKET  

#WO22P2704EA M_160670_920528

103 9/5/2023 M22_17_24_ THIBEAU SCOTT A and  SHELLY BUREAU MARY GENE 143 LEAMY ST 101 378,000 265,900 344,800 378,000 0.91 0.91 M_157932_926606

103 9/8/2023 H32_20_2_ BAXTER EARL COOK RYAN G 42 GLEN RD 103 U 117,000 114,200 140,900 117,000 1.20 1.20 M_159193_924801

103 9/11/2023 M07_10_3_ SMITH DIANA L BELSKY LUKAS 269 WHITNEY ST 101 398,500 356,800 376,100 398,500 0.94 0.94 M_159713_924493

103 9/11/2023 R22_16_29_ CENTRAL CITY PROPERTIES LLC FIGUEROA JOSEPH 193 LOGAN ST 104 301,000 280,700 299,200 301,000 0.99 0.99 M_159448_921687

103 9/11/2023 X17_2_100_05 05 POTTER WAYNE C JOHNSON DANIEL THEODORE 29 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 U 230,000 177,600 215,400 230,000 0.94 0.94 M_163292_924139

103 9/13/2023 M22_15_27_ WOODARD DAVID AL LAYAWEE MURTADA N 183 CONNORS ST 111 470,000 309,200 449,400 470,000 0.96 0.96 M_160629_925402

103 9/14/2023 R27_24_41_ RACINE SHAWN and  JANELLE AUBE JENNIFER 36 COMEE ST 101 O 280,000 353,800 470,900 280,000 1.68 1.68 M_159287_924570

103 9/15/2023 M22_20_29_ CARRIGAN FRANCIS G FERREIRA WALTER 46 LIMERICK ST 316 87,500 82,300 93,700 87,500 1.07 1.07 NO RECD MTG M_162027_921999

103 9/15/2023 W12_11_7_ ARROWHEAD GROUP INC MERCED HECMAR O 244 E BROADWAY 101 V 390,000 343,000 351,300 390,000 0.90 0.90 ALSO PARCEL W12-6-8 M_162684_925469

103 9/15/2023 W12_6_8_ ARROWHEAD GROUP INC MERCED HECMAR O 0 E BROADWAY 132 V 390,000 6,900 7,600 390,000 0.02 0.02 ALSO 244 E BROADWAY M_161249_922581

103 9/15/2023 W27_16_100_03 04 KAREN M GALLANT BELLORADO ALICIA STELLA 36 RIDGEWOOD LN 102 140,000 106,900 129,300 140,000 0.92 0.92 M_161252_922621

103 9/15/2023 X27_21_9_ DAWE WILLIAM W and  JEANNE B MORAES VERA L 261 CHAPEL ST 101 H 425,000 393,700 406,600 425,000 0.96 0.96 WORCESTER PROBATE DOCKET #WO23P2728EA M_160979_925686

103 9/18/2023 R17_24_41_ BROTHERS REFORMED  REALTY STAGE ONE PROPERTIES LLC 49 CHELSEA ST 400 260,000 258,200 266,100 260,000 1.02 1.02 M_159182_925739

103 9/18/2023 R32_5_12_ BLAKE COLIN BLAKE COLIN 326 MATTHEWS RD 101 H 65,293 479,300 477,300 65,293 7.31 7.31 FAMILY COURT DOCKET #WE20D0078DR M_160737_923088

103 9/18/2023 W12_23_13_

BALTAKIS JOSEPH and  JOSEPHINE E 

L E LEGSDIN JOANNE 160 MINOTT ST 101 401,000 335,500 343,000 401,000 0.86 0.86 M_161033_927235

103 9/19/2023 M27_14_4_

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE 

ASSOCIATION CONNORS JOHN, LEBLANC SANDY 156 PARK ST 101 S 270,000 357,600 397,800 270,000 1.47 1.47 M_159304_924847

103 9/20/2023 H37_15_28_ AMOLING RONALD K II HUHTALA EVAN P 181 BROOKSIDE DR 101 532,499 501,000 493,100 532,499 0.93 0.93 M_157891_927920

103 9/20/2023 M22_10_7_ MHG 3 FUND LLC FRANCO NEULER GARCIA JR 147 PLEASANT ST 111 585,000 389,700 468,200 585,000 0.80 0.80 M_158302_925740

103 9/20/2023 R12_7_13_ LISA M MELNICKI TEP SOVIDA J 207 UNION ST 101 299,000 260,800 282,000 299,000 0.94 0.94 M_160053_922703

11395



103 9/21/2023 M27_12_54_ OCONNOR RACHEL S RUSSO CLAIRE C 324 WEST ST 101 340,000 284,000 304,400 340,000 0.90 0.90 M_160544_922500

103 9/21/2023 R22_6_61_ FLORIDA MASS PROPERTIES LLC

FAKHROLDINI FARHAD, FAHIMI 

ALIREZA 120 GRANT ST 105 S 260,000 362,000 485,000 260,000 1.87 1.87 M_157848_926803

103 9/25/2023 H32_15_2_

HERMANSON MICHAEL J and  SUSAN 

M WILLETT SARAH 140 RYAN ST 101 V 410,000 357,400 381,100 410,000 0.93 0.93 ALSO PARCEL H32-15-2A M_157880_926810

103 9/25/2023 H32_15_2A_

HERMANSON MICHAEL J and  SUSAN 

M WILLETT SARAH 0 RYAN ST 132 V 410,000 5,800 6,300 410,000 0.02 0.02 ALSO 140 RYAN STREET M_159497_923886

103 9/25/2023 R12_14_54_ RODRIGUEZ IRVIN and  ITEESHA CHEA KERNNADO 24 MONTVALE RD 101 380,000 291,000 337,500 380,000 0.89 0.89 M_160717_923289

103 9/27/2023 H17_15_4_ LANGTON BRIAN KIERMAN DYLAN 10 MOHAWK DR 101 479,000 481,000 471,200 479,000 0.98 0.98 M_157698_923648

103 9/27/2023 M17_10_27_ SAFKA KONSTANTY E TRUSTEE MACPRO LLC 36 CRAWFORD ST 104 H 210,000 233,600 233,000 210,000 1.11 1.11 ESTATE SALE BY TRUSTEES DC REC 69712/170 M_162546_928088

103 9/27/2023 R17_19_34_ FAWKES HOLDINGS LLC PHILEMOND SYLVIO 53 SUMMER ST 104 400,000 247,600 357,900 400,000 0.89 0.89 M_158895_923815

103 9/27/2023 W37_15_6_

MACDONALD HELEN D and  PETER D 

TRSTES JAILLET KAYLEE M 884 PEARL ST 101 398,000 299,100 340,800 398,000 0.86 0.86 M_163173_924293

103 9/27/2023 X17_2_100_12 03 ALGARIN ELBA BOC ADAM 58 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 251,000 189,400 211,600 251,000 0.84 0.84 M_158241_926805

103 9/28/2023 M17_8_5A_ BEROUJOUKI YOUNAN BEROUJOUKI YOUNAN 524 W BROADWAY 101 J 50,000 297,200 308,900 50,000 6.18 6.18

ANTHONY'S 1/3 INTEREST SOLD TO JOHN (PER 

LAND COURT DOCKET: 23MISC000261)

JOHN NOW HAS 2/3, YOUNAN HAS 1/3 M_155925_928410

103 9/28/2023 M32_11_24_ HURD FREDERICK E JR CAGGIANO MICHAEL J 219 CLARK ST 101 400,000 339,200 346,700 400,000 0.87 0.87 M_157801_926420

103 9/29/2023 C37_4_13_ M3 INNOVATIONS INC PODGORSKI KEVIN W 193 OTTER RIVER RD 101 335,000 267,700 332,300 335,000 0.99 0.99 M_159249_924697

103 9/29/2023 H37_12_32A_ MEAGHER RYAN P and  JODI L FLEURIE SHAWN 713 CLARK ST 101 480,000 392,200 389,100 480,000 0.81 0.81 M_159579_923192

103 9/29/2023 M22_15_15_ DESANTANA CARLOS CAISSEY TIMOTHY 20 BAKER ST 104 272,000 264,900 276,600 272,000 1.02 1.02 M_156857_927979

103 9/29/2023 R17_21_6_ COLLET LINDA PAWLIKOWSKI JOHN 56 DYER ST 101 440,000 370,100 378,500 440,000 0.86 0.86 M_159288_925282

103 10/2/2023 H32_25_4_ COLON ANA M YANG ROBERT 549 WEST ST 104 346,000 268,400 333,000 346,000 0.96 0.96 M_160319_924221

103 10/2/2023 H37_20_7_ BELITSKY JEFFREY K and  KATHLEEN VASQUEZ JOSHUA DANIEL 56 FERNWOOD DR 101 359,350 338,300 360,500 359,350 1.00 1.00 M_157651_927676

103 10/2/2023 M17_18_7_

BETTEZ ROBERT J SR and  JANE M 

TRSTES BETTEZ ROBERT J JR and  DAVID A 0 KINZER DR 132 A 12,500 10,000 10,000 12,500 0.80 0.80 M_158816_923383

103 10/2/2023 M27_25_16_ MARCHETTI INDUSTRIES LLC LOPEZ RONY P ANGEL 52 VERNON ST 111 588,000 370,500 438,900 588,000 0.75 0.75 M_160394_923525

103 10/2/2023 W27_24_2_ 66 BROOK LANE REALTY TRUST MEAGHER RYAN P 66 BROOK LN 101 645,000 542,200 564,900 645,000 0.88 0.88 M_162162_925363

103 10/3/2023 R22_23_21_ UNION SQUARE LLC THE SALVATION ARMY 8 UNION SQ 951 K 320,000 285,700 316,200 320,000 0.99 0.99

PURCHASED BY TENANT - ARE THEY EXEMPT???.

PARCEL EXEMPTED IN DB 6.13.24 CHANGED 

CODE M_161297_925215

103 10/4/2023 R17_13_18_ AHO JONATHAN F DALEY ISAYAH J 167 S MAIN ST 105 546,000 365,900 480,400 546,000 0.88 0.88

TOTAL RENO - 

KITCHS/BTHS/ELEC/PLUMB/FLS/ROOF M_158242_925079

103 10/5/2023 W22_1_27_ ELLENKA  VEGA RICHARD TINA C 113 BETTY SPRING RD 101 378,000 335,100 357,600 378,000 0.95 0.95 M_158962_926060

103 10/6/2023 M22_1_25_ PARMENTER JAMES S MERCEDES AMBER 15 ROCK ST 104 360,000 263,500 351,200 360,000 0.98 0.98 M_160882_922403

103 10/6/2023 M27_9_23_ ATTER EDWARD J WINRIDGE HOLDINGS LLC 0 ALLEN ST 130 V 40,000 65,800 77,200 40,000 1.93 1.93 ALSO M27-9-24 M_158989_926059

103 10/6/2023 M27_9_24_ ATTER EDWARD J WINRIDGE HOLDINGS LLC 0 ALLEN ST 130 V 40,000 8,400 88,500 40,000 2.21 2.21 ALSO M27-9-23 M_159635_924728

103 10/6/2023 R22_11_2_ BRIGGADOON REALTY TRUST MOLINA REALTY LLC 131 PEABODY ST 111 540,000 409,000 485,500 540,000 0.90 0.90 M_157327_927466

103 10/6/2023 R22_11_33_ MOLINA REALTY, LLC

IZAGUIRRE NATALIO ENRIQUE 

GARCIA 242 PINE ST 105 410,000 268,000 342,100 410,000 0.83 0.83 M_158731_925207

103 10/11/2023 R12_15_20_

LYONS ABBY M and  GRAINGER 

DUSTIN KINGSLEY THOMAS WARREN JR 15 JUNE ST 101 365,000 358,100 365,800 365,000 1.00 1.00 M_158092_925071

103 10/12/2023 H37_24_39A_ BELFORD BENJAMIN GENDREAU JOHN R 543 CLARK ST 103 215,000 153,300 188,300 215,000 0.88 0.88 M_159026_925487

103 10/12/2023 M22_3_36_ MARTIN RENALD LANDRY TAYLOR JACOB 31 JEAN ST 101 310,000 274,000 286,600 310,000 0.92 0.92 M_157925_924879

103 10/16/2023 H22_10_18_ DOUCETTE MATTHEW FILTEAU DANIEL A 254 COLEMAN ST 101 386,500 265,800 312,100 386,500 0.81 0.81

ALSO DEED 69764/69 (PARCEL 1 & 2).  ALL ARE 

COMBINED ON THIS PARCEL M_158298_923587

103 10/16/2023 M22_1_3_ BUZZELL KENNETH E JR CAPOCCIA ERIK 29 BRANCH ST 104 275,000 250,000 263,300 275,000 0.96 0.96 M_158876_924969

103 10/18/2023 M27_19_18_ CARRIE ANN MARION COX

VARGELETIS PEGUERO RAFAEL 

ANGEL 62 ORIOLE ST 101 330,000 297,200 324,900 330,000 0.98 0.98 M_158300_923484

103 10/20/2023 M17_12_2_ GPand C REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC VF GARLOCK LLC 77 INDUSTRIAL ROWE 400 V 9,598,585 3,187,900 4,605,500 9,598,585 0.48 0.48 M17_12_2 & M17_12_4 SOLD TOGETHER M_160281_922943

103 10/20/2023 M17_12_4_ GPand C REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS LLC VF GARLOCK LLC 0 INDUSTRIAL ROWE 403 V 9,598,585 9,400 9,400 9,598,585 0.00 0.00 M17_12_2 & M17_12_4 SOLD TOGETHER M_160281_922943

103 10/20/2023 M22_9_13_ DEJESUS REAL ESTATE LLC OSOK REALTY LLC 37 GREENWOOD ST 111 505,000 399,200 473,900 505,000 0.94 0.94 M_160621_925504

103 10/23/2023 R12_3_2_ REDMAN LAURIE ANN FIRST LAND INVESTMENTS LLC 101 UNION ST 101 O 180,000 340,700 349,600 180,000 1.94 1.94 PERMITS AFTER SALE - RESOLD 2024 FOR 470K M_161070_927356

103 10/24/2023 M27_20_100_02 04 MATSON HOMES INC WILLIAMS ANDREW JR 90 LAKE ST 102 170,000 167,700 175,200 170,000 1.03 1.03 M_158982_925416

103 10/24/2023 R12_3_2_ FIRST LAND INVESTMENTS LLC MF DEVELOPMENTS LLC 101 UNION ST 101 O 270,500 340,700 349,600 270,500 1.29 1.29 PERMITS AFTER SALE - RESOLD 2024 FOR 470K M_158738_924395

103 10/24/2023 R27_19_3_ MORSE AMANDA KUTEESA SHAKIRAH 4 COMEE ST 101 489,000 466,600 468,300 489,000 0.96 0.96 M_158878_924937

103 10/24/2023 R32_5_1B_ DYKE ROBERT D III BUROKAS STEVEN R 340 MATTHEWS RD 101 N 485,000 672,300 492,300 485,000 1.02 1.02

LISTED AND SOLD IN 3 DAYS BELOW MARKET 

WATER DAMAGED AT TIME OF SALE M_159415_925469

103 10/25/2023 M22_18_26_ M3 INNOVATIONS INC RAMIREZ RANDY A 190 WATERFORD ST 104 U 432,000 270,100 367,100 432,000 0.85 0.85 M_160044_925692

103 10/27/2023 M22_9_61_ MHG 3 FUND LLC HAAIM TOVEEM PROPERTIES LLC 45 GREENWOOD ST 111 620,000 371,600 442,200 620,000 0.71 0.71 M_158570_924096

103 10/27/2023 M27_24_23_ LOAYZA AQUINO FLOYD MARY A 73 MONADNOCK ST 101 321,000 275,200 293,600 321,000 0.91 0.91 M_158451_925081

103 10/27/2023 R27_17_11_ FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH

MARANATHA CHRISTIAN CHURCH 

OF AMERICA 28 GREEN ST 960 K 500,000 1,635,200 2,038,700 500,000 4.08 4.08 M_157614_928170

103 10/30/2023 H37_10_14_ LAKEVIEW LOAN SERVICING LLC CALDERON EDUARDO 188 FERNWOOD DR 101 S 273,850 345,200 352,700 273,850 1.29 1.29 M_158982_925120

103 10/30/2023 M17_3_2_ O BRIEN KATHLEEN BENJAMIN CASEY E 235 BARTHEL AVE 101 245,000 253,700 266,700 245,000 1.09 1.09 M_159398_925512

103 10/30/2023 M22_2_54_

JACQUES MICHAEL S and  LAURA V 

TRSTES 377 PARKER STREET LLC 377 PARKER ST 111 450,000 276,600 344,900 450,000 0.77 0.77 M_159096_925356

103 10/31/2023 M22_4_27_

AKSADI OSSAMA and  AKSADI 

ACHRAF ORTH SANDRO 172 PARKER ST 031 60,000 63,300 61,500 60,000 1.03 1.03 M_159353_924496

103 10/31/2023 M27_20_2_ MILLENNIUM HOLDING GROUP LLC MAPLELEAF RENTALS LLC 171 VERNON ST and  74 PARK 111 531,900 388,800 456,600 531,900 0.86 0.86 M_158739_925071

103 11/1/2023 M22_20_47_ M and  H INVESTMENTS LLC RICHARD HOLDINGS LLC 25 WRIGHT ST 111 420,000 403,400 472,700 420,000 1.13 1.13 M_158017_927246

103 11/1/2023 M27_24_48_ LEBLANC PATRICIA M

DASILVA ELIAS GONCALVES 

CORDEIRO 80 OAK ST 105 462,000 306,500 397,800 462,000 0.86 0.86 M_157967_926452

103 11/2/2023 M22_3_4_ JIRI LLC ALOUIDOR ELIJAH 282 PARKER ST 101 292,000 216,900 283,700 292,000 0.97 0.97 FLIPPED - FULL RENO M_160524_923290

103 11/3/2023 M32_1_100_05 02 MARK D BOWERS HEINILUOMA BARRY 26 CENTURY WAY 102 257,500 190,300 222,500 257,500 0.86 0.86 M_159522_921925

103 11/3/2023 M32_21_6_ BASSETT TODD COPONEN ROY 68 ACADIA RD 130 65,000 73,200 58,700 65,000 0.90 0.90 M_159731_924726

103 11/3/2023 R17_19_32_ WOOD JEFFREY TORRES ALEXIS SANTIAGO 67 S MAIN ST 101 239,900 186,600 207,000 239,900 0.86 0.86 M_158694_925735

103 11/7/2023 R17_12_24_ RANG HENG SWEENEY JOHN 24 JACKSON PK 101 S 320,000 485,700 481,600 320,000 1.51 1.51 FORECLOSURE DEED - WAS AUCTIONED M_160691_922420

103 11/9/2023 M27_13_23_ SOKOLOWSKI MARJORIE A RUTA CANDACE CAROLYN 105 SAND ST 101 325,000 289,600 307,500 325,000 0.95 0.95 M_157010_924979

103 11/9/2023 R07_1_1_ CARLSON DELORES E A DEMALIA JAMES 747 TIMPANY BLVD 101 H 265,000 397,600 398,900 265,000 1.51 1.51

WORCESTER COUNTY DOCKET NO: 

WO21P2761EA M_160945_925152

103 11/9/2023 R12_14_25_ MOORE JAMES H RESILIENT INVESTMENTS LLC 52 SUNSET RD 101 H 185,000 268,500 424,800 185,000 2.30 2.30

WORCESTER PROBATE DOCKET NO: 

WO18P0838EA M_160932_925171

103 11/9/2023 R22_11_12_ VALEDON OMAR M NASH NATHAN 126 WASHINGTON ST 105 390,000 343,700 416,800 390,000 1.07 1.07 M_159783_924969

103 11/9/2023 R22_5_16_ SIGIEN CHRISTOPHER FOSTER DONALD S II 104 BICKFORD HILL RD 101 V 305,000 362,400 372,800 305,000 1.22 1.22 ALSO: R-22-5-16A, R22-5-16B & R22-5-16C M_160969_925167

103 11/9/2023 R22_5_16A_ SIGIEN CHRISTOPER FOSTER DONALD S II 0 BICKFORD HILL RD 132 V 305,000 6,700 7,400 305,000 0.02 0.02

ALSO:  104 BICKFORD HILL RD, R-22-5-16B & R22-

5-16C M_160957_925187

103 11/9/2023 R22_5_16B_ SIGIEN CHRISTOPHER FOSTER DONALD S II 0 BICKFORD HILL RD 132 V 305,000 6,100 6,700 305,000 0.02 0.02

ALSO:  104 BICKFORD HILL RD, R-22-5-1A & R22-5-

16C M_161484_922195

103 11/9/2023 R22_5_16C_ SIGIEN CHRISTOPHER FOSTER DONALD S II 0 BICKFORD HILL RD 132 V 305,000 6,600 7,200 305,000 0.02 0.02

ALSO:  104 BICKFORD HILL RD, R-22-5-16A & R22-

5-16B M_163175_924216

103 11/9/2023 W12_22_23_ BOUCHER DANIEL S AGNIR SHARON 16 CHATHAM ST 101 340,000 276,100 287,200 340,000 0.84 0.84 M_160231_923554

103 11/9/2023 X17_2_100_08 04 RILEY LAWRENCE D SUPERNOR MIKAYLA ROSE 44 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 258,000 182,100 240,100 258,000 0.93 0.93 M_160019_923695

103 11/13/2023 R17_18_3_ MORGAN CHARLES A and  JANICE L PICAZIO STEPHEN 36 KENDALL ST 101 329,900 312,800 324,100 329,900 0.98 0.98 M_159624_924767

103 11/15/2023 H22_7_1_ LAPLANTE EDMOND J CHAMPNEY JOSEPH 99 RIVERSIDE RD 101 H 75,000 174,800 182,300 75,000 2.43 2.43 WORC COUNTY DOCKET NO:  WO23P2279EA M_160650_922761

103 11/16/2023 R22_11_31_ O NEILL GARY P SMITH MEAGHAN 228 PINE ST 104 285,000 255,400 268,200 285,000 0.94 0.94 M_159993_925882

103 11/17/2023 R12_9_17_ MARK ROY JR FERNANDEZ PREVILLE ZULY 39 CHARLES ST 101 370,000 336,100 383,500 370,000 1.04 1.04 M_158844_925340

103 11/20/2023 R27_12_1_ BURKE DEBRA R DAVAN SUSAN 104 WOODLAND AVE 101 U 200,000 371,500 365,900 200,000 1.83 1.83 M_158844_925340

103 11/21/2023 M27_23_33_ RONALD WYTHE JR FIRST LANDING INVESTMENTS LLC 127 WEST ST 101 O 155,000 95,300 267,700 155,000 1.73 1.73 PERMITS AFTER SALE - RESOLD $330K 2024 M_159540_924843

103 11/21/2023 M27_23_33_ FIRST LANDING INVESTMENTS LLC WEST ST MANAGEMENT LLC 127 WEST ST 101 O 199,000 95,300 267,700 199,000 1.35 1.35 PERMITS AFTER SALE - RESOLD $330K 2024 M_159293_924661

103 11/22/2023 R22_6_5_ MOLINA LANDMARK LLC REALGARDNER LLC 187 PINE ST 101 400,000 263,100 395,900 400,000 0.99 0.99 M_158876_924954

103 11/27/2023 M22_15_4_ NSUBUGA JOHN AGUILAR MERIBETH LISBETH RAMOS 243 PLEASANT ST 101 325,000 162,000 383,900 325,000 1.18 1.18 M_159866_923769

103 11/30/2023 M22_9_1_ MHG 6 FUND LLC DOUCET ERIC 41 GREENWOOD ST 111 O 608,000 417,700 497,700 608,000 0.82 0.82 PERMITS AFTER SALE M_161050_925659

103 11/30/2023 R17_7_6_ BACZEWSKI JANET E KORANG PRINCE 18 WARWICK RD 101 350,000 297,800 304,900 350,000 0.87 0.87 M_158034_926742

103 11/30/2023 W27_16_100_02 14 SILVIA GLENN P and  FRANCES M TARR SUSAN M 27 RIDGEWOOD LN 102 143,000 106,600 142,200 143,000 0.99 0.99 M_158442_924943

103 12/1/2023 M22_7_33_

MORSE DEBORAH L and  JESSICA M 

TRUSTEES RIDLEY JERRY A 22 LEAMY ST 104 U 310,000 284,700 315,000 310,000 1.02 1.02

PRIVATE SALE - PER NEW OWNER/SALES 

QUESTIONNAIRE M_159880_924931

103 12/1/2023 R22_7_18_ ML BOWEN LLC NEW MAN VENTURES LLC 78 SHERMAN ST 111 V 435,000 394,900 468,800 435,000 1.08 1.08 ALSO:  R22-7-2 M_159868_924886

103 12/1/2023 R22_7_2_ ML BOWEN LLC NEW MAN VENTURES LLC 0 SHERMAN ST 131 V 435,000 31,100 34,200 435,000 0.08 0.08 ALSO:  R22-7-18 M_158368_924508

103 12/4/2023 M32_16_10A_ DALE M SPENCER BOLDUC DAVID J 23 COMEAU RD 101 365,000 298,300 316,100 365,000 0.87 0.87 M_160321_926003

103 12/7/2023 M22_17_4_ LECHEVAL LLC FIVE ONE EIGHT LLC 114 COBURN AVE 401 N 550,000 934,800 840,700 550,000 1.53 1.53

SELLER FINANCED $495KF IVE ONE EIGHT LLC = 

ERIC P & MARGARET DESILETS (PER SALES 

QUESTIONNAIRE: 60% VACANT WHEN 

PURCHASED) M_158363_925017

103 12/7/2023 R27_8_19_ MAILLOUX THOMAS R KING SCOTT 12 BECKY AVE 101 H 258,000 277,100 286,800 258,000 1.11 1.11 WORCESTER COUNTY DOCKET: WO23P3411EA M_157313_926684

103 12/8/2023 H32_19_13_ MILLER JEFF L KELLY KAILEEN MARIE 649 WEST ST 101 U 248,000 258,300 273,900 248,000 1.10 1.10 DO NOT SEE ON MLS M_157599_923066

103 12/12/2023 M22_7_30_ BRODEUR ADAM P ROBICHAUD AARON J 408 PARKER ST 104 N 343,000 244,100 256,100 343,000 0.75 0.75

SELLING RE AGENT IS ADAM BRODEUR OF 

FOSTER-HEALEY RE (978-537-8301) M_158163_925423

103 12/14/2023 H17_25_6_ DAVIDSON PAULA M AHEARN EDWIN 29 SNAKE POND RD 101 275,000 288,500 284,800 275,000 1.04 1.04 M_160432_924849

103 12/14/2023 M27_21_32_ DEARDEN LEEDAN STELLA JAMES JR 104 DOUGLAS RD 101 425,000 381,100 398,400 425,000 0.94 0.94 M_160629_925471

103 12/15/2023 M17_4_3_ MOLINA REALTY LLC FARRELL VICTORIA 18 GREENWOOD PL 105 450,000 280,400 411,000 450,000 0.91 0.91 M_159691_924332

11395



103 12/15/2023 M22_10_32B_

DOWNTOWN GARDNER HOLDINGS 

LLC

GARDNER REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 82 MAIN ST 930 E 50,000 0 92,900 50,000 1.86 1.86 SUBDIVIDED FROM M22-10-32 (82-84 MAIN ST) M_159428_925010

103 12/15/2023 M27_17_64_ ADAMS ROSS CORSI THOMAS 72 PELLEY ST 101 326,000 247,200 276,300 326,000 0.85 0.85 M_162136_926333

103 12/15/2023 R22_9_2_ GUAY MARIO A and  VERONICA F DUMAS PAUL 195 LAWRENCE ST 101 525,000 423,700 423,100 525,000 0.81 0.81 M_158528_925273

103 12/15/2023 R27_24_59_ FRIEND TUCKER N GUAY MARIO 20 COMEE ST 101 560,000 564,800 564,900 560,000 1.01 1.01 M_159296_925238

103 12/15/2023 W27_4_14_ MEANY JOHN W and  ELIZABETH E MEANY PHILIP A 27 CARTER RD 101 A 210,000 275,300 288,600 210,000 1.37 1.37

WORCESTER COUNTY DOCKET: WO23P2382EA 

(SON & WIFE PURCHASED) M_158545_925694

103 12/19/2023 M27_22_26_ PROJECT 11:11 INC PEREZ LILIAN ELIZABETH MEJIA 65 COLEMAN ST 104 U 290,000 306,300 321,900 290,000 1.11 1.11 LAST MLS FOUND WAS FROM 2016 M_160281_924569

103 12/20/2023 M22_5_29_ WAGNER JOHN D TRUSTEE PORCIELLO AMANDA 32 VERNON ST 101 H 310,000 256,100 299,700 310,000 0.97 0.97 PROBATE DOCKET WO23P3602EA M_160472_924387

103 12/20/2023 R12_8_17B_ COMISKEY PATRICK J COMISKEY PATRICK J 58 SUMMIT AVE 101 A 93,000 294,600 296,800 93,000 3.19 3.19 UNMARRIED COUPLE SEPARATION M_160113_925350

103 12/20/2023 R22_18_13_ MOLINA TONY A AGUILAR QUERI A 376 CHESTNUT ST 105 U 630,000 332,500 745,900 630,000 1.18 1.18 LAST MLS LISTING WAS FROM 2021 SALE M_160778_923642

103 12/21/2023 R17_15_10_ WORTHLEY AMY BOREY NICHOLAS A 41 CLEVELAND ST 101 315,000 285,500 298,400 315,000 0.95 0.95 M_159447_924369

103 12/21/2023 R22_19_27_ DORA DOROTHY K BOUPHA PHAY 94 FAIRLAWN AVE 101 425,000 372,500 393,700 425,000 0.93 0.93 M_163257_924114

103 12/21/2023 R22_21_4_ BOUPHA PHAY PRATT KENNETH D 385 MAIN ST 105 447,000 335,300 433,600 447,000 0.97 0.97 M_158445_925574

103 12/21/2023 R27_23_5_ HARRIS CHRISTOPHER N PAQUET KEITH A 20 WALNUT ST 104 O 125,000 207,300 229,700 125,000 1.84 1.84 PERMITS AFTER SALE - RESOLD 2024 FOR 220K M_158403_925925

103 12/22/2023 M22_25_6_ DROUIN SKYLAR RODRIGUEZ GERARDO LOPEZ 53 EMERALD ST 101 300,000 312,000 337,500 300,000 1.13 1.13 M_159176_926283

103 12/22/2023 M27_7_14_ LAFONTAINE ELEANOR E LIFE TURNBAUGH SETH 58 HALFORD ST 104 320,000 259,000 272,500 320,000 0.85 0.85 M_159461_923607

103 12/27/2023 X17_2_100_03 02 ARSENAULT CHEYANNE LANGFORD LAURINDA ROSA 23 OLDE COLONIAL DR 102 249,900 184,300 223,200 249,900 0.89 0.89 M_160408_922685

103 12/28/2023 M17_15_3_ RUSSO JOHN and  CARMELLA COLLETTE JOSEPH 350 W BROADWAY 101 H 400,000 310,800 327,100 400,000 0.82 0.82 WORCESTER PROBATE DOCKET: WO23P2694EA M_159461_923607

103 12/29/2023 M27_17_10_ LEAHY ELIZABETH M and  ROBERT G ALBERT ANGELA 260 WEST ST 101 250,000 235,400 243,200 250,000 0.97 0.97 M_158445_925574

103 12/29/2023 M27_4_6A_ DWYER ROBERT A BOMBAY LLC 307 PARK ST 101 125,000 217,200 125,700 125,000 1.01 1.01 M_159176_926283

11395



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

September 26, 2024 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of City Valuations- LA4 

Dear Madam President and Councilors,   

Following the close of the Fiscal Year, the City Assessor’s Office conducts a statutorily required 

review of the valuations of properties in the City across all classifications of properties. This is 

known as the LA4 Certification Process.  

Attached, please find the City-wide valuation report of all properties in the City as well as the 

property designation code guide produced by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue for your 

information.  

This is all part of the process to eventually set the tax rate for the current fiscal year. The 

remaining steps in that process that are yet to be done include the certification of free cash, the 

certification of the tax recapitulation sheet, and the public hearing and vote by the City Council 

on the tax classification.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11396



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE Gardner

DIVISION OF LOCAL SERVICES CITY

BUREAU OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT

ASSESSMENT/CLASSIFICATION REPORT as of January 1, 2024

Fiscal Year 2025

Printed on: 9/19/2024 9:37:22 AM Page 1 of 2

 

Property Type Parcel Count Class1 Residential Class2 Open Space Class3 Commercial Class4 Industrial Class5 Pers Prop

101 4,032  1,374,021,800         

102 547  95,856,900         

MISC 103,109 80  23,320,200         

104 546  161,087,800         

105 262  107,557,000         

111-125 180  178,375,800         

130-32,106 458  16,926,900         

200-231 0    0       

300-393 293      169,836,400     

400-442 135        86,390,740   

450-452 5        1,874,400   

CH 61 LAND 4  0  0  17,661     

CH 61A LAND 3  3    0  30,000     

CH 61B LAND 6  6    0  501,800     

012-043 59  22,232,880  0  13,552,059  727,000   

501 148          9,496,510 

502 152        23,294,220 

503 0          0 

504 3          57,961,950 

505 2          2,585,100 

506 0          0 

508 3          1,055,600 

550-552 7          14,764,300 

TOTALS 6,934  1,979,379,280  0  183,937,920  88,992,140  109,157,680 

Real and Personal Property Total Value 2,361,467,020 

Exempt Parcel Count & Value 512  483,578,300 

For CH 61, 61A and 61B Land: enter the mixed use parcel count in the left-hand box, and enter the 100% Chapter land parcel count in the right-hand box.

Signatures

Board of Assessors

Paulette A. Burns, Assessor , Gardner , duncan.burns75@gmail.com 978-630-4004 | 9/18/2024 9:42 AM

Christine Marie Kumar, City Assessor , Gardner , ckumar@gardner-ma.gov 978-630-4004 | 9/17/2024 11:13 AM

Charles R. Leblanc, Assessor , Gardner , leblanc37@comcast.net 978-630-4004 | 9/18/2024 9:47 AM

11396



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE Gardner

DIVISION OF LOCAL SERVICES CITY

BUREAU OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT

ASSESSMENT/CLASSIFICATION REPORT as of January 1, 2024

Fiscal Year 2025

Printed on: 9/19/2024 9:37:22 AM Page 2 of 2

Comments

No comments to display.

Documents

Documents have been uploaded.

11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



11396



 

                         City of Gardner - Executive Department 

              Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 
 

 
September 26, 2024 

 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President  

 And City Councilors  

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

 

RE: A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of New Growth – LA13 

 

Dear Madam President and Councilors,   

 

Following the close of the Fiscal Year, the City Assessor’s Office conducts a statutorily required review of 

the growth that the City’s tax based experienced since the budget was approved. This process, known as 

the LA-13 certification, is the second part of the procedure that eventually leads to the City’s tax rate for 

the current fiscal year being set.  

 

The Commonwealth’s Department of Revenue defines “New Growth,” as improvements to properties that 

have been made as well as new construction that has occurred since the fiscal year’s budgetary 

appropriations were originally approved. In order for new construction to be factored into new growth, a 

full certificate of occupancy and final inspection must be done, issued, and completed.  

 

The City’s New Growth amount was certified at $282,351.00.  

 

This is positive for the City, in that it is $32,351.00 higher than what the Administration budgeted for in 

our revenue estimates for FY2024.  

 

However, it is also worth noting that this is also the lowest amount free cash has been certified at for the 

City since 2015. (See Figure 1) There are several factors that lead to this. New growth is solely based on 

the amount of investment that people do on their properties. If a property has been purchased but the 

plans have neither been started, nor completed yet, then that growth is not yet captured on the site.  

 

While there has been an increased interest in the City, particularly within the Downtown, a lot of these 

projects are on hold awaiting electrical upgrades and transformer installation from National Grid, which 

has a 18 to 24 month lead time between order and installation currently.  

 
Figure 1: Certified New Growth- FY16-FY25 (Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue) 

 $200,000.00

 $300,000.00

 $400,000.00

 $500,000.00

 $600,000.00

 $700,000.00

 F
Y2

0
1

6

 F
Y2

0
1

7

 F
Y2

0
1

8

 F
Y2

0
1

9

 F
Y2

0
2

0

 F
Y2

0
2

1

 F
Y2

0
2

2

 F
Y2

0
2

3

 F
Y2

0
2

4

 F
Y2

0
2

5

Certified New Growth 

11397



   

 

Additionally, trends for homeowner investments into their properties also tend to mimic economic trends. 

With inflation still high and the price of materials still at a higher range than a few years ago, fewer 

people are making large scale improvements to their homes or have put their projects on hold, waiting to 

see if the market dips down again. This is not unique to Gardner, but is something that many communities 

across the Commonwealth and country are experiencing.  

 
Figure 2: City of Gardner Property Tax Revenue Breakdown- FY16-25 (Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue) 

However, I previously stated, this is still positive for the City with the amount still being over budgeted 

revenues. While the amount of new growth this year is a smaller percentage of the overall revenue for the 

City, it does provide us with more than anticipated. The Administration will be weighing the options of 

submitting a supplemental budget or having this difference call to free cash at the end of the fiscal year. 

As that decision gets made, I will be sure to notify the Council ahead of time as I have done in the past.  

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner  

92.00%

93.00%

94.00%

95.00%

96.00%

97.00%

98.00%

99.00%

100.00%

 FY2016  FY2017  FY2018  FY2019  FY2020  FY2021  FY2022  FY2023  FY2024  FY2025

City Property Tax Revenue Breakdown
FY16-FY25

Prior Year Tax Levy $$ Increase New Growth

11397



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE Gardner

DIVISION OF LOCAL SERVICES CITY

BUREAU OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT

LA13 Tax Base Levy Growth

Retain documentation for 5 years in case of DOR audit - Fiscal Year 2025

Printed on: 9/19/2024 9:38:21 AM Page 1 of 2

Property Class (A)  
All Prior Year Abatement No.

(B)  
All Prior Year Abatement Values

(C)  
New Growth Valuation

(D)  
PY Tax Rate

(E)  
Tax Levy Growth

RESIDENTIAL          

SINGLE FAMILY (101)  2  176,000  4,551,100     

CONDOMINIUM (102)  0  0  50,900     

TWO & THREE FAMILY (104 & 105)  0  0  1,685,900     

MULTI - FAMILY (111-125)  1  503,000  2,376,000     

VACANT LAND (130-132 & 106)  0  0  189,700     

ALL OTHERS (103, 109, 012-018)  0  0  459,000     

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL  3  679,000  9,312,600  14.99  139,596 

OPEN SPACE  0  0  0     

OPEN SPACE - CHAPTER 61, 61A, 61B  0  0  0     

TOTAL OPEN SPACE  0  0  0  0.00  0 

COMMERCIAL  1  11,800  2,443,600     

COMMERCIAL - CHAPTER 61, 61A, 61B  0  0  0     

TOTAL COMMERCIAL  1  11,800  2,443,600  14.99  36,630 

INDUSTRIAL  0  0  122,900  14.99  1,842 

PERSONAL PROPERTY  3  451,940  6,996,840  14.99  104,883 

TOTAL REAL & PERSONAL  7  1,142,740  18,875,940    282,951 

Community Comments:

400 MATTHEWS RD (W37//21/1) - THE ADDITION OF 2 LARGE METAL BUILDINGS, INCREASED PRIME ACREAGE, ADDED STORAGE CONTAINERS. 32-52 PARKER STREET (M22//5/24) - 2 
BUILDINGS UNDER CONSTRUCTION WENT FROM 38 AND 43 PERCENT TO 100 PERCENT COMPLETE I did make some adjustments that lowered the total (as compared to the Vision report from 9/17/24).

Signatures

Board of Assessors

11397



MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE Gardner

DIVISION OF LOCAL SERVICES CITY

BUREAU OF LOCAL ASSESSMENT

LA13 Tax Base Levy Growth

Retain documentation for 5 years in case of DOR audit - Fiscal Year 2025

Printed on: 9/19/2024 9:38:21 AM Page 2 of 2

Signatures
Paulette A. Burns, Assessor , Gardner , duncan.burns75@gmail.com 978-630-4004 | 9/18/2024 9:43 AM

Christine Marie Kumar, City Assessor , Gardner , ckumar@gardner-ma.gov 978-630-4004 | 9/17/2024 11:58 AM

Charles R. Leblanc, Assessor , Gardner , leblanc37@comcast.net 978-630-4004 | 9/18/2024 9:47 AM

Documents

Documents have been uploaded.

11397



 

                         City of Gardner - Executive Department 

              Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 
 
 

September 27, 2024 

 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President  

 And City Councilors  

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

 

RE: A Communication from the Mayor Regarding City Employee Health Insurance Rates  

 

Dear Madam President and Councilors,   

 

Every year in August and September, the City meets with our insurance broker, Cook and Company, to review trends in 

our insurance claims and set our insurance rates for the upcoming insurance year – October 1 through September 30th.  

 

For several years, the City did not increase health insurance rates for our employees, but did increase them slightly over 

the last few years.  

 

As the City is a self-insured organization with Blue Cross Blue Sheild managing our Health Insurance Trust Fund, this is 

something that the trends in claims impact a lot more than if the City was managing its own trust.  

 

During the last year, those on the City’s insurance experienced an unprecedented number of high claims that were not 

predicted when the rates were set in September of last year. Due to these claims and the costs associated with them, Blue 

Cross Blue Shield and Cook and Company recommended increases in insurance rates of 24% for the coming year.  

 

Understanding the substantial impact this has on both the City’s employees, and the City’s general fund (the City covers 

75% of premiums and employee payroll deductions cover 25%), the City has decided to increase insurance rates by 20% 

and cover the difference in revenue from the City’s share to help slightly alleviate this increase to our employees. 

Additionally, where as the current health insurance plan is a New England Plan, we are also now offering a Massachusetts 

Plan that would only see an increase in rates of 15% for those that chose this offering. Dental insurance Rates have been 

increased by 3%. Additionally, this is the first time that Mental Health has been listed on our high claim list and the largest 

amount that issues related to alcohol has been listed as well. As such, the City’s Human Resources department is working 

with our insurance company to launch a series of wellness programs to address these issues during the coming year.  

 

Additionally, the Administration has made the decision to only extend this plan year through June 30th, 2025, so that the 

insurance year will now line up with the fiscal year to assist with regular budgetary planning for the upcoming fiscal year 

so that we are not caught with these unanticipated large increases in the future.  

 

It should be noted that this increase only impact current employees on our family and individual plans. This does not 

impact our retirees on MedEx plans.  

 

The full information packets received by Blue Cross and Cook and Company are attached to this correspondence for your 

information.   

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner  

11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



11398



 

                         City of Gardner - Executive Department 

              Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 
 

 

September 27, 2024 

 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President  

 And City Councilors  

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

 

RE: A Measure Authorizing the Mayor to Enter into a Grant Agreement Lease with the Gardner 

Community Action Committee for a use of a portion of the space at the Waterford Community 

Center located at 62 Waterford Street   

 

Dear Madam President and Councilors,   

 

At the August 5, 2024 meeting of the City Council, the Council unanimously voted to declare the 

Waterford Community Center, located at 62 Waterford Street, as surplus for the purpose of 

leasing out the property to create a new non-profit community center.  

 

The attached vote would authorize the City to enter into a grant agreement lease with the 

Gardner Community Action Committee (CAC) for the portion of the property covering the 

former Library and front office space of the building.  

 

This type of lease that the CAC currently has with the City for the space they currently occupy in 

the Senior Center Building on Pleasant Street.  

 

In this instance, the City provides the space of the building to the CAC as an in-kind grant, rather 

than a monetary grant.  

 

There still is a lot of work that needs to be done in the location before full public access can be 

granted to the space, but this should start the process moving forward and keep progress 

happening at the site.  

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner  

11399



A MEASURE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A GRANT LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH THE GARDNER COMMUNITY ACTOIN COMMITTEE FOR A PORTION OF THE 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 62 WATERFORD STREET, DESIGNATED AS THE WATERFORD 
COMMUNITY CENTER, IN ORDER TO PROVIDE SOCIAL SERVICES TO AREA RESIDENTS 

 
WHEREAS, starting as a small food pantry in 1970, the Gardner CAC has grown to meet the 
needs of the broader community by developing new programs; and  
 
WHEREAS, in addition to Gardner, the Gardner Community Action Committee provides 
services to the surrounding communities of Ashburnham, Hubbardston, Westminster, and 
Templeton in North Central Massachusetts; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Gardner Community Action Committee provides the following services to the 
City’s residents:   

- Food Pantry – Provides shelf stable foods, fresh fruits and vegetables, frozen meats, 
eggs, dairy and bread to income eligible households once per month. 

- Fellowship Table – Offers a free nutritious homemade meal each Thursday, serving as a 
drive-thru. 

- Backpack Program – Provides brand new backpacks and school supplies to students 
enrolled in kindergarten through 12th grade. 

- Dinners On Us - Offering a healthy means to prepare a home cooked meal 
- Medical Transportation – Provides senior citizens, age 60+, transportation to and from 

medical appointments, follow-up care and pharmacies. 
- Emergency Assistance – Assist individuals who have eviction notices, termination 

notice and/or are out of heating funds.  
- Clothing Closet – Offers free gently used clothing and household goods to anyone in 

need. 
- Help Connection – Guides individuals who are recently experiencing crisis to resources 

available to them, if we are unable to assist at our agency. 
 
WHEREAS, in the past two years, the Gardner Community Action Committee food security 
programs have seen an unprecedented increase of 63% in demand for service.  Today alone, 
the Gardner Community Action Committee provide 33 households/80 individuals with food; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, during the period from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, the Gardner Community 
Action Committee provided services to over 13,000 individuals and since July 1, 2024 has 
provided services to 2,785 individuals;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in recognition of the services that the Gardner Community Action 
Committee provides to the area’s residents, The City Council of the City of Gardner hereby 
authorizes the Mayor to enter into a grant lease agreement with the Gardner Community Action 
Committee for space at the Waterford Community Center, located at 62 Waterford Street, 
pursuant to all requirements and provisions of the General Laws of the Commonwealth and the 
Code of the City of Gardner.  

11399



 

1 

 

THE CITY OF GARDNER 

NON-GOVERNMENT GRANT LEASE 

WATERFORD STREET COMMUNITY CENTER 

This lease entered into as of this ___ day of _______, 20____ by and between the CITY OF 

GARDNER, through its Mayor duly elected and authorized, having a mailing address at City of 

Gardner, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, Massachusetts 01440 (hereinafter called the “Lessor” or 

“City”, which expression shall include its successors and assigns where the context so admits), and 

the Gardner Community Action Committee, Inc., a Massachusetts not for profit corporation, having 

a mailing address at 294 Pleasant Street, Gardner, MA 01440(hereinafter called the “Lessee”, which 

expression shall include its successors and assigns where the context so admits). 

LEASED PREMISES 

In consideration of the consideration set forth herein , the sufficiency of which the Parties 

acknowledge and together with the covenants herein reserved and contained on the part of the Lessee 

to be paid, performed and observed, the Lessor does hereby demise and lease unto the Lessee, the 

land with the buildings and improvements  thereon owned by the Lessor situated in the City of 

Gardner, Worcester County, Massachusetts, described as follows: 

1. That portion of the building located at ___________ Waterford Street, commonly known as 

the Waterford Street Community Center (the “Premises”), consisting of ______ square feet, 

being Unit _____ as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference (herein the “   ”) to be used as set forth in this Lease (hereinafter 

called the “Leased Premises”). 

It is specifically acknowledged by the Parties that this is a lease by grant of the City to the 

Gardner CAC in exchange for the services that the CAC provides to the residents of the City of 

Gardner.  

USE OF LEASED PREMISES  

Except with the express written consent or permission of the Lessor, no addition or alteration 

to or upon the Leased Premises shall be made and no trade, occupation or activity other than the 

Lessee’s use be made of the Leased Premises by the Lessee. Lessee’s use shall be limited to the 

provision of community support services provided to economically disadvantaged individuals 

throughout the greater Gardner community, including but not limited to the operation of a food 

pantry, and heating fuel assistance program. 

It is agreed and understood that only those activities which promote the Lessee and its 

activities or other community events may be undertaken on the Premises. No alcoholic beverages 

shall be permitted, stored, consumed or used on the Premises without the express written permission 

or consent of the Lessor which permission shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed if the 

storage, consumption or use of alcohol is in connection with Lessee’s fundraising or other functions 

and activities, and in accordance with all legal requirements. Nothing contained herein shall however 

11399



 

2 

imply that the Lessor will approve the use of alcohol on the Premises and any such approval shall 

not preclude the denial of approval thereafter. The Lessee shall operate the Leased Premises so as to 

not unreasonably disturb other businesses, governmental operations and residences in the property or 

the surrounding area. In carrying out its activities, the Lessee shall direct persons on the Premises to 

conduct themselves in a manner that does not unreasonably disturb the area reasonably proximate to 

the Premises or which constitutes a breach of the peace or otherwise violates the law. 

In no event shall any trade, occupation, use or activity be conducted or permitted thereon by 

the Lessee which shall be unlawful or improper, inconsistent with or contrary to any law of the 

United States, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the Ordinances of the City of Gardner, or rules 

and regulations thereof, as the same may be in effect from time to time, or injurious to any person or 

property.  The Lessee shall be responsible for ascertaining, obtaining and maintaining all required 

permits and authorizations for the conduct of any activity on the Premises.   

TERM 

The term of this Lease shall be for a period of five (5) years consisting commencing on 

October 1, 2024 and ending on September 30, 2029 (the “Term”) upon the terms and conditions 

contained in this lease. This grant of lease shall automatically renew for successive one year terms 

(each referred to as an “Extension Term”) under the same terms and conditions as set forth herein 

unless either party provides the other with no less than ninety (90) days’ notice prior to the end of the 

Term or an Extension Term. 

The City may sell or otherwise convey some or all of the Premises with City Council 

approval and in compliance with all legal requirements, any sale or conveyance may affect the 

Lessee’s rights under this Lease or law.  However, nothing contained herein shall be construed as an 

obligation of the City to sell some or all of the Premises or offer some or all of the Premises for sale. 

RENT & RENT COMMENCEMENT 

The rent payable by the Lessee for each five-year term shall be in the initial amount of 

One Dollar ($1.00) annually and shall be paid to the Lessor On or before October 1 of each year 

of the Term. It is expressly agreed that this is a grant lease to Lessor in exchange for the 

charitable services that the Lessor shall prodide to economically disadvantaged residents of the 

greater Gardner communities. The rent for each term shall be as follows.  

To the extent the Lessee is not approved by the City of Gardner Board of Assessors as a real 

estate tax exempt Lessee of public property, and to the extent otherwise applicable, the Lessee 

covenants and agrees to pay to the City of Gardner as the same become due in accordance with the 

General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, all real estate taxes assessed to the Lessee 

under the provisions of Section 2b of Chapter 59 of the General Laws or any other acts or 

amendments thereto or in substitution thereof. In the event of the repeal of Section 2b of Chapter 59 

of the General Laws or the non-applicability of Section 2b of Chapter 59 of the General Laws or the 

failure to enact similar Legislation in substitution thereof, the Lessee covenants and agrees to pay as 

rent to the Lessor within thirty (30) days of the time tax bills are issued, a sum equal to the amount 

of taxes that would have been due and payable in each fiscal tax year by that date for said property.  

11399



 

3 

It shall be the responsibility of the Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, to seek, obtain and maintain 

any exemption from the obligation to pay real estate taxes or payments in lieu of real estate taxes.  

Lessee acknowledges that the Lessor has no control over any decision of the applicable body or 

entity which makes such determinations. 

Notwithstanding and in addition to any of the remedies and rights of the City of Gardner for 

non-payment of real estate taxes as provided by law, should the Lessee fail or neglect to pay in full 

by the due date any real estate taxes or payment in lieu of real estate taxes assessed or charged by 

the City of Gardner to the Lessee for the Leased Premises, this lease may be terminated by the City 

by giving written notice of such termination to the Lessee. In such event, this lease will terminate in 

accordance with the notice, provided however, that the Lease will not be construed to have 

terminated if within fourteen (14) days following such notice, full payment of all such real estate 

taxes together with all charges and interest is made at the office of the tax collector of the City of 

Gardner.  

During the term of this lease, or thereafter for any year included within the term hereof, the 

Lessee will not, and does hereby waive any rights under law, file an application for nor accept an 

abatement of taxes assessed to the Lessee for the Leased Premises and buildings owned by the City 

of Gardner more than once every three (3) years, unless except in a year during which the Leased 

Premises or any part thereof or building or part thereof or building or part thereof owned by the City 

of Gardner shall have been damaged by fire or other unavoidable casualty. Lessor shall be supplied 

by Lessee with copies of all notices or papers filed relative to any such abatement application when 

filed with the Board of Assessors. 

Without waiving any other remedy available by law or under the terms of this lease for any 

breach thereof, including failure to pay the rent provided for, interest at the rate of 1.0% per month 

may be assessed by the Lessor to any delinquent payments.  

QUIET ENJOYMENT 

 Lessee, upon paying the rent and other charges herein provided for and observing and 

keeping the covenants and agreements of this Lease on its part to be kept, shall quietly have and 

enjoy the use of the Leased Premises during the Term, without hindrance or molestation by the 

Lessor or anyone claiming by or through Lessor. 

ASSIGNMENT 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that it will not assign this lease nor sublet the whole or any 

part of the Leased Premises or otherwise encumber the Leased Premises without the express prior 

written permission of the City. 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

The Lessee covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify, and save the Lessor its officials, 

agents, servants and employees harmless from and against any claims and demands for damages to 

persons or property suffered on account of the acts, action, fault or omission of the Lessee or arising 

from the violation by it of any law, ordinance, or statute or from the use of the Leased Premises by 

11399



 

4 

the Lessee or those upon the Leased Premises. The indemnification, defense and hold harmless 

rights and obligations shall accrue immediately upon the utterance of a claim or complaint covered 

by this agreement, regardless of other claims simultaneously brought, and shall not be contingent 

upon the merits of such claim or questions of fact raised by the claim or complaint.  This section will 

survive the expiration or termination of this Lease.  

The Lessee covenants and agrees that at the commencement of the term hereof and for each 

successive term thereafter or during any period the Lessee holds over with the permission (implied 

or expressed) of the Lessor, it shall provide and send to the Lessor policies of insurance or evidence 

thereof, insuring both the Lessor and the Lessee for public liability.  If such policies are accepted by 

the Lessor, they shall become a part of this lease. 

All insurance shall be with companies authorized to do business in Massachusetts and 

reasonably acceptable to the Lessor and shall be in such form and contain such terms and conditions 

as are reasonably acceptable to the Lessor and shall include the Lessor as an additional insured. 

The obligations of the Lessee hereunder shall extend to the Premises, including any 

walkways, buildings, ramps, open space, parking areas and common areas located thereon. As 

relates to events sponsored or permitted by the Lessee which extend outside of the demised 

premises, the Lessee shall ensure that said insurance or a rider to same will cover the area used 

outside of the demised premises. 

The Lessor and the Lessee mutually covenant and agree that the Premises shall be protected 

and insured against loss by fire and other casualties initially as set forth below in such amounts, 

types and terms as may be reasonably designated from time to time by the Lessor and which shall be 

reasonably obtainable by the Lessee.  Said insurance shall be obtained initially in the following 

amounts, types and terms and shall be subject to reasonable change in amounts, types and terms by 

the Lessor within thirty (30) days after written notice to Lessee, and shall extend in coverage to the 

Premises and the operations of the Lessee thereon: 

General Liability: 

$1,000,000.00 Per Occurrence 

$2,000,000.00 Aggregate 

Fire Legal Liability:  

$500,000.00 or such additional amount as the Lessor may reasonably require and which 

shall be reasonably obtainable to the Lessee.  This insurance, or an alternative reasonably 

satisfactory to the Lessor, shall be obtained within 30 days after written notice to Lessee. 

 Umbrella/Excess Liability: 

$2,000,000.00 

 

11399



 

5 

It is agreed that in the event that the Lessee neglects to provide or cannot reasonably secure 

the insurance on its part to be obtained as herein provided, or in the event the same or any part 

thereof is canceled or a policy or policies lapse for whatever reason, so that at any time during the 

term of this Lease there is in force less than the required types and amounts of insurance, the Lessor 

may, by giving notice in writing to the Lessee, terminate this Lease, and in such event, the Lease will 

terminate in accordance with the notice; provided however, that the Lease will not be construed to 

have been terminated if within fourteen (14) business days following such notice, the required 

insurance is obtained and evidence thereof delivered to the Purchasing Department. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, in the event that the Lessee does not have 

in full force and effect the required insurance, then in that event all operations and activities on the 

Premises shall immediately cease, and the Lessee shall take all necessary steps to secure the Leased 

Premises and prevent access to and use of the same, until such time as the required insurance is 

obtained or the Lease is terminated. 

The Lessor shall not be responsible in any manner for the contents of the demised Premises. 

Any insurance for the contents shall be the sole cost and responsibility of the Lessee. 

It is agreed that cost of any insurance shall not be a factor in determining whether 

insurance is reasonable or reasonably obtainable. 

PARKING 

 Lessee shall have access to all parking areas located on the Premises, in common with all 

other tenants and occupants of the Premises, and shall not designate any parking spaces as 

exclusive or for Lessee’s use only. Lessee shall also have, in common with all other tenants and 

occupants of the Premises all ingresses and egresses, all sidewalks, and the main front entrance 

of the Premises. 

COMMON AREAS 

 All automobile parking areas, entrances and exits thereto, and other facilities furnished by 

Lessor from time to time on the Premises, including, without limitation, employee and customer 

parking areas, pedestrian sidewalks and ramps, landscaped areas, exterior and interior stairways, 

hallways, public bathrooms, display and exhibit areas and other areas and improvements provided by 

Lessor for general use, in common, of tenants of the Premises, their officers, agents, employees and 

customers shall at all times be subject to the exclusive control and management of Lessor or its 

designees and Lessor shall have the right from time to time to establish, modify and enforce 

reasonable rules and regulations with respect to all facilities and areas mentioned in this paragraph.  

All of said facilities and areas and all utility systems not installed by or exclusively serving a single 

lessee of the Premises, (including, without limitation all storm and sanitary drainage systems, waste 

water treatment facilities or other utility systems) are hereinafter collectively called the "Common 

Areas". Lessor or its designees shall have the right: to construct, maintain and operate the lighting 

and parking facilities hereinafter referred to; to restrict parking by tenants, their officers, agents and 

employees to an employee parking area; to close all or any portion of said areas or facilities to such 

extent as may, in the opinion of the Lessor's counsel, be legally sufficient to prevent dedication 

11399



 

6 

thereof or accrual of any rights therein to any person or the public; to close temporarily all or any 

portion of the parking areas or facilities; to discourage non-customer parking; and to do and perform 

such other acts in and to said areas and improvements as, in the use of reasonable business judgment, 

the Lessor shall determine to be advisable; provided that no such changes shall deny or materially 

interfere with reasonable ingress to, or egress from the Premises.  Lessor shall have the unfettered 

right to close down or restrict access to any part of the Common Areas on a temporary basis to make 

such alterations, modifications or repairs to the Premises as shall be advisable in Lessor’s sole 

discretion.  In such an event, Lessor shall have no liability to Lessee for any loss or damage that may 

accrue to Lessee’s business by reason thereof.  Lessor will use best efforts not to interfere with the 

Lessee’s business. 

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that during the term hereof and for any period during which 

the Lessee holds over, the Lessee will at its own expense, keep the Leased Premises in good order, 

repair and condition, and in the same condition or better than it was at the commencement of this 

Lease, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire or other unavoidable casualty only excepted, and 

it will keep the grounds in a clean and orderly condition. The Lessee further covenants and agrees 

that it will keep in good repair with glass of the same kind and quality as that which may be 

damaged or broken, all the glass now or hereafter on the Leased Premise. Lessee shall specifically 

see that no debris, rubbish or waste remains on the Premises. 

Lessee will pay all the expenses of maintaining and cleaning the Leased Premises, 

improvements and fixtures of the Lessee constituting personal property, and those of all persons 

claiming under it, including the removal of snow and ice from all ingresses and egresses exclusive to 

the Lease Premises, and will peacefully yield up to the Lessor the said Leased Premises and all 

improvements and additions wrought into and forming a part of the real property of the Lessor in the 

same repair, order and condition in all respects as they were at the commencement of this Lease, or 

better condition, reasonable wear and tear excluded , damage by fire and other casualty excepted and 

will deliver the Premises in a broom clean and debris-free condition. 

 LESSOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR: Lessor shall maintain all common areas 

including snow and ice removal from all parking areas, walkways, sidewalks, and common 

entrances. Lessor covenants and agrees to maintain or cause to be maintained only the foundations 

and roof of the Premises, and the structural soundness of the underground subgrade floors and 

exterior and demising walls in good order, repair and condition, exclusive of any work required 

because of damage caused by any act, omission or negligence of Lessee, any subtenant or their 

respective employees, agents, licensees or contractors. Lessor shall not be required to commence any 

such repair until fifteen (15) days after written notice from Lessee that the same is necessary, except 

in the event of an emergency in which event the Lessor shall commence such repair as soon as 

practically possible. The provisions of this Section shall not apply in the case of damage or 

destruction by fire or other casualty or a taking under the power of eminent domain, in which event 

the obligations of the Lessor shall be controlled by the Articles of this Lease dealing therewith.  

 

If Lessor is required to make repairs to the Premises by reason of Lessee’s acts, omissions or 

negligence, other than reasonable wear and tear, or if Lessee refuses or neglects to repair as required 

11399



 

7 

hereunder to the reasonable satisfaction of Lessor, Lessor shall provide notice to Lessee of its intent 

to conduct such repairs seven (7) days prior to commencement of such work (except in the event of 

an emergency in which event the Lessor shall commence such repair as soon as practically possible), 

Lessor may make such repairs without liability to Lessee for any loss or damage that may accrue to 

Lessee's merchandise, fixtures, or other property or to Lessee's business by reason thereof. Upon 

completion thereof, Lessee shall reimburse Lessor's costs for making such repairs. 

UTILITY CHARGES 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that it shall be responsible for any and all utility charges 

and further covenants and agrees that it shall be responsible for and will pay any sewer use, hook-up 

and/or betterment charges which may be assessed against the Premises, or which may be required, 

and all expenses related to the installation, repair and maintenance of the same, except as otherwise 

provided for herein. 

TAKING OF PROPERTY 

If the Premises, or any substantial part thereof, or the whole or any substantial part of the 

building owned by the City of Gardner on the Premises shall be taken for any purpose by exercise of 

the power of eminent domain or condemnation after the execution thereof, then this Lease and said 

term shall terminate at the option of the Lessor and such option may be exercised in case of any such 

taking, notwithstanding the entire interest of the Lessor may have been divested by such taking.  The 

Lessee hereby assigns to the Lessor any and all claims and demands for damage on account of any 

such taking or for compensation for anything lawfully done and pursuant to any public authority and 

covenants with the Lessor that the Lessee will from time to time execute and deliver to the Lessor 

such further instruments of assignment of any such claim and demands as the Lessor shall request. 

DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material default 

and breach of the Lease by Lessee: 

(a) The permanent vacating, abandonment or cessation of operation of the Premises by 

Lessee or ceasing use and operation for more than thirty (30) days without the prior written consent 

of the Lessor 

(b)  The failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions or 

provisions to be observed or performed by Lessee or any requirement of law, where such failure 

shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof from City to Lessee, unless 

otherwise excused or extended in writing by the City.   

It is agreed and understood that this Lease is upon the condition, that if the Lessee shall 

neglect or fail to perform or observe any of the covenants contained in these presents on its part to be 

performed or observed or otherwise be in breach or default and such default is not cured within any 

grace periods provided for herein, the Lessor lawfully may,  with 30 days prior written notice, or 

such lesser or greater notice as it determines reasonably necessary, enter into and upon the Premises 

or any part thereof in the name of the City, and upon doing so it shall be considered that the City has 

11399



 

8 

repossessed the same as its former estate, and if it so desires expel the Lessee and those claiming 

through or under it and remove its effects (forcibly, if necessary) without being deemed guilty of any 

manner of trespass, and without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise accrue for any 

present or preceding breach of covenant, and upon entry as aforesaid and/or the posting of a notice 

on the Premises that the City is exercising its rights to terminate (even if there is no actual entry), 

this Lease shall terminate and the City shall be entitled to possession of the Premises except as stated 

in said notice; and the Lessee covenants that in case of such termination it will indemnify, defend 

and hold harmless the Lessor against all losses and claims which it may incur by reason of such 

termination. Any termination by the Lessor shall be without risk or liability to the Lessor, its agents, 

servants, officials, officers and employees. 

Without limiting the right of the Lessor to exercise any other legal remedy or recourse, 

should the Lessee fail to promptly remove all of its property or property on the Premises placed or 

permitted to have been placed there under the authority of the Lessee, or property thereon which is 

the responsibility of the Lessee, and to restore the Premises to a clean and safe site, properly graded 

and otherwise to leave same in a condition as required by this Lease, upon any termination or 

expiration of this Lease, the Lessor may arrange for the removal and or disposal (including treating 

such property as discarded and or rubbish and trash to be disposed of as same) of the same, with the 

cost for same being an obligation of the Lessee (and the Lessee hereby irrevocably authorizes the 

Lessor as its agent to do so) and if the Lessee shall fail to promptly pay for the same and the Lessor 

pays for or becomes obligated to pay for the same, then the Lessee shall promptly reimburse the 

Lessor for the reasonable costs related thereto, including any interest, reasonable attorney’s fees 

(whether for inhouse and/or outside legal counsel) and expenses arising therefrom. 

Excepted from any grace period shall be any failure or other actions which constitute a threat 

to public safety and welfare, in which event the City may take such actions as it reasonably deems 

necessary.   

ALTERATIONS 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that in the event it desires to make changes of the present 

Leased Premises (other than ordinary maintenance and repair of the Property), any proposed 

alterations shall require approval of the City of Gardner City Council.  All permanent improvements 

and renovations to the Leased Premises shall remain with the Premises and shall inure to the benefit 

of the Lessor. 

The Lessee shall indemnify the City from any claims for mechanic's liens that are asserted in 

connection with work done by Lessee or Lessee’s contractors and shall not allow any mechanic’s 

liens to be placed or exist against the Premises for a period of more than forty-five (45) days.  

INSPECTION OF PROPERTY 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that the City’s Mayor, the Director of Public Health, and 

the Building Commissioner of the City or their subordinates and designees, or other such agent duly 

appointed by the City, may at reasonable times enter to view and inspect the Leased Premises and 

may show the Leased Premises to others, and that any time within six (6) months prior to the 

11399



 

9 

expiration of the term hereof, may affix to any suitable part of the Premises a notice for letting or 

selling the same. 

DAMAGE/DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES 

It is agreed and understood that if the Premises or any substantial part thereof, or the whole 

or any substantial part of any building owned by the City of Gardner on the Premises, shall be 

destroyed or substantially damaged by casualty after the execution hereof and before the expiration 

of the term or any extension or renewal thereof, then this Lease and said term shall terminate at the 

option of the Lessor, and all rights of the Lessee therein shall at the option of the Lessor likewise 

terminate and the Lessor shall be under no obligation to restore the Premises to their former 

condition nor to supply the proceeds of any insurance to that purpose. Notwithstanding total or 

partial deprivation of use of the Leased Premises or building by the Lessee, the Lessee acknowledges 

that the matter of abatement of taxes assessed to the Lessee as such rests with the judgment and 

discretion of the Board of Assessors. Such restoration, if any, shall be conducted and carried out in 

full compliance of all applicable laws. Any changes in any structures or appurtenances thereto from 

what was previously there or used shall be subject to the prior written approval of the Lessor. 

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE 

The Lessee covenants and agrees that it shall not discriminate in any way against any person 

desiring to Participate in its programs, visit the Leased Premises and/or make use of its facilities 

and/or services or partake in any of its programs or in its employment practices. 

NOTICES 

Any notice from the Lessor to the Lessee relating to the Premises or the occupancy thereof 

shall be deemed to be delivered when posted or left at the Leased Premises addressed to the Lessee 

or if actually delivered in hand to an agent of the Lessee at the Lessee’s address as set forth herein. 

Any change in address must include a valid street address to be effective. 

Any notice from the Lessee to the Lessor relating to the Premises or the occupancy thereof 

shall be deemed to have been delivered if posted or left at the office of the Mayor, City Hall, 95 

Pleasant Street, Gardner, MA 01440 or person performing said functions. Service of notices may 

also be made in the same manner as for civil process or if served by a Police Officer. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROVISIONS 

A. Environmental Laws.  Lessee agrees, at its own expense, to comply with all 

applicable laws, ordinances, regulations and administrative agency or court orders relating to health, 

safety, noise, environmental protection, waste disposal, hazardous or toxic materials, and water and 

air quality.  In the event any discharge, leakage, spillage, emission or pollution of any type occurs 

caused by any act or omission of the Lessee (recognizing that the exterior of the Premises is 

accessible by the public) upon or from the Premises during the Lease Term or any holdover 

thereafter, Lessee agrees to immediately notify the City and shall, at Lessee’s own expense, take 

measures to clean and restore the Premises, in compliance with applicable law, to its condition as of 

1981 when the Lessee first took occupancy of the Leased Premises.  

11399



 

10 

B. Hazardous Materials on Premises.  During the term of this Lease and any holdover 

thereof, Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept or used in 

or about the Premises by Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees, except for those 

materials that are customarily used, stored or disposed of in connection with the Lessee’s use. The 

use, storage or disposal of such Hazardous Materials shall be performed in compliance with 

applicable environmental and other laws, bylaws, codes, rules and regulations. 

C. Environmental Indemnity. Lessee agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend City 

against all liability, cost and expense including, without limitation, any fines, penalties, diminution 

in value of the Premises, assessment and clean-up costs, judgments, litigation costs and attorneys' 

fees (whether for inhouse and/or outside legal counsel)  incurred by or levied against the City as a 

result of Lessee’s breach of this section or as a result of any discharge, leakage, spillage, emission or 

pollution on or discharged from the Premises caused by the Lessee. Notwithstanding anything 

contained herein to the contrary, Lessee shall have no liability as to the foregoing for any Hazardous 

Material existing or events occurring or generated, at, in, on, under or in connection with the 

Premises or any part thereof prior to the occupancy of Lessee, or for asbestos or lead paint. Lessee 

shall not be obligated to protect, defend, indemnify and save the City harmless from and against any 

claims, liabilities or penalties that are asserted to the extent that they are a result of the fault, 

negligence, omission or conduct of the City or third parties not directly under the direction or control 

of the Lessee or its agents, contractors, servants, licensees, employees or invitees.     

D. "Hazardous Material".    For purposes of this Lease, the term "Hazardous Material" 

means any hazardous or toxic substances, material or waste, including but not limited to those 

substances, materials and wastes listed in the U.S. Department of Transportation Hazardous 

Materials Table (49 CFR § 172.101) or by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency as hazardous 

substances (40 CFR Part 302), and amendments thereto, or such substances, materials and wastes 

that are or become regulated under any applicable local, state or federal law, or is otherwise listed or 

determined by any federal, state or local authority to be hazardous, and including  asbestos, and lead 

paint. 

E. Remediation of Existing Hazardous Material.  The Lessee covenants and agrees that 

if the Lessee undertakes any capital improvements or renovations to the Leased Premises during the 

term of this Lease, the Lessee will use commercially reasonable efforts to remediate any Hazardous 

Material that are reasonably connected to and or exposed by the relevant capital improvements or 

renovations; provided that, the Lessee is not obligated to remediate any Hazardous Material that 

were introduced to the Premises before the Lessee took occupancy, if the Lessee cannot obtain 

funding to perform such remediation. The parties agree that this provision does not apply to 

Hazardous Material introduced to the Property by the Lessee. Both parties agree that the City is not 

obligated by the terms of this Lease to remediate any Hazardous Materials, even if a competent 

environmental or health authority determines that the presence of such Hazardous Material means 

that the Premises cannot be safely occupied. If a competent environmental or health authority 

determines that the Property cannot be safely occupied due to the presence of Hazardous Material, 

the Lessee’s sole recourse will be to terminate the Lease (per the paragraph below) and to receive 

from the City a pro-rata share of any rent already paid to the City. The Lessee hereby waives any 

claims against the City relating to lost revenue or capital improvements to the Property.  

11399



 

11 

If a competent environmental or health authority determines that the Property cannot be 

safely occupied due to the presence of Hazardous Material, then the parties agree to work in good 

faith and cooperatively to address the issues provided that if the parties cannot mutually agree, then 

after two (2) years, then either or both parties may terminate the lease.  

F.  Environmental Testing.  If there is reasonable cause to believe Lessee violated the 

above provisions of this Section, the City may request independent environmental testing of the 

Premises. Lessee agrees that it shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with 

the performance of environmental testing of the Premises, which may be reasonably required by the 

City upon reasonable belief that there has been a violation by the Lessee of applicable environmental 

laws, bylaws, codes, rules and regulations.  Such environmental testing shall be conducted by an 

independent and qualified engineering or environmental consulting firm reasonably acceptable to 

City. In the event that the City receives environmental test results and/or reports and data, the City 

shall deliver to the Lessee within seven (7) business days from receipt of same, copies of such test 

results and/or reports and data.  

MISCELLANEOUS 

Lessor shall be included as an additional insured in the general liability and fire legal liability 

and umbrella/excess liability insurance policies, or in lieu thereof, may, if the Lessor so agrees in its 

discretion, if available and at the reasonable cost and expense to Lessee, shall be furnished an 

owner's contingent policy or owner's protective liability policy, all with the same amount of 

coverage and subject to the terms and conditions as stated under the specified insurance 

requirements of this Lease. 

This is a lease of the Leased Premises only, and the Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining 

all necessary permits, licenses, and any and all other necessary authorizations or complying with 

legal requirements to operate its business at the Premises. 

No garbage, junk or refuse, shall be kept on or placed in or upon the Premises other than that 

generated by the normal operation of the Leased Premises, which garbage, junk or refuse shall be 

kept in proper and appropriate containers, which containers shall not be left in public view nor on 

Premises other than that which is herein leased to the Lessee, other than property of the Lessee.  All 

such containers shall be properly secured in appropriately screened areas or such other areas not 

generally accessible to public access or view. 

No permanent exterior banners, signs, neon signs or lighted signs visible from the exterior 

shall be displayed unless approved in advance by the Lessor, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld or delayed. The Lessor is not inclined to approve of any lighted banners or 

neon signs. Temporary banners displayed for no more than 30 days are exempt. 

 In addition to any other language in this lease, upon any termination of this Lease or 

expiration of said Lease, whichever occurs first, Lessee covenants, agrees, warrants and represents 

that any structures or equipment, material or other such items placed thereon which are not owned by 

the City of Gardner, shall be promptly removed and the Premises shall be left in a safe condition in 

accordance with the reasonable instructions of the City of Gardner. Such work shall be at the sole 

11399



 

12 

cost and expense and obligation of the Lessee.  

Forbearance on the part of the Lessor to any default, right, or remedy shall not preclude an 

action at a later time by the Lessor nor shall the same be viewed as a waiver. 

The Lessee shall be obligated to reimburse the Lessor for any costs or expenses (including 

reasonable attorney's fees based on the actual costs or a sum equal to time expended by the Lessor's 

counsel times the customary rates of a comparable private attorney) for collecting sums due under 

this lease and for enforcing the provisions of this lease or in any litigation or claim relating to this 

lease or the activities thereon. 

After the initial term of this Lease, at the option of the Lessor while a renewal or extension of 

this Lease or new solicitation of a lease is being considered and undertaken, this Lease shall continue 

on a month to month basis, under the terms set forth herein, subject to the right of the Lessor to 

terminate and discontinue same following a sixty (60) day notice to the Lessee.  In all other respects 

the Lessee shall be bound by the terms of this agreement including those pertaining to termination. 

All section headings and captions used in this Lease are solely for convenience and shall not 

affect the interpretation of this Lease nor shall the same limit the covenants and obligations of this 

Lease. 

The Lessor and Lessee agree to execute any documents reasonably requested by the Lessor 

or Lessee concerning the Lease and the Leased Premises, as long as the same does not in any way 

alter, impair, diminish, or affect any of the rights, benefits, covenants, obligations, and duties of the 

Lessor and Lessee under this Lease. 

It is agreed that time is of the essence. 

The Lessee shall maintain a legal existence in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts during 

the term of this Lease and any extended term or holdover, and on request of the Lessor shall provide 

a Certificate of Legal Existence from the Office of the Massachusetts Secretary of State. 

Following any expiration or termination of this Lease, and should the Lessee holdover, 

without the Lessor’s permission, the Lessee shall be bound by all the provisions of this Lease except 

as to the term and subject to the right of the Lessor to assess use and occupancy charges.  All rights 

and remedies of the Lessor are expressly reserved and not waived.  Such hold over shall not establish 

any new tenancy. 

Lessor and Lessee agree that they will execute and record at the expense of the Lessee a 

Notice of this Lease with the Worcester South District Registry of Deeds.  

Nothing herein contained shall be deemed or construed by the parties hereto, nor by any third 

party, as creating a relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint venture between 

the parties hereof. Neither this Lease, nor any of the terms and provisions contained herein, nor any 

acts of the parties hereto, shall be deemed to create any relationship between the parties hereto other 

than the relationship of lessor and lessee.  The Lessee shall ensure that in its activities it does not 

imply otherwise or that it is an agency or department of the City or that the City is involved in its 

11399



13 

operations. 

The invalidity of any provision of the Lease as determined by a court of final and competent 

jurisdiction shall in no way affect the validity of any other provisions hereof.  

Each provision performable by Lessee hereunder shall be deemed both a covenant and a 

condition. This Lease contains all agreements of the parties with respect to any matter mentioned 

herein. No prior agreement or understanding pertaining to any such matter shall be effective. The 

Lease may be modified in writing only, signed by the parties in interest at the time of modification. 

This Lease shall bind the parties, their personal representatives, successors and assigns. The 

Lease shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and venue for any legal 

action shall be and remain in Worcester County. 

The Effective Date of the Lease shall the date first written above. 

The Lessee acknowledges that the Lessor makes no warranties or representations as to the 

condition of the Leased Premises or its suitability for any use the Lessee may make. Except as may 

otherwise be set forth herein, the Lessor shall be under no obligation to make any repairs, undertake 

any maintenance or improve the Leased Premises. 

Nothing contained herein shall constitute or be construed to be explicit and specific 

assurances of safety or assistance. 

WITNESS the execution hereof under seal as of the date first set forth above. 

LESSOR: 

THE CITY OF GARDNER 

_________________________________________ 

By: Michael J. Nicholson 

Its: Mayor (Attach certificate of vote of authorization) 

LESSEE: 

The Gardner Community Action Committee 

_________________________________________ 

By: Julie Meehan 

Its: Executive Director (duly authorized) 

11399



14 

11399



 

15 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

11399



11400



11401



11401



11401



11402



11402



11402



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATE ELECTION ORDER 

 

 

 

That meetings of the citizens of this City qualified to vote in the State Election shall be held on TUESDAY, 
THE FIFTH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2024, from 7:00 A.M. to 8:00 P.M. for the following purpose: 
 

 To cast their votes in the State Election for the candidates for the following offices and questions: 
 

 ELECTORS OF PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENT..… FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH  
 SENATOR IN CONGRESS………………………………… FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 
 REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS…………………………………..…..THIRD DISTRICT 
 COUNCILLOR……………………………………………………..……SEVENTH DISTRICT 
 SENATOR IN GENERAL COURT…………..…..WORCESTER & MIDDLESEX DISTRICT 
 REPRESENTATIVE IN GENERAL COURT……..…….SECOND WORCESTER DISTRICT 
 CLERK OF COURTS…………………………………………………WORCESTER COUNTY 
 REGISTER OF DEEDS….………..……………………….…………WORCESTER DISTRICT 
  
 

QUESTION 1: LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION 
 
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 
Representatives before May 1, 2024? 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 

This proposed law would specify that the State auditor has the authority to audit the legislature. 
 
A YES VOTE would specify that the State auditor has the authority to audit the legislature. 
 
A NO VOTE would make no change in the law relative to the State Auditor’s authority. 
 
 

QUESTION 2: Law Proposed by Initiative Petition 
 

Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 
Representatives before May 1, 2024? 
 

SUMMARY 
 

This proposed law would eliminate the requirement that a student pass the Massachusetts Comprehensive 
Assessment System (MCAS) tests (or other statewide or district-wide assessments) in mathematics, 
science and technology, and English in order to receive a high school diploma. Instead, in order for a 
student to receive a high school diploma, the proposed law would require the student to complete 
coursework certified by the student’s district as demonstrating mastery of the competencies contained in 
the state academic standards in mathematics, science and technology, and English, as well as any 
additional areas determined by the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. 
 
A YES VOTE would eliminate the requirement that students pass the Massachusetts Comprehensive 
Assessment System (MCAS) in order to graduate high school but still require students to complete 
coursework that meets state standards. 
 
A NO VOTE would make no change in the law relative to the requirement that a student pass the MCAS 
in order to graduate high school. 
 

              
VOTED: 



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATE ELECTION ORDER 

 

 

 

 
QUESTION 3: LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION  

 
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 
Representatives before May 1, 2024? 
 

SUMMARY 
 

The proposed law would provide Transportation Network Drivers (“Drivers”) with the right to form 
unions (“Driver Organizations”) to collectively bargain with Transportation Network Companies 
(“Companies”)-which are companies that use a digital network to connect riders to drivers for pre-
arranged transportation-to create negotiated recommendations concerning wages, benefits and terms and 
conditions of work. Drivers would not be required to engage in any union activities. Companies would be 
allowed to form multi-Company associations to represent them when negotiating with Driver 
Organizations. The state would supervise the labor activities permitted by the proposed law and would 
have responsibility for approving or disapproving the negotiated recommendations. The proposed law 
would define certain activities by a Company or a Driver Organization to be unfair work practices. The 
proposed law would establish a hearing process for the state Employment Relations Board (“Board”) to 
follow when a Company or Driver Organization is charged with an unfair work practice. The proposed 
law would permit the Board to take action, including awarding compensation to adversely affected 
Drivers, if it found that an unfair work practice had been committed. The proposed law would provide for 
an appeal of a Board decision to the state Appeals Court. This proposed law also would establish a 
procedure for determining which Drivers are Active Drivers, meaning that they completed more than the 
median number of rides in the previous six months. The proposed law would establish procedures for the 
Board to determine that a Driver Organization has signed authorizations from at least five percent of 
Active Drivers, entitling the Driver Organization to a list of Active Drivers; to designate a Driver 
Organization as the exclusive bargaining representative for all Drivers based on signed authorizations 
from at least twenty-five percent of Active Drivers; to resolve disputes over exclusive bargaining status, 
including through elections; and to decertify a Driver Organization from exclusive bargaining status. A 
Driver Organization that has been designated the exclusive bargaining representative would have the 
exclusive right to represent the Drivers and to receive voluntary membership dues deductions. Once the 
Board determined that a Driver Organization was the exclusive bargaining representative for all Drivers, 
the Companies would be required to bargain with that Driver Organization concerning wages, benefits 
and terms and conditions of work. Once the Driver Organization and Companies reached agreement on 
wages, benefits, and the terms and conditions of work, that agreement would be voted upon by all Drivers 
who has completed at least 100 trips the previous quarter. If approved by a majority of votes cast, the 
recommendations would be submitted to the state Secretary of Labor for approval and if approved, would 
be effective for three years. The proposed law would establish procedures for the mediation and 
arbitration if the Driver Organization and Companies failed to reach agreement within a certain period of 
time. An arbitrator would consider factors set forth in the proposed law, including whether the wages of 
Drivers would be enough so that Drivers would not need to rely upon any public benefits. The proposed 
law also sets out procedures for the Secretary of Labor’s review and approval of recommendations 
negotiated by a Driver Organization and the  
Companies and for judicial review of the Secretary’s decision. The proposed law states that neither its 
provisions, an agreement nor a determination by the Secretary would be able to lessen labor standards 
established by other laws. If there were any conflict between the proposed law and existing Massachusetts 
labor relations law, the proposed law would prevail. The Board would make rules and regulations as 
appropriate to effectuate the proposed law. The proposed law states that, if any of its parts were declared 
invalid, the other parts would stay in effect.  



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATE ELECTION ORDER 

 

 

 

 
A YES VOTE would provide transportation network drivers the option to form unions to collectively 
bargain with transportation network companies regarding wages, benefits, and terms and conditions of 
work 
 
A NO VOTE would make no change in the law relative to the ability of transportation network drivers to 
form unions. 

 
QUESTION 4: LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION 

 
Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 
Representatives before May 1, 2024? 
 

SUMMARY 
 

This proposed law would allow persons aged 21 and older to grow, possess, and use certain natural 
psychedelic substances in certain circumstances. The psychedelic substances allowed would be two 
substances found in mushrooms (psilocybin and psilocyn) and three substances found in plants 
(dimethyltryptamine, mescaline, and ibogaine). These substances could be purchased at an approved 
location for use under the supervision of a licensed facilitator. This proposed law would otherwise 
prohibit any retail sale of natural psychedelic substances. This proposed law would also provide for the 
regulation and taxation of these psychedelic substances. This proposed law would license and regulate 
facilities offering supervised use of these psychedelic substances and provide for the taxation of proceeds 
from those facilities’ sales of psychedelic substances. It would also allow persons aged 21 and older to 
grow these psychedelic substances in a 12-foot by 12-foot area at their home and use these psychedelic 
substances at their home. This proposed law would authorize persons aged 21 or older to possess up to 
one gram of psilocybin, one gram of psilocyn, one gram of dimethyltryptamine, 18 grams of mescaline, 
and 30 grams of ibogaine (“personal use amount”), in addition to whatever they might grow at their 
home, and to give away up to the personal use amount to a person aged 21 or over. This proposed law 
would create a Natural Psychedelic Substances Commission of five members appointed by the Governor, 
Attorney General, and Treasurer which would administer the law governing the use and distribution of 
these psychedelic substances. The Commission would adopt regulations governing licensing 
qualifications, security, recordkeeping, education and training, health and safety requirements, testing, 
and age verification. This proposed law would also create a Natural Psychedelic Substances Advisory 
Board of 20 members appointed by the Governor, Attorney General, and Treasurer which would study 
and make recommendations to the Commission on the regulation and taxation of these psychedelic 
substances. This proposed law would allow cities and towns to reasonably restrict the time, place, and 
manner of the operation of licensed facilities offering psychedelic substances, but cities and towns could 
not ban those facilities or their provision of these substances. The proceeds of sales of psychedelic 
substances at licensed facilities would be subject to the state sales tax and an additional excise tax of 15 
percent. In addition, a city or town could impose a separate tax of up to two percent. Revenue received 
from the additional state excise tax, license application fees, and civil penalties for violations of this 
proposed law would be deposited in a Natural Psychedelic Substances Regulation Fund and would be 
used, subject to appropriation, for administration of this proposed law. Using the psychedelic substances 
as permitted by this proposed law could not be a basis to deny a person medical care or public assistance, 
impose discipline by a professional licensing board, or enter adverse orders in child custody cases absent 
clear and convincing evidence that the activities created an unreasonable danger to the safety of a minor 
child. This proposed law would not affect existing laws regarding the operation of motor vehicles while 
under the influence, or the ability of employers to enforce workplace policies restricting the consumption 



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATE ELECTION ORDER 

 

 

 

of these psychedelic substances by employees. This proposed law would allow property owners to 
prohibit the use, display, growing, processing, or sale of these psychedelic substances on their premises. 
State and local governments could continue to restrict the possession and use of these psychedelic 
substances in public buildings or at schools. This proposed law would take effect on December 15, 2024.  
 
A YES VOTE would allow persons over age 21 to use certain natural psychedelic substances under 
licensed supervision and to grow and possess limited quantities of those substances in their home and 
would create a commission to regulate those substances.  
 
A NO VOTE would make no change in the law regarding natural psychedelic substances.  

 
 

QUESTION 5:  LAW PROPOSED BY INITIATIVE PETITION 
 

Do you approve of a law summarized below, on which no vote was taken by the Senate or the House of 
Representatives before May 1, 2024? 
 

SUMMARY 
 

The proposed law would gradually increase the minimum hourly wage an employer must pay a tipped 
worker, over the course of five years, on the following schedule: 
 

• To 64% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 2025; 
• To 73% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 2026; 
• To 82% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 2027; 
• To 91% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 2028; and 
• To 100% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 2029 

 
The proposed law would require employers to continue to pay tipped workers the difference between the 
state minimum wage and the total amount a tipped worker receives in hourly wages plus tips through the 
end of 2028. The proposed law would also permit employers to calculate this difference over the entire 
weekly or bi-weekly payroll period. The requirement to pay this difference would cease when the 
required hourly wage for tipped workers would become 100% of the state minimum wage on January 1, 
2029. 
 
Under the proposed law, if an employer pays its workers an hourly wage that is at least the state minimum 
wage, the employer would be permitted to administer a “tip pool” that combines all the tips given by 
customers to tipped workers and distributes them among all the workers, including non-tipped workers.  
 
A YES VOTE would increase the minimum hourly wage an employer must pay a tipped worker to the 
full state minimum wage implemented over five years, at which point employers could pool all tips and 
distribute them to all non-management workers. 
 
 A NO VOTE would make no change in the law governing tip pooling or the minimum wage for tipped 
workers. 
Hereof fail not and make return of this warrant with your doings thereon at the time and place of said 
voting. 



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, STATE ELECTION ORDER 

 

 

 

  
 

It is further ordered that the following polling places are designated by the City Council: 
 
 

  WARD 1, PRECINCT A – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 
  WARD 1, PRECINCT B – Elk’s Home, 31 Park Street 
  WARD 2, PRECINCT A – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 
  WARD 2, PRECINCT B – Levi Heywood Memorial Library, 55 West Lynde Street 
  WARD 3, PRECINCT A – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street  
  WARD 3, PRECINCT B – City Hall, Perry Auditorium, 95 Pleasant Street 
  WARD 4, PRECINCT A – Gardner Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 
  WARD 4, PRECINCT B – Gardner Police Headquarters, 200 Main Street 
  WARD 5, PRECINCT A – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Rd W 
  WARD 5, PRECINCT B – Polish American Club, 171 Kendall Pond Rd W 
 
ORDER posted in public places as follows: Elm Street School, Gardner Visiting Nursing Association, 
Gardner High School, Gardner Fish & Gun Club, Holy Family Academy, High Rise Lounge, Heywood 
Place (Boland Room), Gardner City Hall, Heywood Library, and DPW Office. 
 
 
 
   
   
 (Constable) 
   (Date) 
 
 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

September 9, 2024 

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: Update regarding Item #11289: An Ordinance To Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, 

Part 1, thereof entitled, “Administrative Legislation.”   

Dear Madam President and Councilors,  

As stated during the Finance Committee Meeting of September 4th, 2024, based on feedback 

received by the members of various boards and commissions of the City, I hereby submit a third 

revision of the ordinance proposal listed as Item#11289.  

This revision unifies the timeline for the re-organization of the City’s boards and commissions 

and defines the oaths of office for all positions in the City.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11289

Updated 9/9/2024



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, PART 1, 

THEREOF ENTITLED, “ADMINISTRATIVE LEGISLATION”  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Chapter 13 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Council on Aging” be 

deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 2: Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Assessing Department,” 

be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 3: Chapter 31 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Building Department,” be 

deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 4: Chapter 34 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Capital Improvement 

Planning Committee,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 5: Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Cemetery Commission,” 

be deleted in its entirety. 

SECTION 6: Chapter 45 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “City Council,” be deleted 

in its entirety. 

SECTION 7: Chapter 50 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Community Development 

and Planning,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 8: Chapter 62 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Disability Commission,” 

be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 9: Chapter 75 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Emergency 

Management,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 10: Chapter 87 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Fire Department,” be 

deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 11: Chapter 92 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Flags,” be deleted in its 

entirety. 

SECTION 12: Chapter 106 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Historical 

Commission,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 13: Chapter 110 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Holidays,” be deleted 

in its entirety. 

SECTION 14: Chapter 113 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Human Resources 

Department,” be deleted in its entirety.  

11289

Updated 9/9/2024



SECTION 15: Chapter 118 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Information 

Technology Department,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 16: Chapter 140 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Law Department,” be 

deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 17: Chapter 152 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Municipal Golf Course 

Commission,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 18: Chapter 156 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Municipal Grounds 

Commission,” be deleted in its entirety. 

SECTION 19: Chapter 160 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Officers and 

Employees,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECITON 20: Chapter 182 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Planning Board,” be 

deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 21: Chapter 193 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled "Police Department,” be 

deleted in its entirety. 

SECTION 22: Chapter 217 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Department of Public 

Works,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 23: Chapter 221 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Purchasing/Civil 

Enforcement Department,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 24: Chapter 252 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Seal,” be deleted in its 

entirety. 

SECTION 25: Chapter 264 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Survey Department,” 

be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 26: Chapter 275 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Traffic Commission,” 

be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 27: Chapter 290 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Youth Commission,” 

be deleted in its entirety.   

SECTION 28: Chapter 298 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Airport,” be deleted in 

its entirety. 

SECTION 29: That a new Chapter 2 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner, to be entitled 

“Seal and other Emblems of the City,” as follows:  

11289

Updated 9/9/2024



Section 1: City Seal.  

A. The Seal of the City of Gardner shall be a circle two inches in diameter having 

in the center a representation of Colonel Thomas Gardner with sword in hand; 

in the background Crystal Lake and Monadnock Mountain; within the inner 

circle, five small circles, the one at the top enclosing a chair, the ones on the 

sides each enclosing the letter "W," the one at the bottom at the left enclosing 

the letter "A" and the one at the bottom at the right enclosing the letter "T"; and 

in the margin the inscription "Gardner, A Town June 27, 1785, A City January 

1, 1923," the whole to be arranged according to the impression hereto annexed. 

 

B.  Deeds.  

 

a. All deeds given by the City shall be sealed with the City Seal and shall be 

signed and acknowledged in behalf of the City by the Mayor. 

 

C.  Use of Seal.  

 

a. The City Clerk shall be keeper of the City Seal but shall permit the Mayor or 

any other City officer to affix the same to any document to which the Seal is 

required to be affixed. 

 

Section 2. Flag of the City of Gardner  

 

A. Description 

  

a. The Flag of the City of Gardner shall consist of a navy-blue rectangular field 

bearing on either side a representation of the Seal of the City of Gardner in 

white.  

 

Section 3. Elected Official Oath of Office 

 

A. Mayoral Oath of Office  

 

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the Mayor-Elect 

of the City:  

 

“I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear That I Will Bear True Faith And 

Allegiance To The Commonwealth Of Massachusetts And The City Of 

Gardner, And Will Support The Constitution And The Charter Thereof, (So 

Help Me God.) 

 

I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear And Affirm, That I Will Faithfully And 

Impartially Discharge And Perform All Of The Duties Incumbent On Me As 

Mayor Of The City Of Gardner According To The Best Of My Abilities And 

Understanding, Agreeably, To The Rules And Regulations Of The 

11289



Constitution And The Laws Of The Commonwealth and the Ordinances and 

Charter of the City of Gardner. (So Help Me God.) 

 

I, (insert name), Do Solemnly Swear That I Will Support The Constitution Of 

The United States. (So Help Me God.)” 

 

B. City Council Oath of Office; At-Large and Ward   

 

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the City 

Councilors-Elect of the City:  

 

I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge and perform the duties of City Councilor according to law and the 

best of my abilities. (so help me God.)  

 

C. School Committee Oath of Office  

 

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in the School 

Committee Members- Elect of the City:  

 

I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially 

discharge and perform the duties of School Committee Member according to 

law and the best of my abilities. (so help me God.)  

 

SECTION 30: That a new Chapter 3 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner entitled 

“Personnel, Appointments, and Employment,” as follows:  

Section 1: Compensation 

 

The salaries and compensation of any City employee who receives compensation 

and any other employees of any of the departments, boards, committees, and 

commissions shall be established in the ordinances designating salaries and wages 

for the City employees.   

 

Section 2: Appointment 

 

Subject to the provisions of the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General 

Laws of the Commonwealth, all those appointed to positions in the City shall be 

appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by majority vote of the City 

Council, for a period of three (3) years, unless otherwise stated.   

 

Section 3: Oath of Office  

 

A. Failure by anyone duly appointed and confirmed by majority vote of the City 

Council, Mayor, Joint Convention, Fire Chief, or other appointing authority as 

11289



designated by law, to take their respective oath of office within sixty (60) days 

of the date on which their appointment was confirmed by majority vote of the 

City Council shall be considered forfeiture of the office and shall be deemed a 

vacancy in the position. 

 

B. Oath of Office  

 

Pursuant to the Charter of the City of Gardner and the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth, the following oath shall be used to swear in all appointed 

officials of the City of Gardner, except those appointed to the Gardner Police 

Department, whose oath shall be given as prescribed by the General Laws of 

the Commonwealth and the Code of the United States.  

 

I, (insert name), do solemnly swear that I will faithfully and impartially 

perform the duties of (insert position title) according to law and the best of my 

abilities. (so help me God.)  

 

Section 4: Temporary Appointments 

In case of a vacancy in any office, appointment to which is made by the Mayor, 

which vacancy is caused by the incapacity, death, resignation or expiration of the 

term of the incumbent, the filling of which is not provided for by law, the Mayor, 

without confirmation by the City Council, shall appoint a temporary officer to 

serve until a successor to such incapacitated, deceased or resigned officer, or 

officer whose term has expired, is duly appointed and qualified in accordance with 

law, but no such temporary officer shall in any event be appointed hereunder to 

serve for a period longer than 90 days. 

Section 5: Powers and Duties of Temporary Officers 

Except as otherwise provided by the General Laws, City Charter or other 

ordinance, any temporary officer so appointed shall, during the time he fills the 

position to which he is appointed under this article, exercise all the powers and 

perform all the duties of the officer in whose place he serves. 

Section 6: Job Descriptions 

A. All positions in the City shall have a job description outlining the duties of the 

position on file in the City’s Human Resources Department that has been approved 

by both majority vote of the City Council and the Mayor.  

 

B. Any changes made to the job description of a position of a Department Head must 

first be approved by majority vote of the City Council before becoming effective.  

 

Section 7: Employees  

11289



The City may hire employees for any city department, entity, board, commission, 

and any subdivision subject to appropriation approved by the City Council, in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Gardner.   

 Section 8: Vacancies  

Any vacancies that occur in any positions appointed position shall be filled in the 

same manner by which the position was appointed. The successor who fills said 

vacancy shall serve for the unfinished remainder of the term of office in which the 

vacancy occurred before said successor shall be appointed to a full term.  

SECTION 30: That a new “PART II” be added, to be entitled “LEGISLATIVE BRANCH” be 

added to include Chapter 4 and Chapter 5, with the current, “PART II: GENERAL 

LEGISLATION” section be re-numbered accordingly as “PART III” 

 

SECTION 31: That a new Chapter 4 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled, 

“City Council,” as follows:  

 

Article 1: Meetings:  

 

Section 1: Regular Meetings.  

 

A. Regular meetings of the City Council of the City of Gardner shall be held as 

follows: the first and third Mondays of January, February, March, April, 

May, June, September, October, November, and December and on the first 

Mondays of July and August. Whenever a meeting falls on a legal holiday, 

the meeting shall be held the following night at the same time.  

 

B. All regular meetings shall be called at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chamber in 

the City Hall. In the event a public emergency or other condition renders it 

impracticable for the Council to hold a meeting on the day of a scheduled 

meeting, or in the City Hall, the Council President, upon consultation with at 

least two other Councilors, may direct the meeting be held on another day or 

at such other location that encourages maximum public participation. 

 

C. All matters of every description to be presented at the regular meeting of the 

City Council shall be filed with the Clerk of the Council not later than 12:00 

noon on Thursday preceding the meeting, and the City Clerk shall prepare a 

calendar of matters for consideration, a list of papers laying on the table and 

such other matters as they may deem necessary and shall cause the same to 

be distributed among the members of the City Council prior to each regular 

meeting; the Council may by a vote of at least 2/3 of its members admit any 

matter for consideration at any meeting, pursuant to all requirements of the 

General Laws of the Commonwealth. 

 

11289



D. In the event a regular meeting falls on the evening of a state or City primary 

or election, the meeting shall be held on the following day at the scheduled 

time. 

 

Section 2: Special meetings. 

 

A. Special meetings of the City Council may be called by the President or shall 

be called at any time upon the written request therefor being made to the 

City Clerk by at least two members of the Council. 

 

B. At a special meeting of the Council no business shall be taken up which is 

not mentioned in the call of that meeting; provided, however, that any matter 

not so mentioned in the call of the meeting may be taken up if at least 2/3 of 

all the members of the Council vote affirmatively in favor of admitting the 

matter for consideration at that special meeting and that no such matter shall 

be finally disposed of at that session except by the affirmative vote of 2/3 of 

all the members of the Council and then only as provided by Section 28 of 

the City Charter, and the provisions of the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth.  

 

Article II: Legal Counsel 

 

Section 3: Legal counsel. 

 

A. The City Council shall have the authority to retain independent legal counsel 

of its own selection from time to time by majority vote, and legal counsel 

shall be a member of the Bar of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in 

good standing. 

 

B. Legal counsel shall assist the City Council in the preparation and 

formulation of legislation and in the rendering of opinions concerning legal 

matters, either of a substantive or procedural nature, the provisions of the 

Code of the City of Gardner notwithstanding. 

 

C. Any invoice or charge for payment from said legal counsel shall be paid 

from the City Council budget. 

 

SECTION 32: That a new Chapter 5, be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled, 

“Legislative Departments.”  

Section 1: Office of the City Clerk  

A. There shall be an Office of the City Clerk established, overseen by the City Clerk, 

as defined by the City Charter.  

 

B. The City Clerk may appoint two Assistant City Clerks for a term of three (3) years, 

subject to confirmation by the City Council, who shall be sworn to the faithful 

11289



performance of duty and, in the absence of the City Clerk, may perform those duties 

and have the powers and be subject to the requirements and penalties applicable to 

that office.  

 

C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the reappointment of an 

Assistant City Clerk upon the expiration of the term of office. 

SECTION 33: That a new “PART III” be added, to be entitled “EXECUTIVE BRANCH” to 

include Chapter 6 through Chapter 8.  

 

SECTION 34: That a new Chapter 6 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled, 

“Executive Departments,” as follows:  

 

Section 1: Assessing Department  

 

A. Department Established and Employees  

 

a. An Assessing Department in the City of Gardner is hereby established under 

the charge of a board of up to five (5) but no less than three (3) Assessors, one 

of which shall serve as the City Assessor. 

 

b. The City Assessor shall serve full time as an Assessor and employee of the 

City of Gardner, who shall serve as the Department Head over the City’s 

Assessor’s Department.  

 

 

Section 2: Building Department 

 

A. Department Established and Employees  

 

The position of Building Commissioner is hereby established and shall be a full-

time position. The duties of said Building Commissioner shall be those set forth in 

the General Laws of the Commonwealth and the Code of the City of Gardner.  

 

 

B. Electrical Inspection Division  

 

a. Division Established 

 

i. An Inspection of Wires Division of the Building Department is 

hereby established, the affairs of which shall be conducted by an 

officer known as the "Electrical Inspector," and such officer is 

hereby designated as the officer required by the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth and the Code of the City of Gardner. 

 

11289



ii. Said Inspection of Wires Division and the Electrical Inspector shall 

be subject to the authority of the Mayor and the Building 

Commissioner, and, for fire alarm superintendent related activities, 

the Electrical Inspector shall report to the Building Commissioner 

and confer with the Fire Chief. 

 

b. Electrical Inspector  

 

i. The Mayor shall appoint an Electrical Inspector, subject to the 

provisions o the Code of the City of Gardner and the Charter of the 

City of Gardner. The Electrical Inspector shall be a licensed 

electrician in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  

ii. They shall keep an accurate record of the transactions of their office 

and shall report the same to the Building Commissioner on a 

monthly basis, to be reported to the Mayor as part of the Building 

Department’s Annual Report.  

 

C. Plumbing and Gas Inspection Division 

 

a. Division and Position Established  

 

An Inspection of Gas and Plumbing Division of the Building Department is 

hereby established, the affairs of which shall be conducted by an officer 

known as the "Plumbing and Gas Inspector," and such officer is hereby 

designated. The Plumbing and Gas Inspector shall be licensed to performing 

plumbing and gas work by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  

 

b. Duties  

 

The Plumbing and Gas Inspector shall perform such duties as may be 

required in enforcing the rules and regulations established by authority of the 

Massachusetts Code for Installation of Gas Appliances and Gas Piping, the 

General Laws of the Commonwealth, and the Code of the City of Gardner 

as presently in force, and as may be amended and in force from time to time. 

 

Section 3: Department of Community Development and Planning  

 

A. Department Established; Director  

 

a. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Community Development and 

Planning Department to be administered by a Director. 

 

b. The Director shall report to the Mayor and City Council and shall appear before the 

City Council whenever requested to do so. 

 

Section 4: Engineering Department  

11289



 

A.  Department established 

 

An Engineering Department is hereby established. It shall be under the charge and 

control of a graduate certified civil engineer who shall have the title of "City 

Engineer."  

 

B.  Department responsibilities.  

 

The Engineering Department shall be responsible for the following: 

 

A. Whenever any petition for laying out, making public, widening, altering, 

relocating, grading or discontinuing any way is presented to the Mayor and 

City Council, it shall be the duty of the Engineering Department to prepare 

a plan and estimate showing the probable cost of said work apportioned to 

the several estates liable for the same, together with the estimated cost of 

other assessable improvements, such as sewers and sidewalks, that may 

reasonably be necessitated by such proposed alteration, said cost likewise 

being apportioned to the respective estates. Said plan and estimate shall be 

furnished complete with the names and addresses of the owners of the several 

estates and the amounts assessable upon each of them.  

 

B. The Engineering Department shall have charge and custody of all plans of 

streets, sidewalks and bridges belonging to the City; it shall enter in a book 

to be kept for that purpose the names of all streets that shall be accepted, laid 

out and established by the City Council, with the boundaries and 

measurements thereof, the names of the owners of the land, if known, over 

or through which said streets or ways are located, and the estates bounding 

and abutting thereon; and shall keep a record of all sidewalks that are now 

or may be hereafter laid out or established by the City Council, the width, 

height and grade of the same, stating the boundaries and measurements 

thereof, with the date of such laying out.  

 

C. To inspect all streets and ways being constructed under the Subdivision 

Control Law to ascertain whether said construction complies with plans filed 

pursuant to the Planning Board regulations, City ordinances and state statutes 

and to give to the Planning Board a report of its inspection prior to the release 

of any bond posted by the developer constructing said street and prior to the 

approval of said street by the Planning Board. 

 

D. Planning Board Engineer.  

 

Provide technical assistance to the Planning Board as required, including 

attendance at meetings one or two evenings per month. Duties will include: 

 

11289



i. Review of site plans and subdivision plans, with particular emphasis 

on drainage and stormwater management. Prepare cost estimates 

where the developer must post bond or security in order to insure 

completion of infrastructure.  

 

ii. Inspect subdivision infrastructure (drainage, sanitary sewers, water 

mains, roads and sidewalks) during construction and submit periodic 

reports to the Planning Board.  

 

iii. Develop stormwater management practices and policies for 

subdrainage basins within the City.  

 

E. Zoning Board of Appeals/Conservation Commission reviews.  

 

At the request of the Zoning Board of Appeals/Conservation Commission 

review applications to the above bodies, with particular attention to potential 

effects on public underground utilities or streets and sidewalks. Provide 

technical advice and/or guidance when necessary to the public interest. 

 

F. Infiltration/Inflow Coordinator.  

 

Maintain records of all sanitary sewer and manhole inspections and 

repairs/rehabilitation which result in reduction of infiltration and/or inflow 

to the City’s sanitary sewer system. Quantify estimates of flow reduction due 

to these efforts and prepare and submit semiannual reports to the Department 

of Environmental Protection.  

 

G. Construction administration.  

 

Oversee construction contracts being performed directly for the Department 

of Public Works, based on plans and specifications prepared by the 

Engineering Department. This task will include construction inspection and 

field documentation of as-built quantities and locations. This task will 

involve supervision of the City Engineer or other designee. 

 

Section 5: Fire Department 

 

A. Personnel 

 

The Fire Department of the City of Gardner shall consist of a Fire Chief and other 

such personnel as the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall from time 

to time deem necessary, subject to appropriation. 

 

B. Appointment of Firefighters and Fire Department Personnel 

 

11289



All appointments to the Fire Department shall be made by the Fire Chief and shall 

not be subject to confirmation by the City Council.  

 

C. Fire Chief  

 

i. The Fire Chief shall be the Department Head of the Fire Department, 

and shall have full and absolute control and command of the 

Department, its firefighters and members and other officers when 

engaged in the fire service of the City, or when assigned by him to any 

special duty.  

 

ii. The Chief shall be exempt from the provisions of Chapter 31 of the 

General Laws in accordance with Chapter 284 of the Acts of 2012. 

 

Section 6: Human Resources Department  

 

A. Department Established 

 

There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Human Resources Department 

to be administered by a Director. 

 

Section 7: Information Technology Department  

 

A. Department Established 

 

There shall be established in the City of Gardner an Information Technology 

Department to be administered by a Director. 

 

Section 8: Law Department 

 

A. Department Established 

 

i. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Law Department to be 

administered by the City Solicitor with the assistance of an Assistant City 

Solicitor, if one has been appointed.  

 

ii. Said officers shall be members of the Bar of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts in good standing. 

 

iii. The City Solicitor shall be appointed as provided by the provisions of Section 

6 of the City Charter and shall report to and be overseen by the Mayor. The 

Assistant City Solicitor shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to 

confirmation by the City Council, for a term of one (1) year.  

 

iv. The City Solicitor and Assistant City Solicitor may be full time employees of 

the City or may be contracted law firms subject to the appropriations 

11289



authorized by the City Council in the City’s annual operating budget, with the 

same appointment approval methods listed in this section for the City 

Solicitor and Assistant City Solicitor.  

 

B. Issuance of Written Legal Opinions  

 

i. The Law Department shall furnish written legal opinions when so requested 

by the Mayor, City Council by vote of the Council or request of the City 

Council President, the chairperson of a City committee upon vote of that 

committee, or the head of any City Department with the approval of the 

Mayor.  

 

ii. Said written legal opinions shall be issued by the City’s Law Department no 

later than thirty (30) days upon receipt of the request.  

 

iii. The Law Department shall provide the Mayor with a copy of all written 

legal opinions issued pursuant to this section.  

 

Section 9: Police Department 

 

A. Department Established  

 

i. The Police Department of the City of Gardner shall consist of a Chief of 

Police and any such subordinate officers, patrol officers and other support 

personnel as the Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall from 

time to time deem necessary.  

 

ii. Such Department may be augmented by a reserve police force in accordance 

with the provisions of the General Laws of the Commonwealth. 

 

B. Chief of Police; Deputy Chief of Police  

 

i. The Chief of Police shall be the head of the Police Department and shall 

have immediate control and command of the Department, its officers and 

members, and all constables and other officers when engaged in the police 

service of the City, or when assigned by him to any special duty.  

 

ii. The Chief shall be exempt from the provisions of MGL c. 31 in accordance 

with Chapter 416 of the Acts of 1991. 

 

iii. The Chief of Police shall be the Keeper of the Lockup in compliance with 

MGL c. 40, § 35. 

 

iv. The Deputy Chief of Police shall be exempt from the provisions of Chapter 

31 of the General Laws in accordance with Chapter 284 of the Acts of 2012  

 

11289



C. Special Police Officers  

 

i. The City of Gardner may employ a person in police duty only when such 

duty is absolutely essential to its regular services as an employee of the 

City. 

 

ii. Special Police Officers will be compensated at the current collective 

bargaining rate for patrol/superior officers. 

 

D. Traffic Control Unit 

 

i. The City of Gardner may employ a person in police duty in the traffic 

control unit, when such duties are deemed to be needed by the Chief of 

Police. 

 

ii. Traffic Control Officer will be compensated at the current collective 

bargaining rate for patrol/superior officers. 

 

E. Civilian Public Safety Dispatch Division  

 

i. The Chief of Police shall oversee all dispatch operations for the City.  

 

ii. The Division shall be run by a director who shall be appointed by the Chief 

of Police, not subject to confirmation by the City Council. 

 

iii. The Division may employee all full- and part- time dispatchers as deemed 

necessary to execute the functions of the division.  

 

Section 10: Department of Public Works  

 

A. Department established 

 

i. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Department of Public 

Works administered by a Director. 

 

ii. Aside from all duties outlined in the job description of the Director, they 

shall also: 

 

a. The Director shall have all the duties and powers vested in the 

separate boards and commissions and any amendments thereto and 

shall succeed to all rights, privileges, duties and liabilities of said 

separate boards and commissions. 

 

b. Meet when requested by the City Council Public Service Committee.  

 

11289



c. The Director shall have the power to make rules and regulations for 

the governing of the Department of Public Works and sections 

thereof and shall attend to the proper enforcement of the same. The 

Director shall have jurisdiction over the sections and over each 

member of each section. The Director shall sign all vouchers for the 

Department of Public Works. 

 

iii. In the event that the Director is absent from the City, he shall notify the 

City Auditor in writing of the person designated by the Director to assume 

his responsibilities during his absence. 

 

Section 11: Purchasing and Civil Enforcement Department 

 

A. Purpose. 

 

There is hereby established in the administrative service of the City of Gardner the 

Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department and, in said Department, the position of 

City Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director, hereinafter referred to as 

"Director." 

 

B. General authority of Director. 

 

i. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall direct, supervise 

and have control of the Purchasing/Civil Enforcement Department.  

 

ii. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall have all powers and 

duties prescribed by this chapter and the positions job description on file in 

the City’s Department of Human Resources and shall serve as the City's 

Chief Procurement Officer (CPO) and Affirmative Marketing Construction 

Officer.  

 

i. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be responsible for all 

purchases and contractual services and all sales of property.  

 

ii. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall be responsible for the 

tracking, recordkeeping and collection of parking, animal control and civil 

violations and act as the Parking Clerk.  

 

iii. The Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director shall serve as the City's 

Municipal Hearing Officer. 

 

C. Purchasing. 

 

Except as herein provided or specifically authorized by the Purchasing Agent/CPO, 

it shall be unlawful for any City employee or City official to purchase any supplies 

11289



or services other than through the Purchasing Department and in accordance with 

this chapter. 

 

D. Sale or disposal of personal or real property. 

 

i. The head of the department, board or commission in possession of the surplus 

supplies shall certify, in writing, the estimated value, determined through a 

commercially reasonable process.  The Chief Procurement Officer shall decide 

upon the most appropriate method of disposal, including direct sale, quotes, or 

donations and the decision should be based upon the best interest of the City of 

Gardner.  No tangible property shall be sold or otherwise disposed of without 

the written approval of the head of the department, board or commission as well 

as the City Council committee or School Committee subcommittee having 

charge of matters concerning such department, board or otherwise and with the 

written approval of the Mayor. 

 

ii. Real property shall be declared surplus by a vote of the City Council, with the 

approval of the Mayor, following the determination of value.  No real estate, 

whether the same is controlled by any department, board or otherwise, shall be 

sold or otherwise disposed of except with the approval of the City Council and 

Mayor. 

 

E. Award of contract. 

 

i. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to award contracts within the 

purview of this chapter and shall have the authority to determine 

responsibility of bidders. 

 

ii. The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to declare vendors as 

irresponsible bidders and to disqualify them from receiving any orders or 

contract awards from the municipality. 

 

F.  Tie bids. 

 

If all bids received are for the same total amount or unit price, quality and service 

being equal, the contract shall be awarded to a local bidder, "local bidder" defined 

as having its corporate/home office in the City Gardner. If no local bidder exists, 

the Purchasing Agent shall award the contract to one of the tie bidders by drawing 

lots in public. 

 

G.  Bid protests. 

 

Upon receipt of a written protest of an award made by the Chief Procurement 

Officer, the matter shall be reviewed by the Chief Procurement Officer and a 

determination made to: 

 

11289



i. Reject the bid protest on grounds the protest fails to prove a violation of the 

Massachusetts Uniform Procurement Act and continue with the award of a 

contract; or 

 

ii. Uphold the bid protest on grounds the protest proves a violation of the 

Massachusetts Uniform Procurement Act and conduct a new procurement. 

 

H.  Cooperative purchasing. 

 

The Purchasing Agent shall have the authority to join other units of government 

(federal, state, county, municipal and municipal subdivisions, including such quasi-

municipal agencies as water districts, sewer districts, etc.) in cooperative 

purchasing plans when the best interest of the City would be served thereby and 

such action is in accordance with and pursuant to prevailing General Laws. 

 

I.  Other duties of Purchasing Agent. 

 

The Purchasing Agent shall perform such other duties related to the functions, 

duties and authorities set forth herein as may be prescribed by the Mayor or any 

applicable state or local laws and ordinances. 

 

J.  Chief Procurement Officer. 

 

The Chief Procurement Officer shall conduct requests for proposals, including 

oversight of the solicitation, opening and evaluation of proposals and award of 

contract, in accordance with the authority delegated by MGL c. 30B. 

 

K.  Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer. 

 

The Affirmative Marketing Construction Officer shall serve as the City's liaison 

with the Supplier Diversity Office and be responsible for all reporting in 

compliance with MGL c. 93. 

 

L.  Municipal Hearing Officer. 

 

The Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct local hearings of code violations 

pursuant to and in compliance with MGL c. 148A (Code Enforcement Officer). The 

Municipal Hearing Officer shall conduct such hearings using formal rules 

established under MGL c. 148A and shall render a written decision to the 

appropriate parties. 

 

Section 12: Senior Center 

 

A. Department Established 

 

i. There shall be a Senior Center overseen by the Director of Senior Citizens.  

11289



 

ii. The Senior Citizens' Director shall report directly to the Mayor and shall 

have the duty and responsibility of working with the Council on Aging and 

various state and federal elder affairs agencies in providing programs and 

services for the elderly, shall be responsible for preparing the annual budget 

and shall plan all programs and activities for the senior citizens of the City 

of Gardner. 

 

SECTION 35: That a new Chapter 7 be added to the Code of the City of Gardner to be entitled, 

“Board and Commissions,” as follows:  

 

 Section 1: Miscellaneous 

 

A. Board and Commission Membership  

 

All boards and commission made by the City shall have an odd 

number of members, unless membership is defined by any other 

section of the General Laws of the Commonwealth or the Code of 

the City of Gardner.  

 

B. Acceptance of Donations  

 

Any board or commission may, upon receiving prior approval by 

majority vote of the City Council may receive gifts of property, 

both real and personal, in the name of the City, subject to the rules 

and regulations of the General Laws of the Commonwealth, the 

Charter of the City of Gardner, and the Code of the City of 

Gardner.  

 

C. Organization and Election of Officers 

 

Unless otherwise stated by the General Laws of the 

Commonwealth or by the provisions of the City Charter of the City 

of Gardner or the Code of the City of Gardner, all boards and 

commissions shall annually vote to elect the Chairperson and all 

other officers of their respective body.  

 

Section 2: Airport Commission   

 

A. Establishment  

 

There shall be an Airport Commission, consisting of not less than three (3) nor more 

than eleven (11) members.  

 

B. Issuance of Fees and Charges 

 

11289



The Airport Commission shall have the authority, with the approval of majority 

vote of the City Council and the Mayor, to institute a system of charges and fees 

for use of the Gardner Municipal Airport. 

 

Section 3: Bandstand Committee  

 

A. Establishment  

 

There is hereby established under this section the Community Bandstand 

Committee, which shall exist and be operated hereunder for the purpose of 

implementing seasonal programs to be conducted in the City's parks, including but 

not limited to summer musical concerts and other community entertainment events 

at the Bandstand located in Monument Park, as well as at the City's other parks, at 

the City's other municipal grounds and at other appropriate locations in the City.  

 

B. Membership 

 

The Community Bandstand Committee shall consist of no less than three (3) 

members. One (1) of the members appointed to the Community Bandstand 

Committee shall be a member of the Municipal Grounds Commission, to carry out 

the purposes of this section.  

 

C. Donations to Committee  

 

i. The Community Bandstand Committee may receive donations and 

gifts of property, both real and personal, in the name of the City to 

further the purposes as set forth in this section. Upon receipt of any 

such donation or gift, the Community Bandstand Committee shall 

provide each such gift or donation to the Treasurer, who shall deposit 

same into an account to be created and named the "Community 

Bandstand Committee Program Fund." All funds in such 

Community Bandstand Committee Program Fund shall be used for 

the purposes set forth in this section.  

 

ii. In accordance with the General Laws of the Commonwealth, the 

Community Bandstand Committee shall from time to time submit a 

listing of all donations and gifts received by the Committee for 

acceptance by majority vote of the City Council.  

 

Section 4: Board Of Assessors  

 

A. Establishment 

 

i. There is hereby a Board of Assessors established, who shall work with 

the City Assessing Department in accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 6 of the Code of the City of Gardner.  

11289



 

ii. Each year at its first meeting the Board shall organize and elect a 

Chairperson. 

 

C. Duties  

 

The Assessors shall perform, or cause to be performed, all the duties required of 

assessors under the General Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and shall 

be subject to said General Laws, as well as to the Charter and ordinances of the City 

of Gardner. 

 

D. Employment Status  

 

The City Assessor shall serve full time as an Assessor, while the other members 

shall be part-time Assessors. 

 

E. Abatements 

 

The Board shall meet with any person filing an application for abatement or his 

attorney upon request for such a meeting. 

 

Section 4: Board Of Health  

 

A. Establishment 

 

i. There shall be a Board of Health consisting of not less than three (3) 

members but no more than seven (7) members 

 

ii. At least one (1) member of the Board of Health shall be a physician and at 

least one (1) member shall be a registered nurse 

 

iii. No members of the Board of Health shall be members of the City Council.  

 

iv. Each year at its first meeting the Board shall organize and elect a 

Chairperson. 

 

Section 5: Board Of Registrars Of Voters  

 

A. Establishment  

 

Per the provisions of the General Laws of the Commonwealth, there shall be a 

Board of Registrars of Voters consisting of three (3) members and the City Clerk 

shall serve as its fourth (4th) voting member. 

 

Section 6: Capital Improvement Planning Committee  

A. Establishment  

11289



 

i. There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Capital 

Improvement Planning Committee.  

 

ii. Members shall consist of the Council President and/or designee(s), 

the City Engineer, the Director of Community Development and 

Planning, the City Treasurer, the Director of Public Works, the City 

Purchasing Agent/Civil Enforcement Director, the City Auditor, and 

the School Department Business Manager, all of whom shall serve 

as ex officio full voting members.  

 

iii. The Committee shall choose its own officers. 

 

B. Review of Projects  

 

i. The Committee shall study proposed capital projects and 

improvements involving major nonrecurring tangible assets and 

projects which: 

 

1. Are purchased or undertaken at intervals of not less than five 

years; 

 

2. Have a useful life of at least five years; and 

 

3. Cost over $25,000. 

 

ii. All department heads, officers, boards and committees shall, by 

November 1 of each year, give to the Committee, on forms prepared 

by it, information concerning all anticipated projects requiring City 

Council action during the ensuing six years. The Committee shall 

consider the relative need, impact, timing, and cost of these 

expenditures and the effect each will have on the financial position 

of the City. 

C. Capital Improvement Budget and Program 

 

The Committee shall prepare an annual report recommending a capital 

improvement budget for the next fiscal year and a capital improvement program, 

including recommended capital improvements for the following five fiscal years. 

The report shall be submitted to the Mayor for consideration and approval. The 

Mayor shall submit the approved capital plan to the City Council for acceptance. 

 

D. Expenditures 

 

11289



Such capital improvement program, after its acceptance, shall permit the 

expenditures on projects included therein of sums from departmental budgets for 

surveys, architectural or engineering advice, options or appraisals, but no such 

expenditure shall be incurred on projects which have not been so approved by the 

City through the appropriation of sums in the current year or in prior years, or for 

preliminary planning for projects to be undertaken more than five years in the 

future. 

 

E. Publication of Report and Budget  

 

The Committee's report and the Mayor's recommended capital budget shall be 

published and made available in a manner consistent with the distribution of the 

Mayor's budget recommendations to the City Council.  

 

Section 7: Cemetery Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

 

i. There shall be established a Cemetery Commission for the City of 

Gardner consisting of no more than five (5) members but not less than 

seven (7) members. 

 

B. Meetings, minutes and records. 

 

i. The Commission shall meet annually in March each year to organize 

and elect a Chairperson and Secretary. The Commission shall hold 

monthly meetings each month during the course of the year. 

 

ii. The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes and records of all meetings 

of the Commission. 

 

C. Duties; perpetual care funds. 

 

i. The Commission shall have sole control over and responsibility for the 

management of perpetual care funds pursuant to MGL c. 114, § 19, and 

MGL c. 44, § 54. 

 

ii. Said Commission shall be charged with keeping full and complete 

records concerning such perpetual care funds and render to the Mayor 

and the City Council as often as may be required by them a full report 

concerning such perpetual care funds under its control during the 

period reported on. 

 

11289



iii. Said Commission shall advise the Director of Public Works and the 

Municipal Grounds Commission as to the supervision, care and upkeep 

of all public cemeteries within the City of Gardner and as to the proper 

expenditure of the perpetual care funds under the control of said 

Commission. 

 

Section 8: Council On Aging  

 

A. Establishment. 

A Council on Aging is hereby established. 

B. Membership; terms of office. 

 

The Council on Aging shall consist of at least seven (7) members but not more than 

eleven (11) members.  

 

C. Duties. 

 

The Council on Aging shall have the duty and obligation of carrying out programs 

designed to meet the problems of the aging in coordination with the programs of 

the Massachusetts Council on Aging. 

 

D. Private nature of certain information. 

 

The names, addresses, telephone numbers, or other identifying information about 

elderly persons in the possession of the Council shall not be public records, but the 

use of these records shall comply with MGL c. 19A, §§ 14 to 24, inclusive, as a 

condition of receiving a government contract, program grant or other benefit, or as 

otherwise required by law. 

 

Section 9: Disability Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

 

There shall be established, pursuant to MGL c. 40, § 8J, a Disability Commission 

for the City of Gardner consisting of not less than seven (7) members and not more 

than nine (9) member who are legal voters of said City. The majority of said 

Commission members shall consist of disabled persons, and at least one (1) of such 

members shall be a member of the immediate family of a disabled person, and one 

(1) member of said Commission shall be either an elected or appointed official of 

the City. 

 

B. Officers, meetings and records. 

11289



 

The Commission shall meet once annually to organize and elect a Chairperson, Vice 

Chairperson, Treasurer, and Clerk. The Chairperson of the Commission shall be 

chosen by a majority vote of said Commission members. The Commission shall 

hold monthly meetings each month of the year. It shall keep accurate records of its 

meetings and actions and shall file an annual report. 

 

C. Powers and duties. 

 

The Commission shall have the following powers and duties: 

 

i. Its purpose shall be to develop and carry out programs which may be 

designed or established to meet the opportunities, challenges, and problems 

of the disabled of the City and in conjunction with any agency of the federal 

government. 

 

ii. The Commission may appoint such clerks or other employees as it may 

from time to time require, subject always to appropriation of funds therefor. 

 

Section 10: Golf Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

A Municipal Golf Course Commission is hereby established. 

B. Membership; terms of office. 

The Municipal Golf Course Commission shall consist of not less than five (5) 

members, but not more than (7) seven members, including a Chairperson and 

Secretary.  

C. Membership in lieu of Compensation  

 

A Golf Commissioner shall receive a free family membership as defined in the 

family membership fee schedule of the Golf Course Commission each year while 

serving on the Commission. The free membership shall be subject to taxation 

pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code. 

 

D. Meetings  

 

The Commission shall meet annually in January of each year to organize and to 

elect a Chairperson and Secretary. The Commission shall hold bimonthly meetings 

each month during the course of each year, except that monthly meetings shall be 

held during the months of July and August. 

 

11289



E. Duties.  

 

The Commission shall, subject to the regulations and orders of the Department of 

Public Works and Board of Health with reference to the management, improvement 

and control thereof for the purpose of preserving and protecting the water supply, 

have complete charge of the operation, improvement and maintenance of the 

Municipal Golf Course and all such other properties and activities as may hereafter 

be placed under its jurisdiction and control by the Mayor with the approval of the 

City Council. The Golf Course Commissioners shall have the authority to annually 

institute a system of charges and fees for use of the Municipal Golf Course. The 

charges and fees so to be charged are to be published in manners generally used in 

practice by the City upon their being determined, prior to the date the same are to 

take effect. 

 

F. Appointees of the Golf Commission. 

 

i. The Commission shall, as soon as practicable after the qualification of its 

members, appoint such superintendent, officer or officers, agents and 

employees as it may deem necessary and shall have the power to remove 

said appointees for cause. 

 

ii. The appointees shall perform such duties as shall be required of them by 

said Commission. 

 

Section 11: Historical Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

 

There is hereby established, under the provisions of MGL c. 40, § 8D, a Historical 

Commission of the City of Gardner for the purposes and with the rights and duties 

provided by law, to be composed of not less than seven (7) members, but not more 

than eleven (11) members.  

 

Section 12: Planning Board  

 

A. Establishment 

A Planning Board is hereby established, consisting of no less than five (5) members, 

no more than nine (9) members.  

B. Powers and duties. 

 

11289



The Planning Board shall have all the powers and duties imposed and conferred by 

MGL c. 41, §§ 81A to 81GG, inclusive, and acts in amendment thereof and in 

addition thereto. 

 

Section 13: Zoning Board Of Appeals. 

 

A. Establishment and Authority 

 

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall consist of five persons with a sufficient number 

of alternate members that the Mayor and City Council shall deem necessary for the 

proper function of the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Zoning Board of Appeals 

established under Chapter 675, Zoning, of this Code is hereby constituted the 

Zoning Board of Appeals as provided in MGL c. 41, § 81Z. The Zoning Board of 

Appeals shall have all the powers and duties imposed and conferred by MGL c. 41, 

§§ 81Z and 81AA, as well as all other powers and duties imposed and conferred on 

the Zoning Board of Appeals by said MGL c. 41, §§ 81A to 81GG. 

 

Section 14: Traffic Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

There shall be established in the City of Gardner a Traffic Commission. 

B. Membership 

 

Members shall consist of the Chief of Police or his designee, as Chairperson, a 

member of the Council's Public Safety Committee as designated by the Chairperson 

of that Committee, the City Engineer, the Director of Public Works, the Director of 

Community Development and Planning, and the Civil Enforcement Director, all 

whom shall serve as ex officio, full voting members. 

 

C. Placement of official traffic signs and signals. 

 

The Director of Public Works, under supervision of the Traffic Commission, is 

hereby authorized and it shall be his duty to place and maintain or cause to be placed 

and maintained all official traffic signs and signals, markings and safety zones. All 

signs, signals, markings and safety zones shall conform to the standards as 

prescribed by the Highway Division of the Massachusetts Department of 

Transportation. 

 

D. Meetings; duties. 

 

The Traffic Commission shall meet regularly, not less often than quarterly. 

 

11289



E. Among its duties the Traffic Commission shall: 

 

i. Make recommendations to the City Council, supported by engineering 

studies and reports when necessary, regarding changes required to the 

Chapter 600, Vehicles and Traffic, of this Code. 

 

ii. Monitor all traffic-related issues, from signs to major project proposals. 

 

iii. Actively pursue state or federal grants for street improvements (including 

curbing, pedestrian crossings, and signalization). 

 

iv. Improve traffic on a regional basis, working with and supporting 

endeavors of the local Regional Planning Commission.  

 

Section 15: Youth Commission  

 

A. Establishment 

 

There shall be established, pursuant to MGL c. 40, § 8E, a Youth Commission for 

the City of Gardner consisting of no less than three (3) members and no more than 

seven (7) members, who shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation 

by the City Council, except for one (1) member who shall be appointed by the City 

Council President not subject to confirmation by the City Council.  

 

B. Meetings, records and annual report. 

 

The Commission shall meet once annually to organize and elect a Chairperson, Vice 

Chairperson, Treasurer and Clerk. The Commission shall hold monthly meetings 

each month of the year. It shall keep accurate records of its meetings and actions 

and shall file an annual report. 

 

C. Powers and duties. 

 

The Commission shall have the following powers and duties: 

 

a. Its purpose shall be to develop and carry out programs which may be 

designed or established to meet the opportunities, challenges and problems 

of youth of the City and in conjunction with any similar or related programs 

of any agency of the commonwealth or any agency of the federal 

government. 

 

b. The Commission may appoint such clerks or other employees as it may 

from time to time require, subject always to appropriation of funds therefor. 

11289



 

SECTION 37: Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled “Personnel,” be 

amended by replacing the title as “Non-Union Employees” and renumbered as Chapter 8.  

SECTION 38: Section 2 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Conduct of Examination,” be amended by deleting the phrase, “or the department head” form 

the section.  

SECTION 39: Section 3 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled, 

“Report” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 3: The employment candidate cannot commence employment until the 

Human Resources Department has received the pre-employment screening report 

clearing the candidate for full duty and/or identifying appropriate and applicable 

reasonable accommodations.  

SECTION 40: Section 6 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled, 

“Compensation for Blasting Services” be deled in its entirety.  

SECTION 41: Section 8 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Summons to be presented to Department Head,” be amended by adding the following sentence 

to the end of the section: 

The summons and/or jury duty service confirmation shall be submitted to the 

Human Resources Department to be maintained in the employee’s personnel file.  

SECTION 42: Section 12 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Compensation,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

Section 12: During such time as the employee is out on an authorized civic duty 

leave or unable to perform their duties, upon the submission of the proper civic 

duty service confirmation document(s) to the Human Resources Department, the 

City will pay the employee the difference between the wages earned on such civic 

duty leave and the salary or wages to which the employee would have been 

entitled to for the regular performance of their duties. In the event the employee 

receives no compensation for their civic duty service, the City will pay the 

employee their full wages for the time spent serving said civic duty in lieu of 

performing their duties for the City.  

SECTION 43: Section 13 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled “Effect on 

Vacation,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

 

Section 13: Employees are allowed to roll over twice as much as their annual 

vacation allotment. An employee who at the end of the year has in excess of 

the authorized accrued vacation carry over as a result of being summoned for 

jury duty service shall be entitled to carry over the accrued vacation time that 

11289



exceeds the authorized roll over benefit. The excess vacation time must be 

taken within the year it was allowed to be carried over into.  

SECTION 44: Section 14 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Holidays 

Designated,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 14: Holidays Designated  

A. All full time and regular part-time City employees, not covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement shall be granted holidays with pay at the rate 

fixed for such employees respectively on each of the following twelve (12) 

legal holidays:  

1. New Year’s Day  

2. Martin Luther King Day  

3. Presidents Day  

4. Patriots Day  

5. Memorial Day  

6. Juneteenth 

7. Independence Day  

8. Labor Day  

9. Indigenous Peoples Day/Columbus Day  

10. Veterans Day  

11. Thanksgiving Day  

12. Christmas Day  

 

B. Sunday holidays shall be celebrated the following Monday. Saturday 

Holidays shall be celebrated on the preceding Friday.  

 

C. Employees who work a schedule other than a Monday through Friday 

Schedule and the holiday falls on a non-work day, shall be given a day in lieu 

to be taken on a day approved by the employee’s department director.  

 

D. All full-time and regular part-time City employees, not covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement, shall have the Friday after Thanksgiving as 

a day off, but not as a designated holiday.  

 

SECTION 45: Section 15 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled 

“Compensation for Working on a Holiday” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 

following: 

Section 15: In the event that a non-exempt employee shall be required to work 

on a holiday, their compensation shall be at two (2) times their regular 

straight-time pay for all hours worked on such holiday. The employee may 

elect to earn compensatory time for the time worked on the holiday (1 hour 

worked equivalent to 2 hours of compensatory time) to be reported to the 

Human Resources Department for accrued time benefit tracking.  

11289



SECTION 46: Section 17 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Credit 

and Use of Sick Days,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 17: Sick days shall be credited to employees on January 1st of each 

year. Employees may carry an unlimited number of unused sick days at the 

end of the year into the next year. Sick time shall not be used in less than one 

(1) hour increments.  

SECTION 47: Section 18 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Doctor’s 

Certification,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 18: An employee that has been absent from work due to an illness or 

injury and/or the use of non-occupational sick leave for three (3) or more 

consecutive days at one time must present a medical note to their department 

director. This note shall be attached to the weekly benefit time reports. A 

doctor’s note may also be required if a department head and/or the Director 

of Human Resources has reasonable cause to believe that the employee may 

be abusing their non-occupational sick time.  

SECTION 48: Section 21 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Payment for accumulated sick leave upon death of employee” be deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with the following:  

Section 21: For employees hired before October 17, 1995, in the event that 

the employee shall die prior to retirement, if the employee has accumulated 

sick leave, shall be granted pay for such accumulation not to exceed fifty (50) 

full days of pay, plus an additional fifty percent (50%) of the daily rate for 

accumulated days over and above the first fifty (50) days, not to exceed a total 

of one hundred thirty (130) days paid (equivalent to ninety (90) full days of 

total pay.- 50 full days and 80 at 50%) Payment shall be paid to the estate of 

said deceased employee.  

SECTION 49: Section 23 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Sick Leave Incentive Time,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 23: Commencing effective January 1, 2024, employees that do not 

call in sick and/or use sick leave in a calendar month shall yearn four (4) hours 

per month of sick leave incentive time (not defined as vacation or personal 

time). The use of sick leave incentive time is subject to the approval of the 

department director. Employees may carry over up to twelve (12) hours of 

sick leave incentive time between years.  

 

SECTION 50: Section 24 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Annual Report; Notification of Absence Due to Illness,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced by 

the following:  

11289



Section 24: On or about July 1st of each year, the Human Resources 

Department will provide the Mayor and the City Auditor a fiscal report of all 

sick leave accumulated and used by all City employees eligible for this 

benefit. Each employee will notify their department director each morning 

by 8:30 a.m. when they are going to be absent from work due to illness or 

injury.  

SECTION 51: Section 25 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Grant of Leave,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 25: Grant of Leave  

A. A full-time and regularly part-time employees, not covered by a collective bargaining 

agreement, shall be granted bereavement leave without loss of regular straight-time 

pay for normally scheduled working hours as follows:  

 

1) Five (5) consecutive days for the death of an immediate family member of the 

employee, which shall include a spouse, parent, step-parent, sibling, step sibling, 

children, step-children, or a person living in the immediate household of the 

employee.  

 

2) Three (3) consecutive days for the death of family members of the employee, 

which shall include parent of spouse or grandparent. 

 

3) Two (2) consecutive days for an employee’s niece, nephew, sibling in-law, child 

in-law, aunt, or uncle.  

 

B. If there is a delay in scheduling services, the employee may request a delay in their 

use of this benefit until that time. This request should be directed to the employee’s 

department director. 

 

C. For the purposes of this section, miscarriage of pregnancy shall be an eligible use for 

bereavement leave as defined in the schedule of time previously listed.  

 

SECTION 52: Section 25(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Full-time employees,” be amended by deleting the sentence, “but in no event shall longevity 

pay for any such employee exceed $1,050 in any fiscal year.”  

 

SECTION 53: Section 27(a) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Part-time Employees,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 27: Part – Time Employees  

A. Any regular part-time employee of the City that is not covered by a collective 

bargaining agreement, except those under the control of the School Department 

11289



and officials elected by the voters of the City, who have been employed for at least 

five (5) continuous and consecutive years of service and has worked at least 1,000 

hours each year of service, shall receive, in addition to their regular compensation, 

longevity pay of $75 during the first year that such service is attained and each 

fiscal year thereafter.  

 

B. Such employee shall receive an additional $15 per year for each additional year of 

part-time continuous and consecutive service with the City.  

 

SECTION 54: Section 30 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled “Grant of Personal 

Days,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 30: Grant of Personal Days  

a. Regular full-time and part-time employees, not covered by a collective bargaining 

agreement, except officials elected by the voters of the City, shall be granted four 

(4) personal days (equivalent to 32 hours) per calendar year at the employee’s 

normal straight-time pay for normally scheduled hours. A personal day for  part-

time employees will be equal to one-fifth (1/5) of the employee’s regular work 

week.  

 

b. Upon termination, resignation, or retirement, the annual allotment of personal time 

for the year in which the employee’s employment ends shall be prorated quarterly 

from the date the employee’s employment ends as follows:  

 

1. January 1st to March 31st: three (3) days 

2. April 1st to June 30th: two (2) days  

3. July 1st to September 30th: one (1) day 

 

SECTION 55: Section 31(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Use of Personal Days,” be amended by replacing “half day” with “one (1) hour.” 

SECTION 56: Section 32 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Crediting of Personal Days,” be amended by adding the phrase, “Personal Time cannot be 

carried over from year to year” at the end of the section.  

 

SECTION 57: Section 33 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“New Employees,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 33: New Employees  

Newly hired employees shall be granted personal leave according to the following 

schedule:  

First Day of Employment  Number of Personal Days  

11289



January 1 to March 31 4 

April 1 to June 30 3 

July 1 to September 30 2 

October 1 to December 31 1 

 

SECTION 58: Article IX of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Vacations for City Officers and Employees,” be amended by deleting the words “City Officers 

and” from the title.  

SECTION 59:  Section 34 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Police Officers,” be amended by deleting the title and replacing the title with “Deputy Chief of 

Police.”  

SECTION 60: Section 34 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Police Officers,” be amended by replacing the phrase, “All police officers of the City of 

Gardner, not covered by a collective bargaining agreement,” with the phrase “The Deputy Chief 

of Police.”  

SECTION 61: Section 35 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Firefighters,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 62: Section 36 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof Entitled 

“Other full-time officers and employees,” be amended by replacing the title of the section with 

the following: “Full-time Employees.”  

SECTION 63: Section 36 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Other full-time officers and employees,” be amended by removing the phrase “All other 

employees or officers,” from the first sentence.  

SECTION 64: Section 36 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Other full-time officers and employees,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 

following:  

Section 36: City Employees, except those provided for by law and those covered by a 

collective bargaining agreement, regularly employed full-time by the City shall be 

granted an annual vacation without loss of pay as follows:  

 

A. Regularly employed for one (1) to four (4) years shall be entitled to three (3) weeks 

or 15 working days.  

B. Regularly employed for five (5) to nine (9) years shall be entitled to four (4) weeks 

or 20 working days  

C. Regularly employed for ten (10) to fourteen (14) years shall be entitled to five (5) 

weeks or 25 working days  

D. Regularly employed for fifteen (15) to nineteen (19) years shall be entitled to six (6) 

weeks or thirty (30) working days  

11289



E. Regularly employed for twenty (20) years or more shall be entitled to seven (7) 

weeks or thirty five (35) working days.  

 

SECTION 65: Section 37 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Other Part-time officers and employees,” be amended by replacing the title with “Part-time 

Employees.” 

SECTION 66: Section 37 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Other Part-time Officers and Employees,” be amended by removing the word “other” from the 

first sentence.  

SECTION 67: Section 40 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“New Employees,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section 40: New full-time employees will earn one(1) day per month up to ten (10) 

days per calendar year. This day will be credited the last day of each month. The 

new employee shall continue to earn vacation in this manner until the first 

anniversary date of benefited employment when they shall be credited with the 

difference between the number of days of vacation days they have earned up until 

such date, and ten (10) vacation days. This vacation time will only be allowed 

upon completion of a period of three (3) months of employment with the City of 

Gardner. In no event shall a new employee be eligible for more than ten (10) days 

of vacation per calendar year.  

SECTION 68: Section 42 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Minimum Increments,” be amended by replacing the phrase “half day” with “hour.” 

SECTION 69: Article X of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled, 

“Salaries of Police and Fire Personnel,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 70: Section 44 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 70: Section 45 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Compensation Established,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

Section 45: Compensation Established  

 

In addition to the provisions of the salary ordinance, the following full-time personnel shall 

receive compensation to be paid annually as follows:  

A. The Fire Chief shall receive $1,250.00 for the upkeep and purchase of uniforms, 

equipment, and footwear.  

 

B. The Chief of Police and Deputy Chief of Police shall receive $1,250.00 for the upkeep 

and purchase of uniforms, equipment, and footwear.  

11289



 

C. The following shall receive $500.00 annually for the upkeep and purchase of clothing, 

gear, and/or footwear:  

 

• Building Commissioner  

• Director of Public Health  

• Director of Public Works  

• City Engineer  

• Golf Course Superintendent  

• Transfer Station Supervisor  

• Transfer Station Monitor  

• Golf Grounds Maintenance Staff  

• Golf Grounds Maintenance Working Foreman  

 

D. The following shall receive $650.00 annually for the upkeep and purchase of clothing, 

gear, and/or footwear:  

 

• Golf Motor Equipment Working Foreman  

• Golf Motor Equipment Repairmen  

 

SECTION 72: Section 47 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“New Employees,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Section: 44: New Employees  

Any newly appointed full-time employee as referenced above shall receive 

clothing/uniform allowance prorated quarterly for the balance of the remaining 

fiscal year at the time of their appointment.  

 

SECTION 73: Section 52 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Department Heads,” be amended by replacing “Council on Aging Director,” with “Senior 

Center Director.”  

 

SECTION 74: Section 52 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Department Heads,” be amended by adding “Director of Cable Operations” above “Director of 

Community Development and Planning.” 

SECTION 75: Section 50(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Benefit Time Off Requests and Reporting,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 

following:  

11289



B. A Department Head will contact the Mayor’s Office and Director of Human 

Resources via email each morning by 8:30 a.m. when they are going to be 

absent from work due to illness.  

SECTION 76: Section 53(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Vacation,” be deleted in its entirety. 

Section 77: Section 53(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Vacation,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

All Department Heads as defined earlier in this Chapter, shall be granted an annual 

vacation without loss of pay as follows:  

A. Regularly employed for one (1) to four (4) years shall be entitled to Four (4) weeks 

or twenty (20) working days.  

B. Regularly employed for five (5) to nine (9) years shall be entitled to five (5) weeks 

or twenty-five (25) working days  

C. Regularly employed for ten (10) to fourteen (14) years shall be entitled to six (6) 

weeks or thirty (30) working days  

D. Regularly employed for fifteen (15) to nineteen (19) years shall be entitled to seven 

(7) weeks or thirty-five (35) working days  

E. Regularly employed for twenty (20) years or more shall be entitled to eight (8) 

weeks or forty (40) working days.  

 

SECTION 78: Section 53(E) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof 

entitled, “Vacation” be amended by replacing the schedule of time with the following:  

First day of Employment  Number of Vacation Days  

January 1 to April 30 20 Days  

May 1 to August 31 15 Days  

September 1 to December 31 10 Days  

 

SECTION 79: Section 54 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled, “ 

Personal Time,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

A. Department heads shall be granted five (5) personal days (equivalent to 40 

hours) per calendar year. Personal days shall be credited to department heads 

on January 1 of each year. Personal days are not cumulative and must be used 

in the calendar year in which they have been credited.  

B. Upon termination, resignation, or retirement, the annual allotment of 

personal time for the year in which the department head’s employment ends 

shall be prorated from the date the department head’s employment ends as 

follows:  

• January 1st through March 31st: Five (5) Days  

• April 1st through June 30th: Four (4) Days 

• July 1 through September 30th: Three (3) Days  

11289



• October 1st through December 31st: One (1) Day 

 

C. Newly hired department heads shall be granted personal leave according to 

the following schedule:  

 

First Day of Employment Number of Personal Days  

January 1 to March 31  5  

April 1 to June 30 4 

July 1 to September 30 3 

October 1 to December 31 2 

 

SECTION 80: Section 55 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Sick Leave,” be amended by deleting subsections C and D in their entirety and replacing them 

with the following:  

C. Department heads shall be granted a maximum of twenty (20) 

nonoccupational sick days per calendar year. Sick Days shall be credited on 

January 1 of each year. Department heads may carry an unlimited number of 

sick days. Newly hired (hired from outside of the City and not promoted within) 

department heads shall be granted nonoccupational sick days prorated quarterly 

based on their date of hire.  

D. A department head that has been absent from work due to the use of 

nonoccupational sick leave for three (3) consecutive days or more at one time 

must present a doctors note to the Human Resources Director. A doctor’s note 

may also be required if the Mayor has reasonable cause to believe that the 

department head may be abusing their nonoccupational sick leave.  

 

SECTION 81: Section 56 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Sick Leave Incentive Time,” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

Effective January 1, 2024, department heads that do not use sick leave in a calendar 

month shall earn ½ day off (equal to four (4) hours) not to be charged to sick leave 

or vacation leave. Time earned in this manner shall be referred to as “sick leave 

incentive time.”  

 

SECTION 82: Section 57 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled, 

“Sick Leave Buy Back,” be amended by adding the following after the phrase “but not to exceed 130 

days,”  

(equivalent of 90 days of full pay total- 50 full days and 80 days at 50%) 

11289



SECTION 83: Section 58 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Bereavement Leave” be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:  

A. Department Heads shall be granted bereavement leave without loss of regular straight-

time pay for normally scheduled working hours as follows:  

 

4) Five (5) consecutive days for the death of an immediate family member of 

the employee, which shall include a spouse, parent, step-parent, sibling, 

step sibling, children, step-children, or a person living in the immediate 

household of the employee.  

 

5) Three (3) consecutive days for the death of family members of the 

employee, which shall include parent of spouse or grandparent. 

 

6) Two (2) consecutive days for an employee’s niece, nephew, sibling in-law, 

child in-law, aunt, or uncle.  

 

D. If there is a delay in scheduling services, the employee may request a delay in 

their use of this benefit until that time. This request should be directed to the 

Mayor 

 

E. For the purposes of this section, miscarriage of pregnancy shall be an eligible 

use for bereavement leave as defined in the schedule of time previously listed.  

 

SECTION 84: Section 60 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Holidays with Pay,” be amended by removing the phrase “with the exception of the Police 

Chief and Fire Chief (See Article X of this Chapter).”  

SECTION 85: Section 60 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Holidays with Pay,” be amended by adding “(6) Juneteenth” between Memorial Day and 

Independence Day and the following renumbered accordingly.  

SECTION 86: Section 60 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Holidays with Pay,” be amended by adding the following subsection C:  

C. Department Heads shall have the Friday after Thanksgiving off (not defined as 

a holiday).  

 

SECTION 87: Section 63(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Fire Chief,” be amended by replacing the words, “A Fire Chief,” with the phrase “A Fire Chief, 

hired before July 1, 2024.”  

SECTION 88: Section 63 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Fire Chief,” be amended by adding the following subsection C:  

11289



C. A Fire Chief hired on or after July 1, 2024 will not be eligible for this benefit 

as it will be included in the annual compensation schedule for this position. 

Nothing in this section shall apply to a fire chief who held the position prior to 

July 1, 2024 and is being consecutively re-appointed to the position.  

SECTION 89: Section 64 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Chief of Police and Deputy Chief of Police,” be deleted in its entirety.  

SECTION 90: Severability 

Each section of this ordinance is an independent section, and the holding of any section or part 

thereof to be unconstitutional, void or ineffective for any cause shall not be deemed to affect the 

validity or constitutionality of any other sections or parts thereof. 

SECTION 91: This ordinance shall become effective upon the stated dates listed in the sections 

above or on January 1, 2025 if no date is specified in that specific section, following passage and 

publication as required by law.  

11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11289



11370



11370



11370



11371



11371



11371



11372



11372



11372



11372



11372



   CITY OF GARDNER 
 MASSACHUSETTS 01440 

  OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
  Room 121, City Hall 
  Tel  (978) 630-4058 
  Fax (978) 630-2589   

 ABUTTERS NOTICE AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES 

Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 567 of The Code of the City of Gardner, 

notice is hereby given that the Public Safety Committee will conduct a Public 

Hearing on Friday, September 13, 2024 at 8:15 a.m. in the City Council Chamber, 

Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, Massachusetts, regarding: 

#11204 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner 

Chapter 600, Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled 

“Parking Prohibited on Certain Streets” – Edgell Street, from Elm 

Street to Lawrence Street.  

Persons interested in this matter are encouraged to attend and to offer testimony. 

CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 

Titi Siriphan, City Clerk 

11204



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED 
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS” 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Sec�on 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, en�tled “Parking 
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following 

Name of Street Side Loca�on 
Edgell Street  North From Elm Street to Lawrence Street 

11204



11326



11326



11326



11326



11326



11385



11385



11385



11385



11385



11385




